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Dear Stockhnlc!er. 

Thi:> W<:IS ·~ y~:.r :it ~re1T'E-ntlC1J$ ;l·ang~ ~.,r l~~u;tar ·s~ sh:7t·N CUI 3tri:jteg•c rtar1 to focu::. f~;•Jr8 1ntenf.~ly •Jn f' I ('V1d1r1g 

information an•; r,nal•tt'<•s sE-rvic7s tu the 111 ter'1-:it. tel~commun1cutlo'; ~nt·1rri'l \'WlE nt. ;rici n•ark"'t ng se.r-/ce3 S&G<•)r~. 

'!'!~ o;;>p<:1Pded C•llr r;apsb1lit ;;:s, reo1g::m1:.:Ci ·Jur str111::t1;re. a11.J str'::!<.Hnl riE:o uur c•µt: r.1l'\,n:-; ·n order w !)!'·)1rot•; g11)Nth ond 

btJ 1ld st<xkholdt:r •:al,.,e_ ~V'<:: tolo th'? r:i..;clo<;>t •:1hat we .ntenai:d to do ard tlh:r •• ,.., d·o 1t. Th·~s. n1Tdst & ;:,111~:c<int d1:;11g'O'. 

i,11,iusti'\r GBl1v.,ro:io Ci 'nrr•I nr rc::sutt· ~.trr.·n~ p.;irforrrnnv~. 

;\,? b·;g;.m ti it: V•Ji.H ·nrti 1 .1 pl·:idfd t•.) sharpen our "c1cus )n our be~t •X•por~t.rl t'':':>, ;,;r.ij I t;>3l .,v~ Wt;, "l•1fill~cl that 

cu,....,,., trT'er1t. 'N1:: cortinl1t:: to b<> .J ieac 1ng prov i:;:..,r o• :·l(10r'-'ssing, ro1Jt ng. ano policy rr.an~Jg.;> rrn;nt for t i 1~ 

cor-·;r1un1c::itions 3r>o Internet sec:ors. wt l:;, e>'pand ng tt"s e.-pHt se nto th~ d·g tal c0nri:im :.ei:mr. v'/P, al:;,o bu It L•Ovn 
c,t1r e. pr;n i;t- n •;:.ta ;:in,;l.y'.:i:; to orov <;e rc-:il-t mi::· 1nforir :;t1•m r,n;:J nr1:1ly<1•;s s.;irv .. ;es that •;av·~ ot.i~ c ;.;~.torrE:-1~• t rri·~ and 
r11on~y. help tlts1" !;:, lt; tne!r IJu.5 ries.;<:5 . and pwa,cr th.;>f"' ,-ind tt'P, r ~L.s:or!lt;:S ug'-' nst rrnu•.:. 

ov·ni:, 2011, we alsv e ·r'-'r. ·~trong ~rowth ,., ;f'v~nt.!:. em nmg<J. a111; {·Jt:h flov·1. \\'~ 1.1 cJ :-:o BV<in .. ,:;. w~ 1:cmpletcd 'ou1 

rna1or trRri'3<:1<: tit•ns. n :!iJ<J ri~ t l1e ai.:q 1_1 s ti•)') of :t::.set3 trnm Evolv ng S;st~rr.::-. lnc. our · ir~t ;:;,:111~ 10111. thE: acqt. .:: t ?n 

of T.lrP,•~s tnforrn~w·x C•:irpor,1t1on '.T1\RGU".-i1nr(1i. ::11 ;.J a •,;hare l:;u ylJad, on <111 d· ;u,•l er.it~:0 basis. In 2011, \\o;? ::;:<t:cut..:d th.,. 

r'f'llt ;;mnsact,N!s. at cr1e r.ght t;r.<>. w th th~ right fmanc1.;;l sm:ctt..rre. 

Making Smart Acquisitions 
ir r he-, ~ t ,,e"""' ' ;t ...,.,, int~ ... ~ t tH I b_,·:am~ CEO,,; Het..sUr. we: assess~d th<: ~.c ii~. cor~p:::fti\J-:l posit'c ,_ '" J 

r::.:ono1·vc'l: of all o~ )t .. r ousin"'~:,,~;; t•) d1~t·:m r 1n0 t 1tWJ t•J pc::.1t1un ti;,,; Corrpany ':itr,it •~g1°;.;tly for th€' 'u a.r;;,. Wt: 0~1; Of:i~ 
ttnt.?, v~:n U1e er1ormo0 .. ::J.lt"1 'e'30l1r<;"' .. : '' po:~s"'ss.,1~. ~J;:1.;.,:-ar c0uld :rn.l .~hol1'd be·:or""e a glot;r.t l..,,,J<>1 m ro?al-
t ,.,..~ ir1~ormGt1c.n .:ina "'n:i lys•s ivist: .. : on 'h1G1 <1ss'ng. l/'JQ IJ.::fm.;,rJ a str ct std o· i1cc ... 1':)1t1on crrt•21 JU·:, th 1J ;':ic LS on 

kw r ,:,:.. ·:..ilt.ie·c.r~at1116 tr.1'•$JC:10• r:. 'n n~;;r ·,dJ~Ct'nt sec;t·~rs. 111'.;t1,d rig.;cqu .tit 011s th.;.t •·Jl.luld ,cc.vlento prmH .. u 
n"'vt!loµrr·3nt r' t'lif t'')r'.:: b1.:s 11·~3ses. 

l>i J1 .. ly ""'e ,::;ouir"'d n1Jrcie0 ing .:is5ets fror-' Evci·.; ng Systo::m~. ;o· .scpro~; mate\., £3~·"" II on. "" ·F.gra• ne a rn,-; n"'::'> 

·t,a~ w ,$ t1C1~n nr1 .;;-, ie:ns•cn •Y ,,,Jr i•Jt . .i~ ' bo:)r Pm tabil;t't ; .,urn r11str1t.-)f' C-!nter \t ~ f·'-'"'~1 b'J~ i11.>s-; is w1:ll 1$ a "'11,,1~t>~r n:? 

n 'd, y'1°1(. ~ -l::l'~'C.'?. 

-r.,r. n ~~'>V'2s~•her. ,.,r; aci.)vreu -;:.R,,1US n=o." prov ce1 cf r»1!-t 1~·~ .,n-oe1·,3nc .. -,forrr;;~t. on ,,110 .1n:ilyt1G'c' :>t::1" C:P.•. 

tt;r •. Jflt;rox1111'llr;;ly °tl;i57 mill Orl ·n Ci:j!:.h. TJ 1d V'1h,i:; o~ Our Tt..RGIJS n•o :',t,rrha:::,; w;ll COl"'O:: ~10:-h 'ror·• t~ pr,.· . .,.r•1Ji m':!! ~.>t 

r ·t« ; ,,., n l .;! ,_,r D ::.1:1r·:i·:~s ~nd lrC'rri ri1.r ,1~11l1ty w use ol:r •l> ·,_.t,rw b 1,~ ll•)~=:>n I•) lr;;·;c-r • .1gt:o 1t::; •r, ·on"at c•1 <Jn•j , -.~!·1t:~.; 

•;<10J:.: • t r::s n •n.,t-f r N. ir.g l",1rk~~::. 11-..li..d nis !i::.,o ·:·'' • 1c 'lt ;n. •.)r I •11: aav~rt• ;1r g. ')r <:!It(~ c.<:arc.h. 

T~:., ntt:-;,rnt c•1 cf-AF31J.:> h :i--· '.JELJ5t::u h3s ~or•"' :;r-r-ont '1. arc 1t 3 r"W operatini? ns ot.1 nr .. :ir rn.:,t.on S~•v.;e., 

l;1,.:;tr1E-' . .;; Zt'£;G1':1r:t. Tl1::; u;:qL,,o; t •)rl r":ii«•b n1r i;;•)a• of b~corr n~ n i?ivt.al lecc~r m r{; il-t•'"~ ntornut Jn ·1!1 .ir; .Iv ;.3 r. 
•• .;,11 •voy->~-~·ri.!' g 'Jt l ·it i btt.. .)t»;;r a rrl(or!; c ·/£-rse v1rtteil Qr'' ~~rv·.;<:~ oil tr1!' s::.o 011! •)T) r.:<il·t11'1{-' 1nm'1[lt 011..in•; 

-iri.1,;t C.'\ rrar -<>t. 

Continuing our Stewardship of the NPAC 

·.Nh .e r :rno• ,_, rl•\ rl" •1 'lrl<.v"'t vr: < 2t::=tb I r·~~ ,\~ ur<> i;. e<•~vCl to rc-::c;. r t)L1' n•,:ht:st &vr:r 1;u:ot\J:r,,r :;,:,t1sfact1cn '·1i.r11~:;. 

m11 tl•a<: W"J : ·0<>1 "! i l)() µi::rc~nt •c:~·pl ant .'i• "h uvE:-r .i.::?Oi ·1d 'I 0 ,i[ >"'rv·ct1 l.:;: .. 1el <'l;~r&eff r.t i~e ,;:.1,,r.>.1·~pn1~. !·:""t,..1"ar'~ 

• <r ,, ;r•·•·nt ,f •bo. ··:PAC. th 1;c1npl2< t-e-J5V.>FW' C•" l•)•:a, r1ur~o •• r port<:il) l ty, ::. .~ 1.-, .Jtl·"'t r;.t; r!1°tJ b•.::. n;.:'.:; trat ,., tr 

;rrr:.u ~ o~ec.J ;4 ,b1 ~1'1•)·."l•r :hrc t.gh at·~·.,~.; ... tJnE- .'.'O'i S. 

-, ::.Pr"c~~r; ~'"'''c ·r./13'-:tc.:~<Pt"':c~n ... 'c:n!Jorh.JS.~ .. r\1~~-"'~th>?MDJ .. l., 1~0,., ~trrl,.Or .,\.~e 1Ihµc,~rrtt..,rconrr'"1c-t(f"'fjlr':l ..... V\fr.~ 
I 'C·k 'ur !.<JI IJ Fl 11';1.)f 1~ I);~ With "l•I L.l.JvtC;f"-:)1'::, rl:ld +ht [C-l~C:..>f' r• ;ll ~at fll1':i i'rCvStry +hroi,gJ)o)tJt tl1.,, :'~">CU'"~O'<> It r''•:l'~"'~ ~· 

i-li:!t.. ;• u'-; ..,r.,y, JfCL,h pc f th:·; \IPA..; t >:.. l <::d1.; ri" .. JD!c; ~ )r.l'.t .. n• •)\";r :, G·::r c•t• of t;f'l"(: r!'.H irn1; ~·~'m rer't'11 ~ .. ·1bli- th ,11;;~. 

1Jt...r tr l:sr:::a "7.-tr1 .... " )n t er.: (t ,;t .:l l r; •.,,. j;udt\Jr.·t;r; t~n~~1t; consur,·,er5 "J'lC! t• ::: t~tt:i";c.,f"Y'rrt,r t.3t on~ , Jt.1 -;tr1. i''c:' ..;:;t,u 
:1 fL.ll·; ~:orrrr·1tteo :"'i c.or ... 'i:;e r 1 rr~ ··1i;5vrousl .. ,.·· 'n t 1-it.:: prc:r:-1..11 .:;rne1 it ~ · rocr::.:~s ann ' ... ,t , ..... :.:itclv ~v r.:nc;i, .. .l ~·.g c r ~~Pl.C ~L tra .... t. 



Offering Trusted And Reliable Services to Multiple Customer Segments 
or .. dc1t.1~ir• to Crirr'~r ".>erv•Lt3S. "vh·rh s 1 ~ :;pnr1:;.bl.:i •or our NPA.C bl.i£ 1·v~s-. '-l'!lt c;•ar has other ::: .. ct ng "''"' - '"·?,re;·. ng 

bu<> ro~~s;:;s, su.;!1 a.:> Ent,,rpris':i 'Se:lil :e.5. hey SfC"Nth •:ir \'E:r$ n 201 i ·01 EnT.•Hprif8 Se1vic~s nc.luot:d Ola ·~>- p:.1il•Jed 

C',·be1·st:cur ty and lnternE-t n'r.istrucrurP prvt"3ct11?n c:':irv c<::c;. lr.c.reaseo mcbi!t rr arkr:t:ng ~.pem: rn~i=s ,, c. ~· .;r" 
r.;n<:>·,\ .. d r<1te., •or corr r·1on '.J 1ur t r:oues uric:,.,r rr:;.n,,g<~l'l"f~nt .,ilso dre:vt: g1\;wrh. 

(.I ,,:rt rr . .::. nev;t ir's ru::.tomt::r b, 1">-;! - \,r g1nally l11n t!'-d ro w1ft':l1ne vo·c,,. call<> anj tl1r:i tele..::orrn1un•r3ti1. ris n1:t.:>tr1 -
'1:)S '9>0<:n<Je<; •· ,.iC·U i<:- ~ •~mun .;.,fc ns. •::!Cltd. d r i':i> t fl!; c;erv CE--S; ti) th<: NC•rl•;'s l~a•Jinp lr1t1'• r1<:-t an1J r" JrhE'ilrlg for~s: 

H 1c! t•J the:: c<.)P:(::11t O:·'\.t(:I. t:.dc 't.r;nri1lv. ·Ji, r -.M~GUS1: 1f•J Hcau !:.1t•o1 '°'as iJroa<:i<:r'ed the ran:.:~ o~ .;;...,tamer.,\. . ., ni: IJ\J' 

·n,_;t,:;d sna r':'t ub!~ ::.~1-., ·~s .::\li:in funher As w<: 11,,.,,0 nto 2012. ·N~ pl~rn to or1Vt: -,Qr,c1ra\,~d c;...;torr·er gr·;,wth vith'n o•A 

.... ,,pa rid 'ig '°I:?~ ~r ..:.01 e cc:r:; e~·.,,. - .,.~ 

Delivering Strong Financial Results 
~~i>usr :1r m;1nP :1fini rc:rnt pr0~re<>:·: .icr_,._,., 'he bCioit.1 rr ::01 1

• 'vVt: c<·nt nut:d to del •er S\ron~ rev<:nv~ "·o,-,t». rnarg nc:, 

,inc -1~ h •luw ::h I;?, w::: .rv'r 03a•;e~J :l .r t:•;a!"' ..,ncJ o:t1 ,,r gt ll':!n~o u\11 f.Ju::. t on 1::; a 11t::UH 1[ a rod tr w .. tt:d p1 O'J1G8r •>< 

11t;1 r'l lt •)n ·incl an. :1l.1t c~ • .::~1v c;e->. 

P._;'.·en.,,e ncr-?::JSttd I ~1 pe1\ .. 1:?r < tc Su20.il rn·u '11, di..., ·o ~rowtti •n nur C.:.rr i>r SPrv Ci=S and Er .t~rpr '3" St:rv CP ~ O!.A':l <id' 

, "1~inent~ .... i:i well .::b th;;i ado t t:n of 1 ~v"mue frorr •J1,r lnrurrrat-t>n Serv c.es buc;ires-:; s.::~:nent. ln1,1P'~ ·rorr ... rnt "IU r g 
. p~rc:t ;ns t•)<al~·J : 1l2 6 r· ! )r:. repre ;<:nt ng a 1>'arg·n o· l 1 r erco:-rrr. 

n i.h·. o.:~111n1nP, c.- i.h·J '.r ~.u, ~·1e "d.d ."it- ,., . ..:ulCJ foi:1 .. ., on"' n'O'·~ ,;ff 1c.i"'n eril.i11cr: ;h•:0·1t'. I/:•} d..;111•;VP•l i P.H P,.;al thrt.L pr1 

th~ ,•;1rnnt:r n wll r;h \'•" f 11"ncec 01,•· ;;i..,q\.113 ' crs ur.d bcughr t.JC:· 0ur Cvl ·r •1 ::.~l.C.k. n .,.~r .y !::>:.C -fl'bt:r. \'.~ 
r ·r·.11i,h 1:;')11:il1'·0~;t10 !)i;Jrce11t ~,f t11,1 v 1.,t::;tarn:J nr, shart-$ tnr•)ir ~h 0t,1·~:_5,.J1T1ll '"l 11·oi.W1c1.i "C1,t ;ll t\uct ·ri"t'-'mlttr 
:i''t-r. Th cs tr<it'~ ::.c.r•on. 1'1d t~1e ;t;.}O r .... ll1•)n terP' lo Jn -:;~.ut.-d t,; t111ar·,-> tr.e T,\RC1US "TO ,1.-q,1.S1 t:•)r1. LI• 01.p.i •I c. ur detJT tC• 
~ 11.1tv1 d''·.i t•J le.~·1;; "If! b~lt"Vt' :;re ,.pprcmr «l·=' ';)r 'l c Hrrnnv •N t i eiu: ::t•c.ng -::,,h • •\ /::'rwr<.1t ~ 

Looking to 2012 
:-. t<-> rr - int "'?.l~S n 2C'11 t; poj1t •)rt tt::= Gvrrpany for cor1t1m .. ::'o ·:n .. x-PSS w tl1 :"'.IO 1c•..; •• , tlt'l13 +r ~t nt1 Jrrce.;; 

1.Jr ~b I tv tJ -=x·~CL.t~ our s•rat1.:>•'\ c~ lecorr rl:: fr e r;!ob,;! [.,;,1.1er n 1eal-t ! '· 11~ X'' 'Jt 011 in·.~ .r.i<t/ <> r:. ,,,.,,.;on 

... drt:"l-' ng . .;·;':; r.ih,nal1~r;:o our c~ip1rnl t..triwt11re <Jn(1 rY orO\t:d u\;: 01 ~<1n: ,;: ~HI.JI s•1 uct1,,"' • • f::c:•~r i.:i:c::. v'l-rr' _,K 11P. 
1nd ~Y<:C"I On. !it:: t:,.:";",'.1dc:J th>::! <:;ecfvrS 1rd Cl..<>t•'l"''?t"i '.e ~r·:e. dnha11C"'r'. 01...r :'<!I\' o;e:;, •.1rlC C:t:I \t:r-·d tj·,..,r, '211 it+; . 
.;•:c•.Jr•~ly. untJ on t'r-.e. ~·:e ~ont-r.ui:d rn r" r.;;igt- \'l".! r-.?l>C: ·t"'"' .,?;,.,"-'an..:: 'let. '3'.~rJ ltJr l. ,r'--..t·e·.e-r ~ ,;, _, d ;• ~ n t ,.., ): 
'r· · cl r '·'' >t•)"'1·.;rs. '"'1 0 ,., l I pl..tv a : tal r.;(~ : 1 ,1 ~·; •J nt: h•)W dn"'l t;11 vvl1•)r•i rt10 NPJ\r ... ' ·:, 1tl 0 1; .. ,,'l j• ··~·.:! 11 i ,, '1.1<•~1 •• 

LO:...>'- n:: to 201 ~. htt Ntll "u1.l 1;, r)ri !~v·:;r:c1g1nt; our nt:•:,! i "l"Q• .... red "\.;SlrJr"'·" b1>Se IY'J Cat,i ~~t$ 0'3 ·, •1\c:'~f·1t~ tJ· ..:II rl'') 

c' r "'tr"'<1G'·, stru"g or~ar zst on (;• ·a t:.fiT"O ;:c.:.r" ct"l c r,stes ••1ar..: 12. !I 1 :'e ;no•r er 0~c1• ng 1<>s1 tinCJ rr1::.it r-ku::;tm 
Nd! i (•nr·111.~ ~·) ~·~rT·JtJ', ·er O•·• sndd~·l JE:1 ·; 

On behalf of all of us at Neustar, I thank you for your continued support. 



In 201 '. ~~~ustar co•11.1n11~d i•s i <;•1sft1rm3tior from n cl.=>ar n~;hous~ pro,, id er to a k:aoing orovtd~:r 

of <>1Jdri::• Sim~. routirig. ".JPJ oo• ic' rn:.v1a·,,ern~nt for the r,~rnrnurik :· iori:; arid ln~ern~t i;ecors. T .,,_ 

.~-..-olu~ion is o-.h i tionim~ r-ri:;u~-tar m o-'corri~ ;.1 le3di?r i•1 r .. <11 :in'···· 1'lt ~r-i1a·ii:ioi a•1d a11r1lvs s o.:is0d 

Ow !).~Se of dS-:..:;-ts exp:.ir 1lk·.l ti) 1 ~lu·.1e Ev1)l1i'l;J Svs:00'ns. 111c..s n•J'l1t,ie··ing .;;SS•"t3. ;J 1kh v1-:: ..icqu.red 

L" ..:ul'!, as v::::ll ..;.S TARGUS1rofo, d pr JV•der -: '"•<?oil ti·ni:: 01'-1Je•1«''<nd 1•1fori11at101 • <.ir11j <1'1::.!:, tic:> S··~'Vlcr:;:-,, 

/.;·1ic:.•1 '.\::? au1u1r':?c.:J in C-:o•«::·noe-. PYo 1~" :'le TARGUS1qf0 Jcg ::s1t10f". '\1€:u3tar .\ !l t.c :bl"' ~o le"v~•-.1 ie 

01.Jr .... 01 nbir1t:d inforrnanon a·1<.1 preL11ctivt> an'..llv11c3c~p101t1·1e:> in fast ·g ")"' ir;~, tr:H•kets Ii;,.;: t<:?ad 

·:i::rif1c.atio•1. onlins ac:\~•:is•'l'~. arid 'cca1 $E:8fC'1. 'i1e a•H :10.-. l-:ed oosncne<J w 1ilGr•'··'.t~-.e cur rr;a• 1,.,,.t 
""'11.l ,.., Cit•; .3 fa~< -~ro.-w1~ ~~30 ti· l1l··1 n :irke:. 

T·'i;' purC'l::l"e of.,.,.; E'nlv n, Svs·erri.:, 'l!;Tof'•i'lg uSS'?<S. meanw1ltlE'. ·r;ablea ~~ .... st..ir "'J !:'1'>i:":nC3 ct.r 

"-'':"'',·ice :u t1l·" H.:-• .. 11 A•n··•it;.J'1 f-J1.<•nbv ·it: Plar Ar mi·11s:-a:or ,\h .E: a,<::o m.nc• Ji 1£ u '11J'l11-~ 't, 

1:1"1,il'(~ics (1usi-i8s.;. Dur l·lurnoc=ring Po•"&od1•y .Ad r 11ir- ~;t ;it.cri Ce'1'e• (\·JP.AC' >i1J~;•'it.'S:. co·1·1• ue<> ·o 

.. 1e a valuacl~ :i'"id .v:::i1·•u•1 .;e \r1C€. a..: i;:v11'.li>,.1C.,.:J 0y-··~ ;;~t ·nat 1'1 2.0' • .vi: :ic:rh'"!8<.:J our 11if''lt';;t .. 8vt>1 

cu ·•0·1 ·Jr s·1· c;ta"' 0" .~ir:'. i'.?u'.:a,'s NP~,c is a ,.,_,,(l-.. st-;oti"'he..:: o•~s:'•E:<;<, :l'ld ·.=.m1i,.,s 1 "n·1·:3, 

T11·ou~"ou•Cdi"'•?•Se, ,,-;.' l\FACti.l'> "'>':::.>as ;,e·t .;ou•c:t1 .. •i"'f')• 1 d:1cf"anu 

I· .. ~l1.:;:a1 orc..\11<~~3 v0:111e tG '' \·~ ie!·/ ut i ·' 1:....s·ri~s 'lJ8 p'ov;rJ,:;' ·ea 1 .. , ,.,, · ·1·· 'T' _1 • ·1 

J • . 3.4 billion global telephone numbers. 2.8 

billion global IP addresses 5.5 million global domain names, • 14.3 million U.S. business listings. 

i .,,, -~ ; ·~, .... _,,"'.) 

~ _ i 0f .. I:?. a i.j.; J '-=' • / Ov.-"'' ·q"" res0!.Jti,, r1 er :'•- r .·: 20 million global Int ernet domains. 



fhe en:ertuinrnant industry ,..,,c05rn2eJ our s!.1ll 1n oo,,,rat;rg co•npltJ~ direciories tlawle<.>s\y a 1d 

2lec:ed Neus1i:1r tu fJl.Jlki and ot1ernte ;,rir~ un<.1t:rly1 ng rect 1 11010~:1 for UI t "aVrolet . This d · ·~1t;3l IJKk'~,. 

~ys:e• er.ables pr:;ool"" ::o ourchase;;, DVD or d1p.,i•al 'TIOV•e arid ·va:cn it iinyv-.'1:.;,ro.. a•1yri••1e, .,,nd on any 

d~vir;e. i•Jetl':>ta/"' s.:.lection unde•scores 0•J• •Jorn-ni:rn.:--i~ rn neut'ality as ~·.~U as Ott' understan':l1ng of 

doud . .,;erv1ci::s. 

Duri qg 2011 . Neus~a·· rec111i-.ed a f[!Jmber of -a!':''1t€d Se!' ::ir ey.:.,;u~ili%. In Mclrt:rt. sc,:,:t Bbke !.."! °'.?' rj~. 

Joined ~'1·? tearn and :;erves as Gen>?rnl Counsel <rnd ..Jen1Jr Vic·, President of E <ter 11al Affa1rn lri July, 

Neus\a' ra•ned Mark Brt>gman as our "19 ;v Ctui:::f fo(''lnol,,6y ~ 'rf:ce•. T•1e'l m ,Jn iuary :.:o 2, ~nr 1sti n<:i 

8r.o-nivm carne 0·1 O•;!:l'd as Se-i10· Vic"1 Preside it ot HJ nan Resou c~s. 

f•1101,1g}·out 20 1 I, 'I':~· ..;::oo oa~ 1 dt>velop1"lg .;t··:;:t~!S•-?S th;,ic hi::\o u.; buuv on Ol. r ·on.::ider Jb.e =1sse·~ 

11nd <;tr~:'1I'H1s t(1 nr::lu t 11 1.~ world arou11d us. For e.<<H11ol<>, ~ne ·· ~ ... 1y Digi::;I L fe" o" ~, 3 , : .·11c'l ;.as 

h.1•.1nc11>:d oy Ne.i-:.:ar .::"'l•:. Eve F1 :n onrly ~;)1 ~. ai ns ~o irnµr<'N'=' digi:1::d lit•:iacv a'ld rpsoc1'1~·iJ:,ditj' 

in ou• schco!s. Si•nilady, N1?ustJ(s d·:dica:ic·1 -o our .;orwm;r11ty and eriviro11rr1E::·1':..;l ::i .;serVotiO'l f.;:o 

11s w d1.«s;..,n a rii~:nly·effa.:1em 1 ew f1t:adql·3rter•;; uu1lrJi ~ i•1 Sti::c1ing. Virt~inia \\'1 cl" f"'·-~tv~d LEED 
Ct"r:1t1catir:1'l f-cm i:h? JS. Green Bu1!d1ni Counr.11. 

t~s vVcl nerid 11-i-o 201 ;:. we will CO'ltrnu.:. -o str·e:>c: :hi': 1moo':a1' ~., Jf '~1v1rir~ back ~o ow "C'l1'1iU i:y 

ir11te <~,<e,;u;:1ri.,, ot, .. v1,;ior' to nccorrn: a ·.rllirld l ~"·::ier 1'i \>-:;l-ti1ne inforrn:~tion 1111d .:Jr1uly• 1<: l'yJsed 

on a~ure~~inq. 

I 5 l \ .. -~" 



Neustar is a trusted, neutral provider of real-time information 

and analysis to the Internet, communications, entertainment, 

advertising, and marketing industries throughout the world. 

Using advanced, secure technologies. Neustar provides 

addressing, routing. policy management. and authentication 

services that enable custoMers to find their end users, route 

network traffic to the optimal location. and verify end-user 

identity. With expertise in database management and analysis. 

Neustar also provides cybersecurity. marketing, and advertising 

information and dnalysis to customers. Neustar provides services 

to both comn 1unications service providers. or carriers, and 

commercial businesses. or enterprises. f\leustar s services are 

delivered through a secure. robust technology platform and rely 

on unique. extensive. and privacy-protected databases. 



CARRIER SER'llCES 
Numbering Services. ~~~ 1..;~ar cc-err.it% a•'d ms1"·a11s .u:nor1ta!:1v<> ;J.j"aoa • .-s t ": 'leto m.Jna '"'" 

'11? 1·11 •e-11, Jd.: ·'lrl··''' ·; 1'11;10 ccminu •1ic:&:1o'ls 1•1du:»ry. i'J<.:w>t<Jr (;•1.;u us •l'tl ·~-' rpli:-s., ~~'1·'i=-c.t10·1 

,,f cnrrri:> s' nu•nti'Old qi:,u. o k.,, ,-,n,t6 <:l S~j o::;'lh 1 •1c1rir; trm cap1:101l1t1es ;;rid Oo::;rrc,rrnanr.e <JT I 10ir 

f~a~:· uc~U''?. N<'-us·;;r's U'11q1,r.: ".~tof Jataboses enables c:::rrie•s ;o 0..it3rn rfa.·3succe:3sf1Jl1 to' 

+'le dyn.s•111c rou::1n~ ot :elepnone calls and :exr m7ssa~.:>S ;n t'l~ Ur11r..,. I ... t"'t~s a1d '.:::::nada. Us rig 

+r1eSe Cl.:i:r,O<lS•'o::. \J..>11s:nr 01 CVllJ8S 11LJ'1lt•'-'1 irlC <3t::"VICE:S to ca•· 1e··5, jq~f Ud1' f~ j\J urr l.)J?r Por•:uG1k'j 

Adrnir1 ...;- Hon C.r.:Wt-r '·lPA.:J 5t'"»' c<>s. t·1PAC Servi o;:;$1'1 Ca"<tCa cir1d l cx~o 1 i-.u ,r,f:)r Por«v1l1tv '.I.NF; 

''1'.iOI·~~~ ca •r er'> ~o rn::t' l(lt•· :heir '1•·"t\".'Or 1,~ rror~.: stt1.;i•"''1tly by r ·~rt• aHv 01·QCCSS1' P, esse·1t sl cnr 1";-' 

·,:,y u.~e ·o '0 P :o• rnu 1se:1t1or.::>. 

Order Management Services. ,c..usr·:i-·:: i•d 0~r t"'1ana'-',e 11-rir Services OHSJ 1nclu.:ie lt ····t:''.f'C.t-· 

,Ci ·~f": r• v1:y-'1'0t.:P, 1 !he ... 1·· t.~ l ·eC'j( p o•.,,1t; [;i>'m. c.arr •''"· 

• 'QUF 1 3 I r ·1le 1'1 (;'•·a.•·. ·o t'v(. "I g<> l;i>;;Se' ... l 0 : ;• -g d- -a N t'1 m" ••µle ~<1rn.,, s <1 c oi:<r 

IP Services. r,1'"11s:ar [/(f)'J r'e~, ~r:8ladt: ,~,-~"'vie.:::<:. ·o -:tub&!-:::.·',~,~;:· R r::na,il.<::. E·n •c r ... ··~e 

<.1 ')J•,r ., J' Prcr mL.n1.m ·;r:s .. ;t.r: ,s •nii.tirn.,,di::i !11·~~.:.rr,;1 1 1 ,: . .;.r-,1r:e. frl"J<:."'J P 

0 -. ... • :. r <nCL,.·y ~-- 'n ooirb di; ,a "" .. _.·01 •-:: "(' -~ P "Odress fer CCU ::i•.:- ~r i ·- e 
":_1ti 1 "i--~ '":.O V Cd' r1.:~r\: ' ~ ... '.'Jf".sf"/.. \..::.1_.s~a,. ~I '". .. ~ .:ar aol.,ls ~ 1 tec~ r-•e• t:: ;,i: -t-c, ~'4-wv..Jr, O '.::r P~ ~e:"--=&'"' 

ct.· e - fJ ,:.,1c::: .. , 1d,·G. ~. 1(1 ~.:) ren· 5":PJ1Ct-f. 

) 



• • t 

ENTERPRIS= s=RVICES 
Internet Infrastructure Services. '~i::ustar .. ,, ':.'!Ides 1 s :.~13 of or~s Se''V!Ct": to entg or S/3 GU:;.:cm.,.r3 

Ju.tr0~ lglou l•Jl1·~c-,,.vot~ torrn T11;;:~·?l'1te11it»fr1fr ,s;:ri.1C"wE:Si::·v1·;espldyu'.l.~y·..:te1• d fl'.C«ng 

afld '113'1 .g:ng lmer'l<"t-.: ;;f'ic flo'f, . r~$ol-.;:ng 11'-e ri::,: quc» 1<>:-;. o'ovidmg SE:cun·1· oro;ectm•1 a>;..ii•1;3': 

r -ern<>· b ::;3c;h<:ic; ca Jed Jistricutec! ue'i al er S9r'.1ce a-:a ,hs, pro·11ai g tor,a.:1011 se vie.:.-- useo 

.,, e 1nance rrnud or;;:';ent1ori a'1cl )'i{ir ,_ rna•ke"i'\,. ':l'1d mon1:or '1~. :'-'s:ir,. s•10 m':'3Slnng tr.e 

ce: fc""'"fl' r-;(e c r ;.eo~,·~:s ar1d n*='t~'.·Od,:,. 

Registry Services. '·ler;cl ar ooe· ar~s • .,,~av no.-.r·mvu rCJf'" t re:> o· Too LPvd Do•l'cJI 1 Tl 0 narr ·'" f 

;;) ~ I .i:'3V"'I d0"15•!1$. r·.eus:~r <"LO pr~v1cJ.~:o I lt(;r' <-l'IC'16l ··~111str / •-',.37~'1'1a'/!> to1 

0 1r ,;~ . .;n <:t'l'J diwa•I.; .:·:, ·cc1n·ry coJ::: -LD:::.A 11 :er~": :0mrnt,· 1c .:10• s ·o ~d o a'1Y T :ri""o.'!: 

doni<·,1 •S nus· 'JIJt>r J.; cooy or f'Jo:>.us' J•"s d11 ec:c» y ·o er s JI&-..,,,. ·11e , ~rnrP 'l · : c· ,.:; 'Or.. ted ·.,;: .,. 

-noro r ;-,,, :Jes~ na- -ri . '"'-;.:. s10.r c~e1 i:H~3 · rie a 1trc·1· a-1vi:: C.: rn r•)rl S·-iort CGtkS re1:1s11·10•1 r."''lalt 

;~··::U.'~. -.i •'8.3" •d.1s:·1.'·1:-;.d;1-o', 0 !eu ~a ODE: J:es 'e1!1. :alcor•er;:a •,,.:;,..·~ ... : 'd'€C:cr;. 

,.,ri1c•1s 1Doo•!.;;T. w•.Jl"rn'!olP.1 d ,r-Jlcon·e·i· tl'.),i-~····1":..Jr .'J c--co· ~u "''S"J ,.1"a.,·;::>5,;•') 



lf\JFORMATION SERVICES 
Identification Services. ~,J,,u~:·v· prov1d&c; Calle• 10 s::.:• •1ic'2s to ca• ien;; l'l :~ .-.. U.S. arid r:::a,-•1rn~ 

1•.18'111t1•_at1u~1 ., 1 j •)( :;:1011 >'3rv1ces to ovr:::1 I ,CJOO e1.1s;r w;ses 1n :11e U.S. ~cro:;s mul;:i:::ik 1rioust· ies. 

i·ieus· d'"°s ocat1o'l servic~ r::nablE:<; cl en.s :o ma ten a 1 0-oig.t pnoni?. nunioet" to a la:irud".'I bnd 

longitud::.:. and IS userJ f,y a nurncer Oi applica· C"$, l'lQ!Lo Jinf- 1rn~l11gerit Sile p!.a'ln rg. rrarke;: ~.CO'irg. 

:.nd 'IV':lb·-i)<:sed location lookuo. lrl 3dditlC'1. Neustar pro'-' oes se··:1ces t'1at e·Eble clie 1ts to 'e'1 j;j•·~~t 

!o 'lOr c::i·wo::'"t ng oroso• •"ts anc to n,:·tp 1<1•~nt1tv vvh&:he1 "'n ineound 111rwi ry 1s conw1g trc. .. 11 "'" 

P, ... is·ingetff:Q er0• · r!Yn d prOS')P.C-. 

Verification & Analytics Services.· ''-•~:nr ".' cv1des lead vE:r f1cn~1~ir1 .>·~rvice•, ;:nm ..-.Llo;., cl10rrn ·o 

val1J<1d? ·• 1J:0 "' -.: - ~ :s. - •1c a:;s1~n J \e.;<.: c~11;,1~y r<1~1rg ro '::'f'L 1 lr::::ic :or- c'11c<:: a diet 

•11e ab11lty tu co·1tac· ; cus·orn~r. T'1i~ l':?i.ic.J V'-"'1f1..::at1on CiOPlic;;no'1 h:,,s e .oh·ed i :o a '"a~ sc:' 

t-rv1ce. w 1cn as-1gn-:; a real--1'11.:i O• -ciic·P. e s:::~:re to vmound •t:l..:.onon·~ and Neo lea(1:>, and or ... ,! :.t<; 

1,'lid' prc.;pec:s a·e n' )S• kE:ly ·:>-:: ~'. "'' • 1r1!0 ~u~to.Y.~rs; a· o 'V oecom8 ·1 • 1-•r1lu·: usto'.l"l·=r s: er •er 

.wr('rit r-. .. stcrner~. ,,,,,J 1 l..,.;,,ds ... 11l 1"'" oo.,d ·,)a SOt>L' fie .ic.-se.l 01fe. 

Local Search & Licensed Data Services. ,.;,, ·a· o·o·:rJ.-.3 a!l er· .i'18 lD ~I ::,u.,;iness: bt n~ CP'l. tv 

•1ft11< ..:•n 'n! <i( lt,-1,,n - 11: s,:,vt:s 1r·r:"t' 5'-'a·«:n ot1:t'f'v·'T <:., natiO"iJl ora'ld::l .... u.ro 1;:aJ c• d' ni:>l 

rtr:rio:-'S -. :1 era t;,u.,•'leS:o-·;. Trii'> .se1,. i .:; p ow:Jes ..;u.-.v·es.;;es -i cl:; ar iel Oi:l"n8rs t .0 PS<'E" t ei? 

~oots ·o ve· •y,::. 1 uri-;-a. and ma ~~e •ns d~"ti:y or ccal l's:mgs ::'1 :,-.,I se ~rcr ~l :ii:lifn>" ~·cs.; i:"e 

Ne:.\.;•1d0Tt8'S"1d:·.;H ::ic·it,,v '"•p1a--forr15 n·cc,vat-=>.~c·ns·le·,.,,.1'ld 1r-t1- l.ited.J·aoa~.:: tlt:X..l 

, t1<:.1'1e5s 11 ,., ., 5 ;vr ;'1! It" p1,U1<>h11 g. 



:n :201 1. N<:u.;:ar drarna\it:.::.lly e~oonde<.I its rooust :;oci<1l ·::>spon:::ibili ~y prr.1gr~un by laur1cl1irig riew 

or:::granis ail"f!-::d a~ imp·ov.ng sd~nce. ~Gchnolcgy. ~ng1nee'i"g. ard ma:.hemaw:s ~STEM) educ.i-ior. 

and C•ur e'wironr11ent In 2012 .<rnd bey0:·1d, ~,l•:.us~a- plc,ns ·o conti·1u~ 'nakir.gcoroorate tiOCiai 

•esoo· 1sio l ty a pr or ty. 

Our eoat '11!J$ a!'.vays oceri to hvo;ist ou· •tr(:8 <1r'1d IJl(:ney in ir·novat1ve O"•)t(rarns th3t wiH bc-;n~ftt our 

-::riciery. o•Jr X'm'T1Jn1:ies. 3'ld ou· campa·iy. Wr;; b•)li<;;:·.;e ~hat 1riv:0st1'1g ·:,;isely i'l tnis •·:ay is not o 1ly tnr;: 

;!gnt tJw1g tv clo - 1t ''" •. 11e ..;'n;:.r~ '•·w1g ~o rJo. 

Fus c1::1sr vc~ar we alsc o<·g:in to \'1i'lk 9bout 1\1.,us;ar"s u•11qu.;, st··8rg•hs and hew., ... ~ could u~-8 thc~e 

... tre·1gtris to morcv.:> 01.1r ~ocr.:;·y HiG r J • co111rru,r11t1es, ;milE: also cJ01•1r; our D•:St for our s~oci<:riold~r~ 

fne an~wE:r was 00'-'1u•Jc. :.;J <:1 \'-C .;s tPchqology .:r10 i"for•r1at1o'i '3°rdcas c.o•r.p<rny w.~, a u1w;iu~ 

und•3'Standing c1t "=-'C'1"1•)lOg)'. neiworV.s, and our dJca-drh't?'l 0:1li•1e c:conomv. we can o·rv1•1e •,,..;.i, 11c3l 

~s:.1stJnce •r; ou· ,;orn•r Jr.• ~s - in: o:·it~rs canriot. 

iv1.;;ny s::Jci:i11i:s do not receive suff r~it:>n~ STE\11 educa<1on T·11~. is rmr:1r;11larh; rrne for vo1.v1g wc.rn<:n . 

.,.oo fo·N st~cen·s ~!e i<nr:wledge<iol~ <Jbr;ut or cc"'lror:aolt:-" rti rech'lol .;Y. Qu• cou'itr: - ..,n..J. 'f""'2-. '.)U 

,,omOi:1'1y- r,~;eUJ d NO• l<fo•.:"' l/'./ltr1 STErvl ~rn1ni·1g and ;:ra: is u~·1'fv•:a>:ile ;/!;tn i:'2Ci'"indogy . 

.;i.o in ;'.O · ·. '/.e Ot.:Jk\3'1 pl.mninp a 'ri2.JOf 1nvestn1"'"~ :n -•u•ri •ri ".Jdl•3 sc'1vol <:'1d 11:~,. 51~1·,ix·l s~udt>'l<~ 

ri •.ti'J1• ;;l '1terscv <F'd r.3s~c is r;.lt~y. P<i• c'ienng 't.1t• E· • .JrFi '-'• 11cn 01 oduv:s • 1 1 1~·+,.. • •:soect.;.(! onlin•: 

tec::ut::.r.:;ria o· l"t~•:.J:r •• Ne ·~c~-itly ln•J'"l('1eo ·My Orf, t; Lite.~"' 'I )l'!t'1e. 1r -$' '•C01 d g1tal 1:r.;.r al'Y 

orQqrnrn t0• stu<Jeq:s. I;: ccw•1··s ''ulJj;::r;:s ra'l~W'g fr\.1 111 •10''' a ,,r,vnourer :m"k..;. to ;:··e oe~er :s a•1d 

01:f.;t r ·:/social ri.:::NO'k1np. ·o ~rie ojn,j-s's of ·e-~•1n~ ,..,11H~ J-1vinr,. ~oho•:, ;:o purs11•:.: carQt:'rS ,., 

•(:C"no'·::;gy. 1.'f.:. a•-? o•fer.•1g hi-::. o'c ~ra•n frf'o;i ot cno•":'"' •o tr:~·: c .'lcol dis:•1C1" •·1 v rg n·.>" Fl ii' ..i~,: JCh':. 

woo.( r .a C.t;··~:cra~~7' nc'It';!S. f!P ,::,: ready ndvr~ otar ~ L·J j.'.~vpat,d T"H:: ~),..Of.,tti 1Tl ... J otrtr r.o· "'rr11:ni:1e . .;11;e 

ull 1(.,'l'•). 

•;~it11 :11i=-~·· s ... m~ 5J~ls '1 rY11·v:!, •11fJ .,;.so c-egar. ·No1 •, ·ng 't. tn Vea•IJp! . a'l l'l'8'l:oi-.1E' rr.~i iirg 

orc:::ra•)' tr 3 t orovirJes tc.w ···cO"'"! ;:c~ ·1g adll!t5. ~.,,~s '8-~4. twh a :omr, •·a~10n of na ·1rj:.=-c.., st 1lt 

11:..ve~OJ)~ne1"t, coll~41>~ C"'ed -~. 3'1d c~· r;or.3t~ i 1ter113i·Ji;)5. t't--?ustar 11::1s r' .... ct five ~!·..:-arUt;! 1rr-:·rn"i. ~·*"··'·') 

Ui .v'1C""i1 '1 ~ flO'J\ c.ern1a.-.~,)i: i"!GlJS:ar ernc~Oyet;;$. ':·Je ~,SO n~v~ beCOffl~ it'l'!O VclG ~...-J1~h :h•~ /'::r· ti 00r-g 

111s:iarte. >1; i :Ii ~·.J'Jl'o.;rrs a·1(1 :::i"or~c·es t.orn<:n i11 t-;::.•1r.01o:;y. ()<J• Ct ·e· ~e~ 1~01:.)gy Orf1ct::r. !-.,1J % 

8r':"1,rn"t'1. is f~" P,e ft1stit1Jt.::s Soa1·tJ. 



H·.:-1..s·ar is cornnN•"'··"' :o "ner cY dfic18nc;, .,..,,..kh_.,nables us to 1.v~s.=;rve our environmen:. ri:duce 

01 ir nat1lm's Jr::oenrJt.' ice on forEiign JOurci::S ;if en&rgy. anu s1.iv8 '1'10·1~1. Our· '1e.;idqu&.rters bu•lding 

1n Srerlmg. v·rginio , ;,s t-C'en~ly LEED c.;.rt1f ed. Tne LEED c1:-rtif1c:non rer,ogn1:e-s ;:ne fa1;1ti·y tcr its 

W'lF",~Y an·:! "" 3;:.;.• t:friciE-l"lCy. rr1a·e1·ial use IJrkg coristruc:ion. or~~up 3 11 hP.al;: 1. ard fin:ncial 'Enw1. 

We <n<.llHJ<-1:e F~lk''"9.Y cor•servatiori, r~;-1:ycling. and E;fiicie•1cv tiw)ug'1out 0ll' iacili' 1<>s. Fo" '-'.~arnmi::. :ve 

us.:: 3uwma:ed Tie~~or.g corn se•1sors :rnd tt"1i::rs ro (r:;n:rol i1r,n:i.,g; autt)m·i·ed, t1rne··CC•nt·oll1:'d 

t:onf~r1:::1t:i11g and v1deoconrer<mcin5 t.1) reduc0 tr<tvt:l. We also pfr1t doubl..:-;;ided docurne•1ts. rel,y<:Le . 

.3 d ou·c"as~ re-ieiNable !"'H:e•ials .,,,tie~ :.--0ssicl;;. 

,.\l;'Jt:ionnily. \It' ha·1e a VOllJtitE;{:r ~Cree') foam"' r~1at lo:::ks &o~ nev, v-.a /S :o imprcv.:. cur ene· f,V efft.:~IE: 1Gy. 

A';j.; re•,ul~ ot·t11ese •nany 8ffor;s. t,Jer1$iar l1:i:; bt>.AI\ rE:cv~niz8rJ as a '"Cer-ift#,;d Cll'Ct?'I 8 1sinr::ss"' O'i 

LOt..d•)Un Cowuv Vt einia. r1on~~ :o CL. •,CT rn:e ~:.ldqU.:.> :ar "'· 

F1ri;:;il1y. v1-c ,.,inpct.er our em:1!c·:oe.3 to t.,,1,r,; coroorme 3,)c1<.1l r':'spo·1s bili:y p~r::.om1l.ly lY':/ g1vine at! f1.d­

tirnq ~·noloy~8S !.'I doy o"t e~r,.-, ,-ear ;:o volurit::i;;.' for ··0·1-:.Yotit.; 'Vid convr>u v:y orga'11za;:ions. 
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U11/e.u rht' c1>1Uext require., othenri.\e. references in thi' report to "Ne1/\rcir." "ll'e." "m." the ··co1111umy" 
and "cmr ·· rt.ferro NeuSwr. Inc. u11d its co11solidated subsidiaries. 

PART I 

ITE.l\1 1. BUSINESS 

Overview 

We nre a trusted. neutral provider ut' real-time informaLion and analytit:s lo 1he Internet, con11nunicntions, 
entertainment. advertising an<l marke1ing industries throughout the world. L\ing our advanced. -;ecurc 
technologies. we provide addressing. routing. policy management and authen1ica1ion ~ervkr.:s that enable \JUI 

cu:.tomer. to lind their end user~. rou1e network traffic 10 the op11mal lm:mion and verify end-user identity. With 
our expertise in d:11:1base management and ana l y~i-;. we also provide cyber security. marketing an<l a<l\ertbing 
inlormntion and analytic~ 10 our cu:.tomer5. We provide >.er" ice" to bl'lh communications service prO\ iclers. {Ir 
carriers. and commercial bu:.in.:s<;es. or enwrprises. 

We were rounded lo meet the technical an<l operational challr.:nge., of the communicarion<. indu~1ry when the 
l:.s. gt)\ernmem mandated local number pnitability in 1996. We provide the authorilali\e solution that lhe 
communications indusu·y relies upon 10 ni..:et this num<late. Since then. we have grown to offer a broad range of 
innO\all\e ~er\'ice:.. including registry :.ervices. managed domain name -.ystcm, or DNS. service:-.. Internet 
Protocol. or IP. ~ervices, fixed IP ge0lo..:ation ~ervic:es. Internet -.ecurity ~er" ice-.. an<l ,.,,eb perform:ml'e 
monitoring -;c;:rvice!.. On November 8. 2011. we acquired Targu~ Information Corpur~uion. t>r T ARGUSinf'o. for 
approximately 5658.0 million. The acqui'>ition of TARGUSinfo. our m.:v. Inform.Ilion Sen ices '>t'gment. 
~1grnfican1ly extend-. our portfolio or services 111 the real-time information and analytic:. mar~c::l and combines 
T t\RGUSinro·~ leadership in caller i<lentilication. or Caller ID. '>en·ice-. and on line infonn::uion c;en ices '"ith our 
•.irengths in net wort.. information ser\.ices. including addres~ inventory management and network ~ccurity. These 
-..ervices are dr.:livered through a secure. robu::.t technolog) platform. and rel} on unique. e>.tensi\e and privacy­
protected databa.\es. 

We \)pera1e in three ~egrnenrs: 

Carrier Savict's. Our rama sen ice~ include numbering -;ervice:.. order management ~crvices and IP 
-;ervices. Through our <>et of unique datab:.i.ses and :-.y,tt!m infr:htructurc in geographically c.11-.per:.ed 
data centers, Wt! manage the increa\mg complexny in the communication~ industry and ensure the 
~ea mies~ connection of our carrier cu.;10111er\ · numerous networt..s. \\hi le abo enhancing the 
capabilities and performance l)f their infr.htructurc. w~· uperale th..: authoritative databa~c' that manage 
v1nually all 1.:lcphont! area code-: and number-.., and enahle the dynamic routing of calb and tcxt 
me~~agel. among numerou' cornpeting carriers m the Lnited Suites and Canada. All carriers that offer 
1dccommunica1ions -..ervices 10 the public al large in the Uni1ed State!> and Canada must acce!>'- a copy 
of our unique <lalab.1.;e lo prop.;rly route their c..:u~tomcrs· call<> and text mt:~),agc<;. W..: also for.:ilitate 
ord..:r rna11<1gement an<l work-flow proce'-'>ing among carriers. an<l allO\" operator!-. 10 manage an<l 
opumize the atldre,,-;ing and n1uri11g. or IP commu111cauon!'.. 

E11taprt.\t' Sen·icl!s. Our enterp1He ~ervice-. include Internet infrastructure -;en it:el.. or IIS, and regi~try 
:.ervice'-. Through our global dircc..:t\.1ry platform. \~e prm i<le a :.uitc ol DNS -..ervic..::. lo our enterprise 
cw.tomer,,. We manage a collection of direc1ories that maintain addre,-.es in or<ler to direct. prioriti1.e 
and manage lmernet traffic. and lo find and re.;ohc Internet querie-. and top-level domain' on hehalf of 
our emerpri~e customers. We .ire the authoritati' e prm ider (,f es-.erllial registry \er\'iCe)> an<l manage 
dir.:ctorii.!S or -;imilar res('Urce-.. t'r addr..:,~c:-.. that our c..:u:-.t~1mer' u'e for reliable. fair an<.1 secure acccs., 
and cunnccti' ity. In addition. emerprise customers rdy on our )>erv1ces 10 monitor and l oad-te~L 

website~ 10 help identify is~ue..; and nptimize performance. We also provide fixed IP genlocauon 
:--crvire!> 1ha1 help enterprises idemify the location or their online consumers ror a variety or purpo~e~, 

... _, 



including fraud prevention an<l marketing. Additiona lly. we prnvide direccory services for the 5- and 
6-digit number string-; used for all U.S. Common Shon Codes. which is part of the shon me!><.aging 
:-.crvic.:e rdied upon by the U.S. wireless indu:.try. 

il!for111atio11 Si•n •iccs. Our information .. en. ice~ include 1)11-demand ~l)lution:-, that hdp 1.:arricr:. and 
eme11xiscs identify, verify. score and hicme customers and prci:.pec.:tive cu<;tomer .... Our authoritacive 
databa<,c~ and -.olution<; enable l)ltr clienL<> lO make informed dec.:i~ions in real time almut con-.umer­
i1111ia1ed internctions on the Internet. O\'er the tekphone and at the point o r 'ale. by correlating 
nm:.umer identifier information \\ ith at1ributcs such as demographicc;. buying beha\ iors and location. 
Thi-, allows our cu~tomer:. to offl•r consumers more relevant c;ervi<.·es and products. and lead:-. to higher 
dient conver:.ion rate~. Our business li.,ting:. i<lemity man:.igement 'en ice:. help local bu-.inesses am! 
11:.itional bmnd' imrrove the vi~1bility of their online busines~ listing:. on local search engines. U-;ing 
our proprietary database. our unhnc <lic;play ad\wlising -.olution allow-. mart..i:ter:-. w di,play. in re;il 
lime. ad\'Crti:.emenls Lhat will be mu'>t rele,,~ml to onlinc consumers without the need for onlinc 
heh:.ivioral Lract..ing. 

Background 

Changes in the structure t)f the 1.:ommunication~ industry 0ver the paM twc• decade~ hnve prc,emed 
mcr..:a-.ingly compkx t..:chnical ,md operating d1allengc:.. \Vh1:reas the Bell Operating System (lllCe dominated 
the l.' .S. tdct:ommunications industry. there are now thousands of service providers, all with Ji<;parate networks. 
fmlay the'e '>en ice pr<l\ ider ... must imerconnect their networl..$ an<l can} end1 other's tr:.iflic to routl! phone 
l'all<;. unlihe in the pa-.1 \\,hen a small number or incumbent wireline 1.:arriers used e't:1blished. bilateral 
relation-;hip-;. In .1ddition. carri.:r-; and enterprise' are deli\ering a brnaJ -.ct of new sen ices w.ing a diwrse arra~ 
of i..:dmologies. The'>e :-.i.:rvic.:c'. which include '01<.:e, data and vidc11. arc used in com bi nations thm arc far more 
comp le\ than the hi-;rorical. um form voice \Cf\ ic.:e-, of tradition:1l carrier'>. 

The i111:rca-;ing Cl)inple:<ity or the communications industry has produc.:cd operational challenge~. as the 
in-hou-.e network management nnd back oflice S}'tems of traditional earners \\ere not c.lesigned to 1:;1pture all (1f 
th.: information necessary for prov1,ioning, autlwrizing. routing and billing thC'-C new ~ervicc~. In pani1:ular. it 
ha" become .. 1g111l1callll} more difficult for carrier\ to: 

/ ,ornrc e11d-1nen. Identify the appropriate dc .. 1ination for a gi\en nmimunic.:atll)ll among multiple 
network' and unique addre-.-;es. -.ueh ,,, wirehne and wircles.;; phone numbL·r<; as wel l a:-. IP and cm.iii 
adtlr.:s-.e~: 

brabfi1'1 ide11my. ;\uthe11111:ate that the user' or the t'~Hnmunications nctwort..s arc who they rcprcs..:nt 
Lhemsch c ... to be and that they :tre authori1.ed to Ll'-C the scr\ ice-. being prO\ iJed: 

Cr11111en Route the c11111111unicaunn across di,parate network-;: 

.\./,mu~c c.111111111111c11rio11.\ tratflt · . . \mhori1e and account tor the e\change of cnrnmumcation~ 1rallH.: 
:11.;ro:>:-. multiple n.:::t wort..~: and 

/'roe£'~.\ 11wnc.1c ti<m1. Capture. procci.ll and t !ear ac.::ounung re1:ords for billing. and gen.;rate !:eUlcml:'nt 
d:ita for imer-providcr cornpcn~ation. 

Enterprise-; 111 the l:nitcd Srnte' and throughout the world have become increa~i11gly reliam on the Internet 
.rnd mher D:-.!S-lw;ed '~'terns to 'uppon th.:::ir bu.;ine,.,,es. \\ ith the gro\\lh in e-commen.:c Jnd the continuinu 
~ffll\\lh or ad\'allccd 0:--JS-ba\Cd COllllllllllication :.i:rvict.:'-, lnrgl' and small enterpri-;cs have incr.:a~e<l dema11d for: 

Im emu Sl!c11nry . .'l..:curity protection :.er\ ice' .igain:.t Internet breache-, and on line I raud: 

.Vt'twork and weh pt•1formancr. Web:.nc pcrlormanee moniwring and te~ting .. en ice\ co 1111pro\e 
on line l'l<:rlonnance. 1:,>mpctiti\·e ad\antage~ <llld po-.nin: cnd-u~er e\perienc..:cs: and 

l?cgis1rr wl'l"icn. 1;,.,.,ential regt'tl) 'en·ices to manage ad<lre,.,e., :m<l acce" to c<mtenL rn a reliable. 
prompt and ~ccure m:mner. 



Comptrnies are under increasing prcs!'.ure 10 predict the fuLure hehavior of customers and potential 
customers. Furthermore, compnnies are looking for more profitable way!> to interact v. ith their custom<!rs and 
pro:.pective custom<!rs. Accordingly, 1herc ban increasing <l<!nwnd for: 

/de11ri.ticario11. Real-time marketing information an<l autbemkation :-.en kes. induding Caller ID: 

Releva111 adrarising. Relevant on line mlverti-;ing soluLions for de,i..top and mobile adverti-.. ing: and 

011/ine 1•isibi/ity. Cmproving the visibility :md accuracy of onlin~ business li:-.tings and ltit.:alized 
o;carches. 

Our Company 

We im:orpor:ited in Delaware in 1998 to acquire our number portabilit}' bu!-.ine'~ fr0m Loci-heed yfartin 
Corporation. We completed thi~ acqui~ilion in November 1999. Our principal executive offices are kicated at 
21575 Ridgetop Circle. Sterling. Virginia. 20166. and nur telephone number at that ad<lress is (571) -U4-5400. 

With the advent or local m1111ber portability. the Internet and mobility. ;md the routing of communication). 
among thou,and-., of ~ervice pr<>Yider~ worl<lwide has become infinitely more c:omplcx. We help ~implify this 
rnmplex environment by providing rt: al-Lime information and anal} tic" -;en ices that enable tru!-ted 
..:ommunication acro~s nctwori-s. application~ and bu'iine~se:-. throughout the wl1rld. We have a ~h~m·d operations 
group that spans across our organi1ation w support our global infra!.trucwre. Our global infrastructure h~1:-. been 
de!->igned IO provide ser\ ices that are: 

Reliable. Our s<!rvice' depend on complex technology that i'i conligured to deliver high reliability 
l"lll1Si~lenL with st ringent indu:.try :rnd cu:..wmer '-l<rndards. We have made a commitment to our 
rn:-.romers to deliver high quality service:.. mccting numerou" measured ser\ ice level requirement-.. :-.uch 
a ... ~y'1cm m·~ulahilit}. re~pvnse tnne.s for help desk mquine!"> and billing a<:curacy. 

Srnlohll'. The modular design of our infra!">truc1ure enahle~ capacity expan~ion \\ ithout \en.ice 
1111errupuun or quahty of :-.i.;rvicc degradation. and with incn:m~ntal inv..:stmenl that proviues significant 
economics of ~cale. 

Neurral. We provide our ~ervice:-. in a compelili\ ely neulral way LO cn~ure lhat no customer or industry 
'>C!!ment is f<l\ored O\cr an:y other. Our d:Hab:l!->es an<l capabilitic~ provide competing en1111..:s \\.llh lair. 
equa l and secure acce~s to C!">~ent ial shared resources. Morcovcr. we haVl' made a comm1tmem not Lll 
prcwi<le the ~:ime '>C1Yices our cu-.1omer' prm 1de. 

fruvted. Thi.! data we collect are irnportalll an<l propriet<1ry . ...\ccon.iingl). \~e h:ne impkmente<l 
,1ppropnate procedures and 'Y"h!mc; to protect the pm acy and -;ccurity or cu~111mer data. re:-.trict acce:-.)> 
Ill our ~rtcms and pn,tec:t the integrity of our databases. Our performance with respect 111 neutrality 
and ~ecurity io; independently .iu<litcd on,\ re!!ular hao;is. 

Carrier Servicev 

\s noted above. our carrier customer~ face incre:L~in!!IY complex technical and operat111g challenge<, 
re~ulting lrt)lll change!> in the 'tructure or the i.:c1mmu111caliOll!> indu.qry (lVCr 1hc p:l!>l two llecaclcs. Through our 
'et o( unique databa:-.e-. and ... y.,1em infra..,1ruc1ure in geographically di ... pe1-..l'd data cent<!r:-.. Wl' managt> th1:-. 
eomple"ity and em.ure the \Camie'' connection of our earner cu ... 1111ners · numc1 ou~ 11el work~- \1 hi le enhanei ng 
the capabilities and perl<,rmani.:e ol their 111fras1ructure. We enable our ('arner l'u-;tomer~ Ill u'e. e\i.:han\?e an<l 
'hare critii.:al 111formatwn. '-llLh a., tekphlme numbers an<l .:ritit:al data assoc1ated \\ ith tl'lephone number~: 
faci litate order management .ir1d wori- f!o\\ procc:-.sing: among carrier!>: aml allow l'perator' It' <lirccL pnori1i1c 
and op1im11.e tht' a<ldrc'><.ing and routing or c:merging IP communication);. particularly as the) migrate to the 
mobile en virnnment. 



Through our Carrier Sen·ices operating segment, we provide a range of services to our carrier customers. 
inclu<ling: 

N11111beri11g Services. We operalc and maintain authoritative databases that hdp manage the im;rea!.e<l 
complexity in the communications indu:.try. We also ensure the seamless connc:ction of our carrier 
customers· numerous net work!>, while al!>o enhancing the capabi Ii ties and performance of their 
inlh1s1rucwre. Our unique !let or database:, enables our c:irrier cu~tomcrs to obtain data succe!.~fully lo 
dynamically route telephone c;ills anti lexl mes\age!> in the United State:. and Canada. The numb.:.ring 
'-Crvicl.!~ we provide to our carrier cu:.tomers U'>ing these databases include number portability 
administr.uion <:enter '>ervices, or ~PAC Ser\'ices, 1 PAC Service<; in Canada and LNP services in 
T~1iw;in and Brntil. or intern:uional LNP ~olutions. and number inventory and allocation management. 
,\dditionally, we enahle can-il·rs to manage their networks more elfo:iemly by centrally processing 
cssenti:il d1angc:-. they use to 1oule communications. 

Order Ma11age111e11t Serrices. Our Or<ler Management Services permit our i.:an-ier cu,tomers, through a 
single interfa..:e. to exchange essential operating data with multiple can-icrs in or<le1 lo provi~ion 
~crviccs . 

IP SerFices. We provide ~ea table IP services lo global carriers that allow them 1<1 m;inage at:ce~s for the 
routing of' IP ,·ommunication-;. such as multunedia messaging -;en ice. Our :-.olutions solve the 
comple\.ily of mapping a phone number to an IP address !'or accurate and reliable routing to a carril.!r':-. 
netv.ork. We also enable direct nelwork-to-networ1' peering between carriers for voic..:, video and 
content services. 

Enterprise Sen-ices 

Our hnterprise Sen ices '-Cgment prm. ide!-. an mnm ati ve ·mite of networ1' and <li rectory services for our 
cmerpri~e customers. We provide DNS solution:-. and lixt'd IP geoltx.:ation <.en ices for emerprises. and -;erve a<; 
the authNit;lti\e prO\ 1der of es,ential registry 'ervice~. We manage a dire<.:tory or similar resource!>, or addres'>e!>, 
\\here cuslmncrs ha\..: rcliabk. fair and '>ecurc acces' and t:onnectivity Lu their data. We maintain a culkction of 
the:-.e e;.,ential diret:tories that maintain ;1ddres~e!> tl) help find am! r..:solvc lnt..:rnel querie!'o ;111d top-level domain~ 
on behalf of our entcrpri'e cu ... tumer'-. Additionally, we provide directory sen ices fo r the 5 and 6-digit numher 
'!rings u~e<l for all U.S. Common Shon Code,, which is pan ~,r lhe \hort mes-;aging -.,ervice relied upon by the 
C.S. \\ irelc'>s industry. 

The range of service~ we offer to our enterprise customers incluues: 

/11temer /n/rci!itruclllre Sen·ia.\. \Ve provide a -.uitc of DNS !'>el ,·it·e, to our enterpnsc CU!>IUmL'rs built 
on a gloh;d directory platform. fhc:-..:: :.ervit:cs play a key role in diret:ling and m:maging Internet trallk 
tlm\. re,olvinu Internet queries, providing 'ecurity protection :igairht Internet breaches called 
Di~lribuled Denial of Sef\ ice allnck!>, providing location ... en·il.C'- useJ to enhance fraud prevention and 
on line marketing, and munnoring, te'>ling anti 1111.!asuring lh..: performance or w..:hsite~ and net worb. 

lfrgi\trY ~en1C'i'\. We operate the authoritati,·e reg1;,1nes ot ln1erne1 d1.11nain nw11es for the .biz .. us .. t:o, 
.tel and .tr:wel top-level domains. W.:. at .. o provide international regi'-tl) gateway.., tor Chma·., .en and 
Taiwan's .tw coumry-.::odc top-le\el domain". All lnterneL <.:ommuniemion~ rout..:<l to any of these 
domains !llll'it querv ;i copy or l)llr dir..:ctory t() en~ure that the conunumcatiun is r('Uled tu the 
,1ppropria1e de:-.1111a1i1m. We also operate the :tulhontarive Common Shon Code:-. ro;:gisLry llll behalf 1>f 
lhe L.S. w1relc-;-; indu<.try. In aJdicmn. \\C operaLe the digital l.Onlent authentication directory. wl11ch 
~uppons the L, JtraYiolet'~1 digiial conterll loc1'er by whk:h con~unwrs can gain acce'!> lO their 
cnt.:rtarnment co111en1. 
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/J~/(wmatio11 Services 

Our lnfomlation Ser\'ices ~egment provides a broad portfolio of real-time information and anal> tics ~ervices 
that enable dienLs 10 i<lemify. verify an<l score their cu1>tomcrs and prospective customers. or prospec1c;, to ddin:r 
customized re!-.poru;e:. 10 a large number of consumer-initiated queries. As an e-;ample, we provi<le marketers 
with the abili ty co tailor offers made to C\)lhumers over the telephone or on the Internet in real time. We are one 
~if the largest non-caiTier providers of Caller ID ~erv i ces, and we provide a comprehensive market analytics 
platform thac enables clients 10 ~egrnent <Ind ~con:: customers and prospcCL'i for real-time interactive marketing 
initiatives. Additionally, our business listings identity management service prm i(fo!> local bu-.ines'>e:. and local 
search platforms with a single. trusted source of verilied busine!>s listings for local searches. Our on line audiem:e 
marketing solution enable~ online adveni"ers to display relevanc advenisemen~ 10 specific audience.;;. increa.-;mg 
the t:ffecti,ene!>!> of onlinc advertising and tlcli\·ering a rm.ire u:.efu l on line 1.:xpericnct: for <.:onsumers ui>ing a 
databa!>e ;iml iargeting S) 'tc111 thm protect a con:.umer'' privacy. 

ltle11rijicario11 Services. \Ve provide Caller ID !>crvice-; to carrier<; in the U.S. and real-time 
1dentilication and location <.en·1l·es to Q\·er 1,000 busine!.scs in the U.S acros~ multiple indu~tries. Our 
lo<.:atilin s1.:1vi<:1.: enables client~ Lo match a I 0-digit phone number w a laticude and longiwde. and i!> 
used for a number of appli<.:ation~ in<.:luding intelligent site planning. mark.et swring, am.I Wcb-ba.~ed 
location lookup. In addition, we pm' ide -;er\ ices that enable cli<:!nts to remarket 10 non-convening 
prospects and 10 help identify whe1her an inbound inquiry i.;; coming from an existing customer or a 
prospect. 

\leri/imtion & ,\nalyric~ SetTicn. We provide leatl verification sen ices that allow <.:lients LO , ·aJidat<:! 
(:ustorner data. enhance lc:!:ids and as~ign a lead quality rating to each lc:!ad 10 pro' idc a diem the abilit) 
10 contact a cu.;tomcr. This lead 'erilicauon application ha-; evtih ed into a kad ~coring scrv ice. which 
a~signs a real-time pretlictive score w inbound tckphom: and web lead:-. and predicts\\ hich prospect~ 
.ire mo-;1 likely lo com en into c:u-;tomers and/or hecome high-value ..:u:.wmer<., or for current 
customer<.. '~hich one<. \viii respond Ill a specilic up-sell offer. 

Lncal Sl!arcli & Licensed Dara Sen·iccs. We pro\'idc an onlinc local bw.im.·s-. li .. aing identity 
managemcnt <.olution that 'en es local '>Car..:h platforms. national brands, authorized dwnnel partners 
and local busine-;,es. Thi~ -;cn·ice pm' ides businessc<> and t·hannel panner-1 the essen1ial to\ils to verify. 
l'llhance and manage the i<lentit) of local li:,.1ings on lot'al '>can.:h plalfomls across the Web. and offers 
local search platforms an accurate. cumpletc and up-to-date database of local busines'> li-.tings for 
online publi~hing. 

Opcrntions 

Sales Poree and 11,-larketing 

,\~of December~ I. 2011. our ~ales anti 111arkt:L111g organi1ution consi:.ted of approximatdy .+61 people \\ho 
work. cogether w offer our customer-. ad' .. meed servicei- and -.oluuons to meet our customer-.· need~. Our \ales 
t1.:ami; \~ork do!-.cly with nur customers to idrn11fy and aJdrt''-" thdr need~. whil\! uur 111urke1ing teams identify 
~'TO\\lllg market\ in" hidl we can offer differenuated higher value services to our <.:U'ilOmers .tnd prospects. 

We have an e\paienced sales and marketing \tall \\ho have e:1.1en::. ivc kn(lwledgc of the i11du:-.tries \\C: st?rvc. 
\\ hich help u-. identify new re,enue opportunitie~ and ncl\\Ulk efficiencies. We bl'lievc \\.I.! ha\..: chN! 
reluuon.,hip" \\ nh our cu~wmers. and we understand their "Y"tem~ and operation~. We have w11rketl d11:.cly \\ ith 
our customers to develop \olution'> <,uch as nati<1n41I pooling, U.S. Common Short Codes. number tr~tn~lalHm 
,\Cf\ 1c.:es, the provi<.ioning of :.ervk·c reque\ tS !°or Voice over Internet Prmocol. or VoIP. pro,·iders. and Caller ID 
'Cf\'ICC!->. 
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Customer Support 

Customer support per~o1111el are respon,ible f<w the resolution of all customer inquiries and provisioning and 
trouble requests. Our staff works do-;ely "vi th our customers to ensure 1b:1t l)Uf service level agreements are being 
met. They c~mtinually solicit customer feedbad. and are in charge of bringing together the appropriate internal 
re~oun:es to troubleshoot any problems or issues that Cll!>lomcrs may have. Performance of these individuals i-; 
mea:o.ured b) cu1;1omer satisfaction surveys and measurements of key performance indicators. 

Operational Capabilities 

We pro\ide our ser\:ices through our •.Late-of-the-art data centers and remotdy hosted rnmputer hardware 
that is located in third-party facil ities throughout the world. Our data center". including third-p;lrty focilitie-: that 
\ve u~e. arc custom designed for the proce<.'>ing and trnnsmi~sion of high \ oluntel. of tram.action-related, time­
'-Cllsitivc data in a highly ~ecurt' environment. We are commillcd to employing best-or-breed tcit,ls and equipment 
for application development. infra-.tnicturc management. opt!ration-; management and information ~ecunty In 
general, we subscribe to the lughest kvel of service ~rnd responsiveness available from ea..:h third-party vendor 
that we u~e. Further, 10 protect the integrity of our systems. the major components of our oet\\Orb.~ are generally 
di::signed lO eliminate any singk point or fai lure. 

We con5.istt:ntly meet and frequently c\.cced our conlrauual ~crvicc level requ1remenls. Our performance 
resuh ... for certain <;crviccs are rnoniton.:d internally and are ~ubjected to independent am.lits on a regular ba-.i:-.. 

Research and Development 

We maintain a re,carch and dcvdopment group. the principal runction of which is to <le,·clop new and 
innovative \erv1Cl'S and improvemcm~ Lo exi~ting :-.ervice-:, over~ee quality control prm:esses an<l perform 
application Lesting. Our processes :-.urrounding the developmem of new ~ervices and improvement to exi:-.1ing 
'e1'1ce-; focus on the challenges our customers face. We employ industry expen~ in .1rea!> or tedmology that we 
believe arc i...ey Lo :-.1.1lving Lhcse challenges. Our qualiLy comrol and application testing proces:-es rocu., 
prcdominamly on resoh ing highly technical i'"ues that are integral Lo the performance of our -;erviccs and 
solutions. These issue~ are iui;:ntifie<l through hoth internal a11d exLcrnal foedbai.::k. mech:mi-;m;;. and conlinuou<.. 
teSllll)! of our applicauon~ and .;ystems Lo en!>ure uptime commen~urate "tth the :.er.,, ice level 'tan<lard' \\e ha\·e 
agreed to provide to our Cll!>Lomcrs. ;\~of Oecemhcr J I . 201 1, we had approximately 137 employees dedicated to 
re,earc:h and devdopment, \\ hich included software engineer,. quality as!'.urance cngmcer,. tcchnic:al projt:c:l 
nwnagers and dornmentation specialists. We expense our rescar..:h and developmelll costs as they are inl·w-red. 
Our rcsearl'h and de,dnpmem expense was $1~.I million. ':>13.8 nullion and ~175 million tor the year<. ende<l 
O<!eember 31. 2009. 2010 and 201 I. respet·tively. 

Customers 

We 'erve traditional pn)\ iders of communications. including local exchange carriers. <.uch as Veri1.on 
Communication!> fnc. and AT&T Inc.: competitive local e\.change earners. 'uch a . ., XO Holdings. Inc. and 
Level 3 Communication'. Inc.: wir..:les., sen·ic:e prov1derl>. ~uch a:. Veri1on Wirckl>s Inc .. and long <lislancc 
.:arricr:.. We abo ~o::rvc emerging provider-.. including Comca-;t Corporation. Cox Communication-;. Inc .. and 
Cbe~<md, Inc .. and emerging prm ider-; or Vo JP <.crvice-;. '\IJCh HS Vonage I lnldi11gs Corp. 

In a<ldirion to sen ing traditic1nal carrier-;. \\e al~o serve a grnwing m11nhcr of cu~tomers \\ho are either 
enablers ~)f !11tcrneL ~crvice~ or pnwidcr:- or information and content to Internet and tdephone u-;er~. Fnr 
e\ampk. cu<;tomcrs for our managed DNS :.ervict'~ indutk a \vidc range or both l.1rge an<l small enterprise:-.. 
including rrgi:-try operator-;. ~uch a:. the Cunadian lmernet Registration Authority. and e-c111nmercc companic~. 
Domain name reg1-;crar;. including Network Solution•;. Inc .. The Go Daddy Group. Inc .. and Web.com Group, 
Inc. pay us for each .hi1. and .us domain name they register on behalf or their cuscomcr~. Wirl'les' -;ervicc 

8 



providers rely on our regi!.try to route all U.S. Common Short Code communications. hut the bu lk of our 
customers for U.S. Common Short Code!; are the information and emertainmenl comem pro\ ider!; '~ho register 
co<lei:. with us lo allow wirele!>'> wbscriber!> to communicate with them via text mc:.~aging. 

Furthermore, we provide real-time data analytics 'ervice~ to a broad customer base thm b loliking for more 
profitable ways to interact with their customers and prospective cu~tomers. Cu:.tomer!> indu<le a wide range or 
companie:-. from Fortune 500 to ~tart-up enterprises, induding tdecornmunications :.ervi<..:e provider~. ~uch a~ 
MetroPCS Communications. Inc .. and marketing and adverti\ing firms. 

Our customers include over 13,700 different corporate emitiec;. each of which il- ~epar:11dy billed for the 
<.en.ices we pro\'ide. reg.ardle-,, or \\hether it may be affiliated with one or more of our other cu~tomer-;. No 
~inglc corpor~ue entity account..:d for rnon.: than I 0% 1)f our total revenue in 2011. The amount or our re\enuc 
<lerin~<l from cu:.tomer\ in.,idc the United State~ w:.b ~431.2 million. S480.2 million and 5571. l million for the 
years ended Decc1nber 31. W09. 2010 :mu 20 1 l, respectively. The amount of our revenue derived from 
cuswmer-, outside Lhe United States was S36. I million. 540 7 millinn anti $49..l million for the year<; ended 
December 31. 2009. 20 I 0 and 20 l I. respectively. The amount of ~rnr revcnut:: 1.krived under our contract<; with 
North Amaican Portability \1anagement LLC. or N,\PM. an industry group that represents all 
1ekcommunicatfons 'crvice providers in the United Stales. was 5306.1 million. 5337.1 million and ~374A 
million for the ycrnr-; ended De1.·embcr 31. 2009. 20 I 0 and 2011. re!>pectiYel}. rcpreseming 6Mr. 65<'f and 60"'r or 
our rcvenu.; fur th..: years ended December 3 1, 2009. 20 I 0. and 20 11. rcspe<.:tivdy. Our tolal revenue from our 
contract~ with NAPM indu<le' re\'enuei. from our :-JPAC S..:rvice\. <.:onn..:ction -.en ice~ rdatcd to our NP . .\C 
Sen ices and NP AC-related s;,. stem enhancements. 

We have thre..: operating segments. Carrier Scrvi1.·cs, Enterpri"c Service:-. and lnformatilin Services. which 
are the ~ame as our repurtahle M.:gment". For further discussion or the opaating r.:~ults of our 'egmenb., 
including revenue. ~egmem c:ontribu11on, con•mlidatetl income fn,m continuing operation~. total king-lived 
assets. goodwill. and intangible assets. as \\'ell a' 1nfornuuion concerning our international oper:.uion-.,. 'iee Note 6 
.md Note 16 to (lUr Con!>ulidat..:d Financial Statements 111 Item 8 of Part II of thi!> r..:port. 

Competition 

Our 1,,e1>ic..:' m1J!>l frequently compete agam"l the in-hou!>e :-.y:-.t.::m:. of our cu1,,tomer,. We belu.'"o! our 
:-...:niccs offt:'r greater rdiability and llcxihility 1m a more co,t-crfec:tive ba!>i~ than the"c in-hcluse -;ystcms. 

With resp..:ct to our roles a~ the Nonh American Numbering Plan Admini,trawr. National Pooling 
\d111inistr:.1tor. ,1<lmini~trator or lrn.:al number !)\>11abilit> for the commumcation-., imJu,try. operator of the sole 

.1uthoritati\'C regi11try for the .u~ and .hif. Internet domain narne.1,,. and operator or the sok authoritative rcgi..,try for 
L.S. Common Sh1wt Codes. there are no l>lher prnvider' currently pro' iding the \ernces we offor. Ho'"e'er, "e 
were awarded the comnu.:ts I<' :.idn1in1ster lhe~e ~er\ 1c..:s in open and competiti\'e procurement proc:e-;~i::~ in which 
we competed against comp~u1ies including Accenture pie. Climputer Sciem:c' Corporauon. Ile\\ ktt-P.1c~ard 
Company. International Bu11ine~s .\fachinc.., Corporation. or IB~I. Nobli:.. Inc .. Nortel Nctwdrk11 Corporation. 
Pearson Education. Inc .. Perot Sy•aem;; Corpliration. Telcor<li ~1 Technologie,. In<.: .. wh1..:h i-.. mm a'' l1t1lly 11wnetl 
sub..,i<liar) nf L;\.l Eric,~l'l\ Telephone Compan}. and VeriSign, Inc. We ha\'e renewed or .:xtcnded the term I)[ 
\e\ er~ll or these c:ontrat·ts. ~ince they we: re first awarded to u~. Prior to the expiration of tiur contra<.:1<. in June 2015 
to pro\'i<le ~P.\C Sen ice~ II\ the Cnited Stat.:s. our competitor.., may submil propo~als lo replace us "" 1hl.! 
provider of the ~cn· ic.·c11 cm ered by thes.c contracts. In a<l<lilion. NAPM has initiated ,1 .,elecuon prm:e<>' for the 
adminis1r~1tion or NPAC ~en1ce-; upon the expiration of our e\is.ting NPAC <:ontracts in June 2015. Similarly. 
with res.pe<:t to our crimract<; to act a.; thc North American Number Plan .<\d1nini!'tr~llN. the Natkinal Poolin~ 
.\dmini~trntor. opcrator of the authoritati,·e reg111try for the .w .. and .bit. Internet domain n:.1mc~. and the operator 
~,f the authoritative registry hir U.S. Common Shon Code:,. the relevant ..:ounterpany could cl.::ct not to ex..:rci~e 
the extension period under the contract. if applicable. 11r to terminate the contract in accordance with irs terms. rn 
which ca~e \\·e C\)Uld be forced to ..:ompete with other providers 10 continue providing the :;en ices covered by the 



relevant contract. However. we believe that our pos1uon as the incumbent prO\ ider '' ith high customer 
satisfaction or these services will enable us to compete favorably for comract renewals or for new contracts 10 
continue lo pro' ide these ser\'ices. 

While we do not face direct competition for Lhe regi~try of .us an<l .biz Internet domain names. we compete 
'"ith other companie~ that maintain the regif.Lries for different domain names. including VeriSign. fnc .. which 
manages the .cvm and .nel registries. Afilias Limited. which manages the .org aml .info regbtries. and a number 
of managers of coun1ry-,pecilic domain name regi•.trie:.. such as .11k f0r domain names in the United Kingdom. 

We compete against a range of providers of carrier, enterprise and information services. as well as the 
in-house network management and information technology organizations of' our cu<;tomers. Our competi tors, 
other than in-house network :.yslems. generally fall in10 the'e categories: 

~ystems integrnrors such as Accenture pie, Hewlett-Pad.arc! Company, IBM. Oracle Corporation and 
Peroi Systemi. Co1vora1ion. whid1 develop cui.tornized solution!> for ca1Tier<> and in !>Orne C<he:-. l)~rale 
and m:mage certain back-onice sy-;tems tor carriers on :tn outsourced basis; 

with respect to our Order :\.fanagement Services. companie.; ~uch as Sym:hrono.,s Technulogie<.,. Inc., 
Tdcordia Technologies, Inc .. and Synivcr;.,e Technologies, Inc .. which o rfor Ct)mmunic:nion services. 
including inter-carrier order procc~sing and workllow management on an outsourced basii.: 

with rc)>pect 10 our Internet Infrai;trncture Services. companies :,uch as Akamai Technologies, Inc .. 
Alilias Limitc<l. F5 Networks. Inc., Keynote System-;. Inc .. Complmare Corporation. and VeriSign. 
Inc .. whi..::h compete with us in one or more or our DNS Sen·icel>. including internal and external 
managetl DNS sc.:rvicl's. network monitoring and load testing; and 

with rc.:spect lo our Information Services. companies such as T:-.JS. Inc .. eBurcau. LLC, Ac.>. iom. 
Nielsen Holdings N.V .. DataLogix International Inc. and infoGROUP Inc .. which compete with u<; in 
Caller ID. lead \'erilication and ~coring .md market anal) tics with re!>pect to relevant online athenising 
~olutiuns and local s~·:u·ch busim:ss listings. 

Competitive fac1or~ in the market for our services include breadth :tnd qua lily nf ~ervice~ offered, reliability. 
\C.:<.'urity. cosH.·rficiency. and cu-,tomer -..uppon. Our ahiliLy 10 co111pcle !'>ucce<;<;full)' dt•pends on numerous 
facwr<-. both \\ 11hin and outsu.lc our control. including: 

our rc.:spon,iveness to cusLOmers· needs: 

our abil ity IO suppon existing nnd new industTy i.tandards :inti protocols: 

our ability to continue de' clopmcnt of technical in no\ <ttions: and 

the quality. reliability. <;ecuricy anti price-competitiveness tif our '>ernces. 

W.;; may not be able to compete '>llCCt:'i..,fully again!>l cu1Tcn1 or future competitor<. and competili\ e p1e..,~urcs 
1hat \\'C face may matcriall) and :1<.h-er:-.d) affect our busincs ... See "Rist.. Factor - Ri~k!> Rel.lied 10 Our 
Ru'iine!-.~ - The mart..et for ccnain c•f our carrier. enterpri~c and information ... crvices is competitive, and ir we do 
not :\dapl to rapid technological change. \\C could lo~e cuswmers or mnrket o;hnre:· in Item l \or thi-; report. 

Employees 

As 111' December 31. 2011. we employed I A88 persons worldwide. Nnnt: of our employee), ~tre currently 
rcpre,t!nted by a labor union. We h:l\e l\\)t experienced any work ~toppage!:'> and consider our rel,1tion-.hip \\ilh 
('Ur l'lllploye.-;-, lo be good. 
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Contracts 

We provide many of our '>Crvice:. pur;unnt to private commercial and government comracts. Specitically. in 
the United States, we provide wircline and wireless number portability. implement the allocaLiun of pooled 
block-; uf telephone numbers and provide net\\Ork management !>ervice~ pun.ualll to s.::ven regional contracts 
with NAPM. Although the Federal Communications Commission. or FCC. has plenary authority over the 
administration or telephone number portability. it i~ not a pany to our contrac1s with NAPM. The North 
American Numbering Counci l, a federal advisory committee to whic:h the FCC has delegated limited oversight 
re'>ponsibilitie~. review-; and over.,ees NAPM':-. management or these contr.icts. See ··- Regula101y 
Envminment - Telephone Numbering." We recognized revenue under our contracts with NAPM primarily on a 
per-transaction b~1sis through December 31. 2008. and the aggregate fee<; for transaction~ processed under these 
contracts were determined by the Lota I number of transactions. 

In January 2009. we amended our ~e\en regional con!racts with NAPM to provide for an annual l'ixc<l-fcc 
pricing model undt!r which the annual fixed fee. or Base Fee. wa' '\et at $340.0 million. S362. I million and 
S'.185 6 million in 2009, 2010 ;:ind 2011. reo;pe..:ti\ely. and is subject to an annual price escalator or 6.5'7r in 
c;ubscquerll years. In the ~·vent that the volume of transactions in a gi\en year is above or below the contrnccually 
e:-.tablished \ olume range for that year. the Ba~c Fee may be adjusted up or Jown, rcspe<.:Lin:ly. with any su<.:h 
adju:-.tmenc heing applied in Lhe fo l lo\\ ing year. The amcndm.::nt:, also pruviJe for a li\ed credit of ~-W.O million 
m 2009. $25.0 million in 20 I 0 and 55.0 million 2011, whid1 will be applied to reduce the Ba~e Fee for the 
applicable year. Additional credits o l' up Lo $15.0 million annually in 2009. 2010 and 20 11 may bt: Lriggered ii' 
thi:: cu,toiner., reach certain lcvds 0f .1ggregate tdephonc number imcntories and aJopt and implement c.:rtain IP 
fie!Js and t'unctit1nality. 

Ouring 2009. our customers adopted and implemented these IP fields and functionality, and e:m1e<l S7.5 
million (II' the .1dditional credits ;i.., a re-;ult. but did not reach the le\ els of aggrt!gate telephone number 
inventories required to i::am ;idditional credits. During 20 I 0 and 20 I I, our <.:uswmer!> earned all or the available 
additional credit:-. of S 15 0 million l'or the adoption and implementation of certain f P licltls ;.111d func1ionalit~ and 
the allainment of 'pecifo: le\ els of aggregale telephone number inventori e~. 

Under the ti~ed-lee model, our fees are billed to telecommunication~ service pro\'iders based on their 
allocable "hare or the total transaction charges. This allocable ... hare i-; ba ... cd on ead1 respc<.:tive 
telc<.:ommunil:ation' -.er\.i<.:e pro\.id..:r"s share 0f the aggregate end-ul-.er servicel- revenues ol all 
U.S. telecommunication'\ <.ervice pro\ ider<; as determined by the FCC. Cnder these contracls. we abo bill a 
rewnue reCO\ery collec1iom., or RRC. lee of a percentage of monthly billing~ w our customer'.\. 'vhich is 
available to u~ if any tckcommunications ... ervicc provider fa ils to pay its allocablt: ... hare of total tr~1t1'iactio11 
charge". If the RRC le.:: i:-. in,ufficient for that purpose. tlll~'e contracts abo prm.iJe for the recmery ol o;uch 
di fferences fn1m the remaining 1eleco1111111111ications o;erviee J)l'O\·ider .... Under the ... e contracb. u-.er-; of (IUI' 

directory \cn·ice' abo pay fee' to connect to our data center and additional fee'- for repons that "e generate al 
the user":-. rcque:-.t. Our conlracts with :--lf\PM CllJllinue through Junl! 2015. 

We al-.0 provide \\ ireline and \\.irekss number portabili1y and netw<,rk manugcment ser\'icc:-. in Cmada 
pur-;uanr to a cnnrral.l with the Canadian L \JP Consortium Inc.. a pri\':1te corporauon n1111pl1 ... ed of 
1elecommunication:-. sen ice pro\'ider-; \\ho participate in number pon:1bi lity in Canada. The Canadian Radio­
tckvi~ion and Tclccornrnunic:11ion:. Commission 0ver~l!es the Canadian LNP Consortium'-; rnana~cment tlf thi-. 
..:ontrat.:t. \Ve hill each telecommun1c:at1un-. 'erv1ce provider for our servil-es under th i ~ contra<.:! primanly on a 
per-transac:tion ba-;is. In July 20Jf), thi~ co11rrac1 wus mnendeu to c:ontinut! through Decemher ::!016. The 'icn·ices 
we pro\ ide under the C(•ntracts , ... llh NAPM ;10d the Canadian L;-.iP Con,ortium are ... ubject to rigorous 
performance :-.tandanh. and \\C arc <;ubjc.:t lo curre~punJing penalties for failure w met:! thos.: :,tandard:-.. 

We !ll!l'Vt! as the North i\merican Numbering Plan Administrator and lhe National Pooling Admini.,Lrator 
purs1w11 to t\VO -;eparate contracts \\ith the FCC. Under the~e t.:ontract\, we ~1dmi111srer 1he a-.\!gnmcnc and 
implementation of new area codes in North America, the allocation of central olf'ice codes twhich are the 
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prefixes following the area codes) to 1clecommunica1ions -;ervice providers in the United States_ and the 
assignment and allocation of pooled blocl..s of telephone numbers in the United States in a manner de~igned to 
con~erve telephone number re:-.ourccs. The Nonh l\ml!rican Numbering Plan Administration contract i'> ~1 

lixed-fee governmem contract that wa!. originally awanled by the FCC to U'> in 2003. Currently. we arc serving :1:. 

the North American Numbering Plan Administrator under a purchase order issued by the FCC. which will expire 
on July S, 2012. The :-Sational Pooling Administration contract was origin<illy awarded to us by the FCC in 2001 . 
Under this contract we perform the a<lministrative functions a:-.sociated with the allocation of pooled block:. of 
telephone numbers in the L'nite<l States. The term~ of thi:-. contract provide for a lixe<l lei:: a:-.sociated with the 
admini)>tnnion or the pooling sy!.tem. In Augu'l 2007. the FCC awarded us a new contract to cc)ntinue a~ the 
National Pooling Administrator. The initial contract term was two years, commencing in August 2007. and the 
l'Ontract ha'\ three one-year e:-.lension options that are exercisable al the election of the FCC. In July 2011. the 
FCC C>.ercised the third or the three (H1e-ycar extension options LO C\tend the (.'()1llrac1 lhf\)Ugh August 14. 2012. 

We are th1;: operator or the .bit. [ntcrne1 top-level domain by contract with the ln1emc1 C.>rporation for 
Assigned ;>.fames and :N'umbers. or ICANX The .btL contract was originally granted to us in May 2001. In 
December .!006, IC ANN renewed our .bi1. contract through December .!O 12. Under the terms of the amcn<led 
agreement. the .hi?. t:ontract automatically renews after 2012 unless it is determined that we have bc::en in 
fundamental and material breach of certain pro\ i'>ions of the agreement and foiled to cure ,uch breach. Sunilarl>. 
pur..,uant lO a contract with the U.S. Department of Commerce. we operate the .us Internet top-kH!I domain. This 
comrnct was originall} awarded in October 2001. In October 2007, the g<)\emmcnt rcne,\ed our .u ... c:ontract for 
et period nf three years. This term may be extended by the g<"wnment for two ~1dditional 011c.~-ycar periods. In 
response to a bid pwtest lilctl by one of our competiwrs. the Department or Commerce evaluated the procedures 
it followed in awarding to u~ the .us contract Pending re.,olution of this c\'aluation. performance un<lcr our new 
.us contract wa~ stayed. and the terms of our previou~ .ul> contract remained in effect. The cvaluauon wa, 
completed in Augul\t 2008 and the terms of the new .u-. contract were amended. In . \ugu't 2011, the Department 
or Commerce excrci::.ed the fiN or its two one-year c.\Lension option.., to extend the comracl through August 31. 
2012. The .bit and .us cont met:-. allow us to provide domain name rcgistralion <;ervices to domain name 
rcg1:-.trars. who pay u~ on a per-name basis. 

We h~tve an exdusive comract with thc CTIA - The Wirdess 1\-;-;ociation(lo) lo 'cr\'c a:-. the regi,try operator 
for the admini-.tration of U.S. Common Shon Code:-.. U.S. Cummon Short Col.le:-. arc ~hon strings or numher-; w 
whidi text mc<:sage' can be nddre,.,ed - a common a<ldrc,sing 'chcme that work., aero" all part1c1p:11ing 
wirdc!-S net\vorl..s. We were a\\ arded thi~ contract 111 October 2003 through an open procurement prl)Ce'!-. by the 
m:ijor wirdes-; carriers. fn June 2008. the contract was amended Lu include a term through December 2015. \\'e 
prnv ide lJ.S. Common Shon Codt' rcgi:-.trntion service' to wircle;;' cc.>ntent provitkrs. \\ho pay us l\UOl\cripuon 
fee ... per U.S. Comnl()n Short Code registere<l. 

Regulatory Environment 

Tefrplume Numbering 

01·e1Tiew. Cong res-; en;ltlcd the Telecommunication~ Act ol I lJ96 to rcmm e ban-ier ... !Cl entl)' in the 
communications market. J\mong nthl!r thing:-.. the.! Telecommunication!- /\cl of 1996 mandate!> portability oi' 
telephone number' and requires traditional telephone nllnpanie<. w prondc non-di,<.:rimrnatory acce,,s and 
imerconnt:'ction to potential compe111or-;. The FCC has plenary juri~dictio11 1wcr i"ues relating tn telephone 
numbers. including telephone number por1:.1hilil} and the administration of teleplwne number rei;ources. Under 
thi., authority. the FCC promulgated regulation" gowming lhe adnunistrnlion or telephune numhcr.. and 
telephone number ponab1ltty. In 1995, the FCC establi.,he<l the North American Numbering Coum:il. a federal 
.1dvi-,ory committee. to advi;;e and make recommendations to lhe FCC 1m telephone numhenng i~,.,ue .... 111cluding 
telephone number resource~ admini~tral1on an<l telephone number p1H'tabi lity. The members or the '.'forth 
,\mcrican :-lumbering Council include repn.:~cnlalive)> from lo<:al exchangl.! camer:.. intl.'rcxdrnnge carril.'rs. 
wirdes,, providers. VolP provider<;. manufacLUrers. slate regulator .... consumer groups. and tclecommun1cauons 
a-;sociations. 
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Telephone N11111her Portability. The Telecommunications Act of 1996 requires telephone number portability, 
which is the ability of user!> or telecommunications services lo retain existing Lelephone numbers without 
impainnent of quality, reliability. or con,enience when ~witching from one tdecommunications service provider 
to another. Through a 'cries of competitive procurements. a consortium or :-.crvice prov iders representing the 
communication~ indu<ary ;;elected us to develop, build and operate a solution 10 enable telephone number 
ponabilil} in the United State,. We ultimately entered into seven regional contracts to administer the system that 
we developed. after which the Nonh American Numbering Council recommended to the FCC. and the FCC 
approved. our <.election to ... ene as a nt!utr.tl administrator of telephone number portability. The FCC also 
directed the seven original regional entities, each compri-;ing a consortium of service providers operating in the 
re'>pective regions, to manage and oversee the administration of telephone number portability in their respective 
regton'i. -;ubject to Nonh American Numhering Council oversight. Under the rules and policies :-itlopted by the 
FCC. NAPM. a!> <;ucce'.\:-.Or in imere!>t to the :-.even regional con<>ortium,, ha:-. the powa and authority to negotiate 
ma:-.ter agreement!> with an administrator of t<.!lephone number portability, ~o long a:. that admini'.\u·ator is neutral. 

On November J. 2005. BellSouth Corporation. or BellSouth tiled a petition \\ ith the FCC -;ccking changes 
in the way our Cll!>lomcrs art' billed for services provided by us under our conLracts with NAPM. In response to 
the BellSouth petition, the FCC requested comments from interested partie:-.. A'.\ of February 17. 2012, the FCC 
had not initiated a fonnal rulemaking process, and the BellSouth petition remains pending. Similarly. on May 20, 
2011. Veriwn Communications Inc. and Verizon Wireless lnc. t11ed a joint petition. Lhe Veriwn Petition. with 
the FCC <>eel..ing a ruling that certain carrier initiated modifications of 1 PAC records be e\.duded from the cost'.\ 
of the shared NPAC databa'.\e <ind be paid for im.tcad by lhc provider that caused '.\UCh costs to be incurre<l. In 
rc,pon'e 10 the Veri1on Petition, the FCC requested comment:. from interested panie.,. As of February 17, 2012. 
the FCC had not initiated a formal rulemaking process and the Verizon Pt:tition n:mains pending. 

1\lter the amendment or our co111racb with NAPM in September 2006, Tdcordia Technologie~. Im:. tiled a 
petition with the FCC requei;ting an order that wou ld require NAPM to conduct a new hidding prcice~' to appoint 
a pro' ider of telephone number portability <.ervice' in the United St~ue:-. In re!-pon~e to our amendment 1.>f the~e 
1.:cmtracts in January 2009. Tdcordia !ikd another petition ~L<;f..ing that the FCC abrogatt: these contracts ~md 
initiate a government-managed procurement in their plat·e. A:-. of Fehruaf) 17. 2012. the FCC had nlll initi,1ted a 
formal rulemaking proce~~ OJI either or these petitions. and the Tekordia petition:-. arc qjll p(•nding. If a Teb>rdia 
petition is successful. we may lo~e one or more ol our cnntraCt!> \\ ith North American Portability LLC or lo<,e a 
portion of our bu~inc:.~ in one or more geographic regions whert: w..: provide \l!fvices. Although the FCC ha~ nvt 
initiated a formal rulemaking pro<.:CSS on either 1>f the Telcnrdia petition:-.. the rec·, Wireline Cc,mpctition 
Bureau i~'\ued order.; on ~lan.::h 8. '.:!O I I an<l May 16. 20 I I for NAP\ I 10 complete a selection procei,s for the 
admini~tration of NPAC services at the expiration or the current contracts. A contract award could be soon after 
the rt:<;pon!>e~ to the request for proposal are :-.ubmitte<l to NAP:\1 1St:e .. Risk. Factor-.. - Risks Related to Our 
Busine'" - Our sewn con1racts with :\lorth .\mcrican Portability Management LLC represent in the aggregate a 
<;ub•aan1ial portion of our revenue. arc not cxclu<;in: an<l could be terminated or modified in ways unfo\Or:tble to 
us. These contracts are due to expire in June '.!() 15 and \\ e may not win a competitive procurement.·· in Item I A 
of this rcpon). 

North American Numbering Plan At/mini 1tn11or all(/ Nati(IJ1<1/ Pot)/ing .. 1d111i11i.11rmor. \Ve have comracts 
with the FCC to act as the :'.'forth Amt!ric,in Numbering Plan . .\dmimstrator an<l the Natil'nal Pooling. 
,\dmimstrmor. and we must comply with the rules and regulation:-. of 1he FCC that govern our operations 111 each 
l·apacity. We are charged with admini<>tering numbering rcsou1-ce'> in an eflicient and non-di,cnnunatory manner. 
in accordance \\ ith rCC rules and indu~1ry guidehm::-. de\ eloped rrimarily by Lhe Industry Numbering 
Committee. These guidelines provide governing principle!> and procedures to be followed in the performance 1~r 
l•Ur Julies under these contracts. The communications indu~tr)' regularly re•iews and revi'e' the!>e g.uidehnes to 
adapt to changed circumstances or as a rcsuh or 1he experiem:e of in<lustry participants in applying the 
guideline-;. A committee of 1he North American Numbering Council c\aluates 1>ur performance again:-! these 
rule.; and guidt•line;; each year and provide~ :in annual re\ iew 111 the Nc1rch American Nunibenng Council and the 
FCC. Ir we violate these rules and guidelines. or if we fail to perform :u required le\·ek the FCC may reevaluate 



our fitne-;.; to .;ene <t' the '.\forth American Numbering Plan Aumini~trator an<l the National Pooling 
Administrator and may terminate our wmracts or impo!'.e f'ines on us. The division of the '.'.Jonh Am.:-rican 
\lumbering Council re,pon,ibk for re\icwing our ixrform:mc.: a~ the North Americ:.m Numbering Plan 
A<lmini•.trator anu the National Pooling Admini~1r:11or lw; determined that, \\lith re~pcct to our performance in 
20 I 0. we "more than met'' our perfonn:mce gui<leline.s under each such re\pt!cti-.e re\ie\\. Similar re\ iew:-. of our 
performance in 2011 ha\e not )t;':t been completed . 

. Ve111rali1Y. Under FCC rule' and order<. establi-;hing the qualification~ anu ohli~~ui11ns of the 
Nonh Am.:-rkan Numbering Plan Administnnor .tnd N:11ional Pooling Administrator. and under our contracts 
\\ith NAP~1 to provide tel..:phone number portability :-.cn·il.:c'. ''e are r.:quirc<l to comp!) '' ith nl'Utralit) 
re)!ulation' and ptllic.:ic<>. Under the~e neutrali ty requirement:-.. \\C are required to operate our numbering plan. 
pmiling admini<.traLion an<l number ponahility fulll:tion.., in a neutral an<l impallial manner. which me•m~ that we 
..:annot favor an) particular telecommunication-; ... er\ ice prO\ ider. tdl'communica1ion~ indu'>lry :-.cgmcnt 0r 
technology or group oi' tekcommunic:u1ions consumers ov..:r any other 1elecomrnunicati~i1b ~er\ it'..: provider. 
indu:-.try ... .:gmcm. 1<!chn1>logy or group 11f con~umeri. in the condm:t nf 1ho'l~ bu,ine~\C\. We arc examined 
periodil.:ally on our wmplia1K·e with the:-.e requin.:mt!nts hy independent third purcieo.;. The combined effect of our 
contrnct" and the FCC-; regulation~ and orders requin:!. that \\t!: 

not he a 1elccommunication" o.;en i<.:t! prm ider. '' hich b generally <ld'ined by the FCC a~ an entity that 
offer" telccommu111ca1ion" ~erv1ces to the publil: at l:1rg.:. and 1:-. therefore. p1m iding 
telccommunic:nion~ locrv1cc'\ on a c1>m111on carn.::r ba~i..,, or an interconnected Vol P !XO\ ider: 

not he an al l'iliaie or a telccommunic.1tHlll~ '>Cl'\ li:e prmi<le1 or VoIP PW\ 1uer. \\hich llh.':ln:-. •• nnong 
1llher thing .... that \\e: 

lllU:-.l t'e\lrict lhe hendi<.:ial O\\llCf',hip of OUI' capital \WCI-. b) tdccommunicallon\ 'enice 
pro\'ider<., V~ilP prm ider:. ~1r affiliates 1>1 a teleePmmunic.;ations -;ervice prm idl'r or VoIP 
rr~n'ider: and 

may not 1'thcrwise. directly or indi1'l'ctly. c.:ontn>I. he controlled by, or be under c\)mmon conLrol 
with. a telecummunicalion~ ~en·ic.: prO\ kkr 1w VoIP prm ider; 

not derive a majori ly of our rc,enuc J'rorn any ~inglc tcl..:cummunicalions !>crvicc provider: and 

not be ... uh1ect 10 undue inlluence b) panie.., with a ve!>!ed intere't in the 11utcome of numtx·ring 
ad111i1ustra11on and activ11ic~. ~ot1vith~1a11di11g our -;ati.;lacti(in or the other neuu«li ity criteria abol'e. the 
North American Numbering Cllllnc.:il or the FCC 1:uuld determine 1ha1 we :ire '11b1cct to 'uch undue 
mlluence. Th.:- :'forth Amcrit:an :-.i11mbe11ng C111111cll may conduct an e' alu:nion to determine \\ hether 
l\C meet thi-; "und11.:- influence" criteri1111. 

We are r.:-quired to m:untain cnnfidc1111ality of compclili'e cu-.1omer information obtained during the 
conduct or our busine-;.;, In addition. a.; part of our th!UllJlit) framework. we .ire requ1re<l l1' compl) with ''code 
(ll 1..ondul'l th,11 is de:-1gned to en ... ure our con1inued 11l'utrality. ,\mong other thing:-.. our c.:ndc: of condud. \\ hich 
11 a\ apprm ed by the i:cc. require'> that: 

we rwver. direclly or indirectly, \hll\\ any prdcrent·e or provide any .. pccial con~idcrntion to any 
11.:lcco1111n1111icatirn1' :.er' 1c~· prm 1der: 

\\'e prohibit acce\). hy our <.Lod\holJer~ tO u<,<.'r Jaw and proprietary 111fonn:11ion ol 1elecon11nunication:­
"t!n ice pnn ider<. "ene<l by u:- 101her than ac~·e!>s llf emplli~ee ~wci-.IHlldt!r~ 1h:n b lllci<lent w the 
perfonnancc Of (lUI 11Ul1lbcrin~ aumiru<,tf<lllOll dUllCSJ: 

our <.tockhol<ler'\ tal-.e 'tep~ 10 en,ure that they Jo not Ji,..:lo"e to u~ anr u ... er d:i1:1 11r proprietary 
;nfo1 mat ion of any 1elecommunica11on' sen· ice prn-.1dcr in '' hich they lwld .1n interest, mher than the 
"haring of informatillll in connection vv1th the pc1 formanct: ~it' our numberin!!' a<lmini'>lrmion dull<:<>: 

we not 'hare t·0nfide1111al 1nfnrm,1tinn ilhOut our bu:-.ines~ 'ervice~ .ind operation' \.Vith employees 111 
an; 1clt:cu111munic:i1wn~ <.ervict: provider: 
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we rd'r:lin from :.imultaneously employing, \\.l1ether on a full-time or part-time basis. any individual 
who is an employee of a telecommunications service provider and lhat none of our employees holJ any 
interc:-1. finam:ial or otherwise. in any compan) that would "iolate the:.e neutr.1li1y l-ta111Jardi.: 

we prohibit any indiviJual who serve!> in the nwnugemenl of any of our '>tockholders to be involved 
directly in our day-to-da} operations; 

wo:: implement certain requirements regarding thl' compo~ition of our Board of Directors: 

no member of our Board of Director:-. simultaneously -,erves on the Board of Director:; of a 
telecommunic;\tion' service provider; and 

we hire an independent pany to conduct a quarterly neutrality audit to ensure that we and our 
!\lock holders comply with all the pro'> i:-.ion" or our code of conduct. 

In c11nne<.:tion v. ith the nl:!utrality requirements impo-;ed hy our code of conduct and un<ler our contracts. we 
are -;ubject to a number of neutralit~ audit!. that ar•' performed 011 a quarterly and annual basii.. In connecti1.111 with 
lhcse audits. all or our ..:mployee5. directors and officer~ must -;ign a ncutrnJity <.:ertilication lhat states lhttl they 
arc famili:tr '' ith our neutrality requirements and ha,·e not 'i11laced them. Failure to comply '' ith applicable 
neutrality requir<!ments could result in go\'ernment line!\, corrective mca!\ures. curtailmem 1)f contracts or even 
the revocacion of contracts. See ·'Ri-;k FacllWS - RisJ...s Related to Our Business - Failure to comply with 
neutrality requirement-; c1.1uld result in lo:-.s of :-.ig;nillcant contracts" in Item I A or thil> report. 

In contemplation of lhe initial public offering of our ~ecurities, we sought and obtained FCC approval for a 
··~afe harhor., from pre' ious orders of the FCC that alJowed us 10 con!>urnmate the initial puhlic offering for our 
-.cn1ritics but rc4uirc<l u<; to :-.eeJ... prior apprt1\ al from the FCC for any chang1.: in our O\crall owncr:-.hip Mructure. 
corpor.11e 'lructure. bylaws. or distribution or equity interests, as well as certain typt•s of 1ra1bactions. in<.:luJing. 
the issuance or indebtcdne~s by u11. Under the safe h:irbor order. we are required 10 maintain provi<;ion' in our 
organi1.a1ional and other corporate documents that require us to comply with all applicable neutrality rules and 
orders. I lowcvcr. we arc no longer li.'quin:d to sc..:k prior approv<il from the FCC for many of thei-e change'> and 
transa..:tiOn!>. although \\C are required lo pm\idc noti<.:e of such change:. or transactionl>. In addition, we are 
-..ubject 10 the following requirements: 

We:! ma) not i-..we more than 501} of our debt w an> telecommunications sef\ ice pro\ i<ler; 

we may not ;icquire any equity interest in a tclcwmmunication'> service provider or an ;1ffiJimc of a 
telernmmunications 'erv1ce pron<lcr \\.llhout prior approval ol the FCC; 

we 11111:.t re,trict any telecommunications service provi<ler 0r affiliate of a telecommunications -,ervice 
prO\ 1ckr from a<.:quiring or bcnelicially owning 5'7r or more of our oublanding capital stocJ...; 

we must report to the FCC the name-; of ;1ny telecommunications \ervice provider.:; or 
telecommunicationc;. <,en ice prO\ ider afliliate:. 1hat own a sc:~ or greater interest in our cc1mpany: 

\\e mu~l maJ...e beneficial \J\\neri.hip re~·ords a\ailable to nur auditors, and mu:-.t certify upon request 
that \\e have no aewal knowledge or any 11\\l1Crship of our outstanding capital '>tock by a 
Lek<:ommunication' service provider or telecommunication" service prm ider affiliate mher than a-; 
pr.!' ioui-ly JiscJo.,ed: and 

we mu<;l make our debt records available to our uuditor:-. and certify that no tclecommunica1ions -.crvice 
rro\ tder holJs m~ire than 50"'< ol uur <lebt. 

Internet Domain .Vame ReJ(istratious 

We are ah1> 'uhjcct to government and indu-;tr} regulation under our Internet regi~try comraets '"ith the 
L .S. g<wemment am.I ICANN. the in<lu~try organi1.a1ion responsible for regulation ot Internet top-level domains. 
\Ve nre the operator M the .bi1.. Internet domain under a contract with ICA>JN. as de,cribed .1bove under 
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.. Contrac:ts:· Similarly. pursuant to a comrac:t with the U.S. Department of Commerce, we operate the .us Internet 
domain regisiry. Thi~ cuntra.:1 i-; also described above under "Coniracts." Un<ler each or these regi~try service 
.:1.1ntracts. we arc required to: 

provide equal acces" lo all registrars or domain names: 

comply with Internet :.tand<trds established by the indu!-try: 

impkrnent addiLional polick•s as they are a<lopted by the U.S. governmen1 ur lCA."l'.'J: :md 

wiih respec1 to 1he .us regi:.lry, l!~tahl ish. operate and ensure approprime conLcnt on a ki<l~.us domain lo 
\en·e a!> a haven for material 1hat promotes po'-iti\'e experiences for children and families using the 
Internet. 

lntcllcctual Property 

Our succe;;-; depends in pan upon our proprieiary tedrnology. We rely principally upon traJe :;ecret :rn<l 
copyrighl law lo proh.:ct our 1cchnology. including our software. nelwork dt:"ign. and 'ubj1.:ct matll:r expertise. 
We enter into wnfidentiality or license agreemefll<; with our employees. 1.li:-.tributors. cu:-l<lmer<>. and potential 
rustomer~ and limit a.:<:ess to and distribution of our o;oftware, u\>t:umelltation. and other proprietary information. 
We believe. however. that bct:ause of the rapid pace 1,)f tedrnological change. 1hese legal protection$ for our 
'-Crvices are li::ss !>igmlicant factors in our \UCcess lhan the 1-.nO\\.lc<lge, .1bility, and experient:c of our employee:. 
and the timelinc:-.:-. and qua lity of services provided by us. In atldi1io11. we conlinue w seek patent protection for 
our proprielilry technology u-.ed in our 'ervil;e offerings. 

Available Information and Exchm1ge Certifications 

We maintain an lntern1:1 websi1e at www.neuslar.bi1. Information contained on. or that ma> he m.:ce.,sed 
through. our website i:-. not pan of this report. Our annual report on Form lO-K. quarterly reports on Form I 0-Q. 
current rcpon:-. on Form 8-K and amcndn1c.:nls to rl!ports likd or furnished pursuant to Seciions 13fal and 15(d) of 
the Securities E'<..:hangc Act of 1934. as amended. are available, free of charge. on the lme,tor Relation-; 'cction 
11r ou r website under the hemling ··SEC Filingl> hy NcuStar.'" as ~()On as rca:,onably practicable after we 
l!lcctronit'ally lile such report> with. or furni<.h tho~e reports to. the Securities and E\chang.e Commission. Our 
Principle'- nf Corporate Gowman..:e. Board of Dir.:ctors commiuec ..:haner!> (including the t'hartcrs nl' the Aue.lit 
Committ.:c. Compensmion Commiucc. a11J N\Hninating an<l Corporate Governance Commucee) and eodc of 
ethic-; entnled "'Corporate Code of Bu,ineo;s Conduct" al'\O are available \)ll 1he lm·e:-.tor Relations 1,ecticlll ol our 
websiti::. Stocldwlder~ may reque~ t i"ree copie~ oi' these documents. including a copy or nur annual rcpon on 
Form 10-K. by -;endi11g a wriuen reque\l to our Corporate Sccn:tary at .NcuStar. Inc .. 21575 Ridgetop Cirde. 
Sterling. VA 20166. Jn the event that we make any ehangc:- lo, or provide any waivers from. the pnl\'isions 1)r 
1>ur Corporate (\>de of Bu~iue-;s Conduct. \\e intend to <lisch>-;t: lheloe event'> on our welhtte or 111 a report on 
r-onn 8-K \\ ith111 four bu:-ine\). day). of sut'h e\ent. 

We h;ne tiled.,,., exhibit' lo thi:-. Annual Report on Form 10-K. the eertilieanun uf our pri1Ktpal e\ccuti\.C 
officer and principal financial cirticcr requ ired under Section 302 or the Sarbnnes Ox ley ,\c:l ot 2002 to be file<l 
with 1he Sccuritie!- and E\change Commi-;.,i1)n regarding 1he quality of our public disclo;;ure. 

Cautionar~ "ole Re~ardin~ Fonrnrd-Looking Statements 

111is reron rnnlams 1\1rward-luoking siatcmenb. In some ca..,es, you can identify forwaru-looking 
,tatemems h)' tenmnolog) <.uch as .. Ill:\):· ·\viii."' .. -;hould.'" ··expects:· .. intend<.."' ··plans."' .. anticipate~ ... 
··bclie\'c<' "'c~timate~." .. predit:ts:· '"potentiul." ··continue" or the negative of thi::~c 1.crms or oth.:r t'1.m1parablc 
h.:rminology. These ... talement' relate to future e\enb or our future finatlt'ial perltirmance and imohc knO\\n and 
unl..no'' n rbb, unce11arntie' and Nher factors thal may cause our actual re..,ults, levels of activity. performance 
or achic,·ement~ to differ materially from any future rcsuhs. le\els or acti\ ity, performanct:: or achiewmem~ 
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expres,ed or implied by the~e forward-looking !>tatements. Many ot the.;e rii.J...; are beyond our ability to control 
or predict. These risJ..~ and other factors include those listed under ·'Risk Facwrs" in ftem I A of thi:. report and 
d'ewhcrc in thic. report and indude: 

railure~ or interruptions or our systems and services: 

'ecurit) or priYacy hreache-.: 

k'ss of. 0r 1.bmage to. a t.lata center: 

termination. rnudilkation or non-renewal of our contracts to provide telephone number pt.inability and 
other directory ser' ices: 

adverse changes in :.tatutes or regulations affecting the communication~ industry: 

our failure to adapt to rapid technological change iu the communications indu~try; 

competition from 11ur rnstomers· m-hou.;e sy•aems or from other pro,·ider' of carrier, enterprise. or 
info1 mation -;ervice:-.: 

our failure to achieve or su-;1ain market acc<:!ptance at desired pricing le\'els: 

a decline in Lhl! volume or tran:.actions w..: handle: 

inab1 hty to manage our gn)\\ lh: 

economic. p~)lilical. regulatof) ;m<l other ri!-k' associated with our runher po1.cntial e\panswn into 
international markeh; 

inability 10 obtain ~ufficient capital to funJ our operations, capital e\p..:nditure~ and e:1.pan~1on: ,111d 

l o~s of members or -;enior nrnnagcment. or inahili1y to recruit and retain skilled employee~. 

ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS 

Risks Related to Our Business 

111e loss oJ; or damage to. 11 data center or a11y miler failure or imerr11pti<J11 l<J <Jllr network infrastructure 
could material~l' ltarm our revenue and impair aur ability to conduct our operations. 

Because virtually all or the :.en ices \\ e prO\ ide require (lllr Cll:-.tomcr<; to 4uer) .1 CllPY or our continuously 
updated databai-.cs and dire<:toril!s w obtain necess.iry routing, operational and marketing data. the integrity or our 
data centers, induding network elemenlS managt:d hy third paitie' throughout the world. and the '>}'">tems Lhrough 
wh1d1 we tlcli\cr our \Cf\ i<:cs arc e<.~enual tu our bu!>in~·:.s. Nlltably. our data centers and rclat<.:d '-Y"t..:ms are 
..::.:.cntial lo the orderly operation llf the U.S. telecommunication' :.y!>h!lll bccau:.e they enable carn..:rs to ensure 
that telephone call-; ;ire mut<:!d to the <tppropriate <lestmations. 

Om 'Y"tcm architecture i' integral to our <lbtlity lO proces~ a high H•lume of transac1i1.,ns 10 a umely and 
..:ffccti\'c manner. :-Vlor..:owr. both \\c :rnd our customers rdy un h~1rd\\ar..:, !>olhvarc and other equipment 
d..:vl'lopcd. :.upporte<l and mainwined by third-party provider:-.. We c1ml<l e\pcricnct' failure' or intcrrupuon~ of 
1•trr 'Y'Lems aut.l ,erv1c..: ... or other problems rn connection with our operation<;. a~ a result of: 

damagl! lll. or failure or. our computer -;uftwarc or hard\\ arc or our connection-; and 11u1<;ot1rced 'en ice 
armngementl> with 1hird parties: 

failure of. 11r defect-> in. the third-party '} l.lem .... :.oft ware or equipment on which we or our cw.tomcr:. 
rely to acce!-.~ our data centers and 111her 'Y~tems: 

e1Tor:. in the proces,ing of data h} 11ur '}'te1m.: 

computer viruses. rnalwarc or '>Oft ware defect~: 
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physical or electronic break-ins, ~abmage, tli,tributed denial of service. penetration attacks. intenuonal 
act$ or vandalism anc.l similar en!nt:-.: 

increased capacity demantl:-. Or Ch:tngcs in :.ystems requirements or t'lll" CU\tOmers; 

virtual hijad;ing of traffic destined to our systems; t)r 

power loss. communications failures. pandemics. wars. acts of terrorism, political unrest or other 
man-matle or natural disasters. 

We m<IY not ha-.e -.ufticient redundant 'i)"item'\ or back-up facilities 10 allow us to recei' e anu proce-;s data if 
one of the foregoing events occur'>. Funher. increases in the 5cope ol" services that we provide increase the 
compll:xity of our nctwtirk infrastrm.:lllre. A-. the scope or scrvi<:cs we pro' itle expands or changes in the future. 
we may be required h> maf...e signifo . .:anc C'\pcnditure-.. to esl<tblish new data ct:nters from which we may pro\ itle 
services. ;o...1oreover. a~ we add customers, expand our service offerings and increase nur visibility in the market 
we may become a more lif...ely target of auacb..s -;imilar to those li~tell in the bullets above. The number of 
ek1.:1ronic attal-k:. .m<l ,·i1 uw!> gro\\ \ ~ignilicantly every yc;u-. as tloes the :-.ophi:.tication of these attack:.. For 
example, undetected attackers ;ire able to monitor unencrypted Internet trafllc anywhere in the world untl modify 
it before it reaches our ue\tinarion. :ind these attacf...ers can harm our cu\lomers hy stealing iuemiry. Internet 
email lW IP addrel.ses. If we are not able to react to threat!> and stop attacker<; from exploiting vulnerab ili tie~. the 
integrity of tiur systems and our ..:ustoma~ aml trading partners may be impacwd adv1.:r-;ely. If we cannot 
:u.lequately \ecure anti protect the ability of our tlata center:-.. offices. and relatetl S)\tcms to perfonn consistently 
at :.thigh level anti without imerrupLions. or if we otherwise fai l to meet our <.·ustomcn," expectations: 

our reputa11on may be damaged, which ma) ad\ er~ely affect our ability to marf...et our '>ervicc:. and 
auract or retain customer~; 

we may he ~ubject 10 -;igniticam penalties or damage<. claim-;. under our contract~ l ) f otherwise. 
including the requiremelll to pay '>Ubstantial penalties related w service leve l requirements in our 
cnntracts; 

we may be required Lo make significant expenditures ICl repair or replace equipment. Lhird-party 
~y:.tems or. in -;omc cases. an e11lire data center. or to establi:.h new tlata centers anJ 'Y'le1m fr()rn 
..vhil·h we may provide -;en ices: 

our operating expenses or l'apital cxpcnditures may increase as a result or corrective dTons that we 
mu\t perf()rm: or 

one or more of our signil1ca111 cci111racts may be terminatetl early. or may not be renewed. 

Any of the:-.e consequences would advcr~ely affect our revenue. performance and businc:-.s pro~pcc ts. 

~r our security measures are breaclied a11d perso11a/ly ide11tijiable i1~formatio11 i1· obtained by <Ill 
u11autlwrit.ed person, our ~·ervice may be perceive<! as 110L being secure and customers may curtail or stop 
using our sen·ices. 

As a number or our products and .:;ervices are lmernet or DNS based. the anwum or data '~e store for our 
uc.c:r-; on t•ur 'iervers 1 including personal infornrnlit' n) ha-; increa,etl. For e\ample. ~iur rcgi-.try. Ultra Violet"'· 
mobile and information ~cn· ice offering-; may imolvc the ~torage anJ transmissilm of consumer information. 
-;uch a!> name~. addrcs:-.es. email atldrcs~es and other peNmally idcmifiable mformatiun. and security hreache:-. 
could e'\[JO'ie us w a ri<-t.. of lo<-s of this information. litigaticm and po<.sible liability. If our security mca~ure ... are 
breac:hcd c•r ouJ ~y~tems foil in the future as a n::.ult or third-party rict1on. employee error. malfeasance or 
otherwise. and as a result. :-.omeonc obtain~ unauthoriLed acces:. to consumer.;' data. our rcputatitin :1.nd brnnJ!' 
\\ill be damaged, the adoption of our protlucts .tnd sen ices coultl be ~e,erdy limited, and we could incur 
significant liability, any of whic:h may cause our husine~s to ~uffer. Accordingly, we may m:ed co .:xpentl 
significant resource~ to protect againl.t <;ecurity bread1es. including encrypting per-;onal intorma11on. or rcmed~ 
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breaches after chey occur. induding notifying each person who!\e personal data may have been compromised. 
The risk lhac the-;e types of event~ could ~eriously harm our bu<..111ess i~ likely to increase as we expand the 
number of Internet or DNS-based products and savices we offer as wdl as increase the number 1.1[ counlries 
where we operate. Han actual or perceived breach uf our '>Ccurity mca:-.ure-. occur:-, the marl-et pert:cption of che 
effectivene~" of our ~ecurity measurei> and our reputation ctwld be harmed and we could lo~e sales, existing and 
future business opportunities and customers. and p1)ten1ially face costly litigation. 

Our seven contracts with North 1\merica11l'ortability1'rfa11ageme11t LLC represent in the aggregate a 
substantial portion of our revenue, are not exclusive and could be terminated ur m odified i11 wt1ys 
W{{a .-orable 10 us. Th ese co111racls are due to expire i11 June 2015 a11d we may 1wt 111in a competitire 
proc11rem(•11t. 

Our seven contract~ with '.'ionh American Portabilit) :'l·lanagement LLC. 1>r NAPY'f, an indu~try group that 
rcpresencs all carrier!. in the United St:lles. 10 provic.le NPAC Services are not exclusive and could be terminated 
or modified in ways unfavorable Lo us. These seven 'eparatc conlrjcts, each nf \\hich represented between 6.0~ 
and 11.SC''r of our total re\enuc in 201 1. represented in the :1ggregatc approximate ly 60.4% of our total revenue in 
201 1. These contracts have finite tl'n11S and are currently :-.chcduled LO expire in June 2015. NAP:vJ ha~ initialed a 
&election process for the administration or NPAC ~en ice' at the c\piration of the current contract. We expect 
that there will be sign iticant competition as a result of this process. A contract award coukl be announced soon 
aflcr the responses to 1he requests for proposal are ,ubmiuo::d to NAPi'.\l. We may not win :.uch a competitive 
proc11rcme111 if another prm 1dcr offer:. tu prm, ide the "ame or simi !Jr ~crvices at a lower cost. The fai lure to win 
the competi ti ve prot:uremenl W\)tdd have a material adverse effect on 1iur hu-;in<!!>S, prospects. financial condition 
and results or operations. En:n if ''e win the competitive procurement. the new contr.ict' ma) have different 
pricing structure~ or performance n:4uircmen1s than are currently in efft:ct, which could ncgati\dy affect our 
<)perating performance and may rew lt in additional co<;ts and e\pen~e' am! po;.sihly lower revenue:-.. 

In addition, under the eu1Tent contract!>, NAPM could. at any lime, !-.olicit or receive propo&u li. from 01her 
providers to provide sen icl'l> that are the :-.ame a" or 'imilar lo ours. These t'Onlract~ can be 11.:rminated or 
modified in advance or their !\chedulcd expirauon date in hmned t:ircumstance-;. most notably if we are in default 
of the!\e agreements. Although these contracts do IH\l cc1111ain cro-;s-default provi1,ions. condi1ion'\ leading IO ;1 

default by us und<!r one of our contracts could lead t<1 a default under othen.. or all se,·en. tr the~e comnict" are 
terminated or modified in a manner that 1~ adverse to us. it would have a malt:ri<tl adver~c df1.•ct on nur bu:-.wcss. 
pro,pccts, linancial condition and rc:-.u lts or operation~. 

, \ siv1ijimnt decline in the rolume of tran.mctions we handle could liai·e a material adverse effect u11 our 
re.rnlts of operations. 

Under our contracts with NAPM. we earn revenue t'or NPAC Service~ on an annual. lixcJ-fee ha.;i-;. 
Ilowe\er. in the e\.enl th.11 the \l)lume of tran~actitlllS m a gi,en year is above or helt)w the contractually 
estahli,h..:d 'olum..: range for that year. the.! fixed -Ice may be adju,tcd up or down. n:"pcctively, with any \Lich 
adjtNment hcing applied to the following year's in mice<;. In addition. under Pur contract\~ ith the Canadian L>lP 
Con-.ortium Inc .. we earn revenue on a p<!r tran<;~K·tion ha<.is. As a result. 1t indu<..try participant' Ill the L niteJ 
State), reduce their u~age of' our "ervices inn panicular year to lewb below the e.-aablished V{l lume range for that 
year l)r if in<lu~.tr) pm ticipa111s in Canada reduce their usage of our <..ervice\ from their current level .... l)Ur re\ enue 
and re:-.ults of opcratilm!> may sut'ICr. For example. consolidation in the indu:-.try could result 111 a decline in 
transaction:-- if the remaining carrier<.; decide to hanulc t:hangec; LO their ni.:twork:, i1nernully ratha than u\e rhc 
-;ervice\ that we pro\·ide. ;\lor<!O\'er. if cuMomer turnover among carrier; in the indu,try "Lahili.1;<!s or decline ... . c-.r 
ir l'an-iers do not compete vigorou~ly to lure customer;; away from Lheir coinpe L itor~. use of llllf tdephone number 
portability anJ other :-.ervices may dcditK'. If carri..:rs develop internal S)Stems to addrc<.;s their infra.\ll'\lclure 
needs, or if the co~t t)f \uch tranc;actions m.1kes it impracClc<1l for a given carrier to use our sen 11.:es lnr these 
purpo:;es. we may experience a reduction in transaction volumes. Finnlly, the trend!> that we believe wi ll drive the 
future demnnd for nur sen ices, such as the emergence of IP sen ices, growth ot wirel<!ss .;,ervices. consolidation 
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in the induscry, and pressure on carriers to reduce costs. may not actually rei.ult in increased demand for our 
ex isting i>erviccs or for the ancillary <lirect~HY sen ices Lh:tt we expect to offer. which woulJ harm our future 
n.!,enue anJ grO\\th pro~p.:cl!>. 

Certain of our other comracts may he termiuatetl or modified ut any time prior to their completio11, which 
could lead to mi unexpected loss t!f re~·e1111e and damage our reputation. 

In addition 10 our contracts with '.'IAP~I. \\I! provide otht:r l;arrier ~crvice' that generate '>ignilkam revenue 
an<l bolster our reputation as a premier solutions provider to t'l)mmunication service pnwi<lers. Under variou<; 
contracts. we sen·e as the provider of ~PAC Service:; in Canada; operator of the .bi1. registry: ;1nd operator t)f the 
registry of U.S. Common Shon Co<les. Each of these comrncts provides for early termination in limited 
circum-;umcei>. most notably if we are in defaul t. In llddition, tiur contract!> IO serve as the Nonh American 
:-.Jumhering. Plan A<lmini~tralOr an<l a' the National Pooling Administrator and 10 operale the .us regiMry, each 1)f 

wh ich i1> wilh the U.S. government. may be terminated hy th..: govcrnmenl at wil l. Ir we fai l to meet the 
e'pectatinns or the FCC. the U.S. Depanment or Commerce or our cu:,tl)mers. as the case ma)' be. for .my rea~on. 
including for pcrform;incc-rdmed or otha reasons. the customer m;1y unilaterally tcnnin:lle or modify the 
contracts. J\ termination ari,ing out or our default could cxpo'>e us to liability, :idver~ely affect our operating 
performance and lea<l to an unexpected loss of revenue. Funher. each of the contracts discus~cd abtwc establishes 
us as lhe ~ole pro' ider of lhe parlicular -;ervices covered by that comract <luring its term. If one of the~e comrncts 
\\a-; terminated. \\e "ould no longer be able LO provide the :-..::n iL·es covered by that comract an<l could suffer a 
loss llf prestige that woulJ mal-.e it more dilficuh for u~ to compete for contracts to provide -;imilar services in the 
future. 

Failure io comply with neutrality requirements could resulJ in loss of significant mntracts. 

Pur!-uant LO order<; and rcgul:uion-; of the L.' .S. government and prtl\ i<;ion' contained in our material 
l'\ltltrach. we mu~t continue to comply with certain neutrality requin:ments. meaning. generally th:.tl \\e cannot 
i'avor any particular 11.:kcornmunicalion<> st·rvice provider. telecommunications inJu:.Lry segment or technology or 
group of tdec<1mmu111cation:- con:-.umcr-; (l\Cf any other tclecommunicatl\llTh :.crv1ce rro\ idcr. inc.lustr;. -..egmenl. 
technology or group ol con~umers 111 the conduct of our busirwss. The FCC cwer~ce~ our C:\llnpli<111ce wi th the 
ncutralil) re4uircme111s applicabk to U'> in connection with some or the .;en ices \\C pro' ide. \\'e provide to the 
FCC and the North .\mcncan Numbering Coundl. a r~·dcr:il advisory committee establbhed by the FCC lo 
<1dvise an<l mukc recommendations on lelt:phonc numbering issue:., regular certifications rdating LO our 
compliance \\ith the~e requirement<;. Our ability to rnmply wnh the neutrality requirement~ 10 which \\C are 
~ubject may be affected by the activities \l l our ~wckholders \lr lc!nder~. Fcir example. if the owner..,hip of our 
capital -.loci-. -,ubjecli> us to undue inrluence by panic-. "ith a \e:-.ted imcrest in the outcome of numbering 
admini..,tr:lli<>n. the l·CC cou ld determine that we 'U'e not in compliance with our neutrallly 11bligations. Our 
failure 10 conunue to comply with the neutrality requirements to \\ hich we arc <.ubjcct under applicable order-. 
.rnd regulation'> of the U.S. government and Ctllrnnercial contract~ may result in rinei.. correcli\'e mea~ures tir 
t..:nninution of our C(lntracts. any (1111! of which could have a malaial adverse dfect <Ill our re:-.ult~ oi' operatitlll'-. 

R('g11falm)1 and stal11tm:v duu1gt•.1· that a.f]ect 11s or the c011111111nications industry i11 general may i11creave 
our Ct1\IS or otherwi.~e adl'ersely affect our business. 

Our dome'-tic operation., and Lho<.e or many of' our L:U:o.l1.11111.:r1, are ..,ubject 10 regulation b} th..: FCC and other 
federal. \lat.: aml local :igencics. ,\, communicmmns tt•chnolog1cs and the Cl)mmumcation!'> industry continue to 
evolve. the !>tatules g11verning the communications indu'-lry (1r the regulatory pnlicie~ 0r the FCC may diange. If 
thi<. were to occur. the demand for man) <1r our ~enice1, could change 111 \\<l)' that \\,e c~11111ot predict and our 
revenue could decline. Th..:sc risks include the ability of the L'..:d.:ral governmcnL mu-;t nolably th..: FCC. 10: 

increa!>e or change regulatory O\e~ight 0\'er the ~ervice-; we provide: 
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adopt or mo<li fy st:uute!\, regulations. policies. procedures or programs that are <li\advantageous to the 
-.ervices \\e pro' ide. or that are incon'>iMent with our current or future plans, or that require 
mo<lification of the terms or our existing c.:ontract<;, including the manner in which we c.:hargc for 
certain of our services. For example. 

in November ~005, BdlSl)Ulh Corporation filed a petiti0n with the FCC sct"king changes in the 
W:t} Nir customers are billed for sen·ices provided by u.., under our contracts with North American 
Poitabilit} ~Linagemcnt LLC: and 

after the amendment of our contracts with North American Portability Management LLC in 
September 2006. Tclcordia Technologies. lnc. rtled a petiticlll with the FCC reque~ting an order 
that woul<l require Nonh Ameriean Portability Management LLC LO conduct a new bidding 
proce-;<; to app0int :1 providt"r of telephone number ponahility services in the UnitNI Statt:s. In 
rc:-.ponst: lo liur mncndment of thc:-.e contracts in January 2009. Telc:lirdia liled another petition 
a~king that the FCC abrogate the:o.t' <:ontracls and initiate a govemmem managed procurement in 
their pl~1ce. If suc:ce,,.ful. either of these pelitions could re!-ult in the lcw; of one or more of our 
c:ontr;icts \vith North Americ<Hl Portability Management LLC or otherwise rrustratc our $trategi<.: 
plans. Although the rec has not initiated a formal rulemaking proCC!-'> on either of the T clc1Jrdia 
petitions. the i-:cc .. Wireline Competition Bureau i-.sue<l onkrs on MJrch 8. 201 I .inJ .\l<t} 16. 
~OJ 1 for Nt\PM to complete a -;clecLi(1n process for the a<lministrallon (l{" NPAC Service~ at the 
expiration nr the current comract. See ··- Our sc1c11 co11trcwr,· 11 it/1 .Vorrh \111erin111 Portal1i/i1y 
J/ana~t·ment LLC represent in the C1f'1greg<1w fl .w/Hrw11iul 11orrio11 1~l our rc\'l'llUe. are not 

e.w·lu.~ive {//I(/ coufll be tem1i11ared or mod((ied i11 H'l/\'.\ 111ijal'f1rable 10 us. [he1e contracts are due 
to expire in .June 2015 fllld 1vc lll<ff 111111ri11 a competitii·e proc11re111c111" : 

prohibit us from entering imo nt'w n)ntract~ or extending existing c:ontr;u:ts to provi<le 'iCrvices It) the 
communications industry ba~e<l on aLlual or -.uspectc<l 'iolation:-. ur our ncutr.tlit~ requir\·ment:-.. 
business performance concerns. or other rl!asons: 

adopt or modify ... tatutes. regulations, policie::.. pmceJures or progra1m. in a way that coul<l cau~e 
drnnge~ L\) our operations or cost~ or the operation'> of our cu~tomcrs; 

appoi111, \ll" c.:ause others to appoint. subslitute or ad<l additi0nal panie-; to perform the -,en ice::-. that we 
currently provide: and 

prohibit or rc~trict the provision Qr export or new or exp~tnde<l ~ervices under our .:ontmct:-.. or prevent 
!he introduction or other ~en ice'> not under the contract.., [la,e<l upl)ll rt!~tri,·tions " ithin the contracts or 
111 FCC policie:-.. 

In addition. we are o;ubject to risk' ammg out of the <l.:legation of the Depanment uf Commerce·, 
re,..pon:;ihilities for the domain name system tO IC ANN. Change~ in the regulauon~ or qa1utes to which our 
customers arc -.ubject could c.:ause our cu ... tomt!r& w .titer (1r decrease the 'ervict."\ they purdrn~e from U'. \Ve 
cannot predic.:t '"hen, or upon "hat term:. ancl conditi\)fh. furtht'.r rcgubti(lll or daegulatit'n might 01.:cur or th.:: 
effl!ct future rcgul:1ti1m or deregulation may lwve on our bu~ine~~. 

If we are unable to protect our i11tellect11al property rights adequately. the 1'{(/ue of our services and 
wlutio11s cuttkl be dimini.vhed. 

Our "ucce~~ I!> dl'pcndcm in p~trt on obtaining. maintarning. .ind enforcing (1ur proprietary rightc; and our 
ability to avoid infringing 1111 the proprietary right' of other~. While we take preeauurnwry step, to protc.:t our 
ted1nological adv:mlage-; and intellectual proper!) and rd)' in pan on patent. trademark. trnde 'ecret and 
copynghl laws. '"c cannot assur..: that the pre<.:autionary \teps we h~wc t:tkcn will completely prot.::<.:l our 
intdkc.:LUal property rights. Effectively policing \)Ur imellectual prope11y i., time con-;um111g and co\ll~ . • 1n<l £he 
-..tep ... taken hy u-; may not pre\.ent mfringemem ot our intl!lleciual property or proprietary right-; in our pro<luc1s. 
technology and trademark.,. particularly in foreign countries whNe in many instanl·es the local law'> nr legal 
:-.)stem:-. <lo not offer the .;ume le,el of protection a:-. in the United Stat<::~. Further, bt!<.:au'>e patent .1pplicauon!- in 
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the United State-; are maintained in ~ecrecy until eirher the patent application is published or a patent is i-;sued, 
we may not be aware of lhird-party patent~. patent applications and other illlellectual property relevant 10 our 
"crvice~ and '>ulution-; that may blod. our u-,c of our intellectual property or may be used by third-partie.; who 
compete with our ~ervicci; anti ~olutions. 

As we expand mrr bu:-iness and introduce new sen·ices and solutions, there may be an inaeased risk o( 
infringement and other intellectual propeny claims by third-parties. From time to time, we and our customers 
may n::ccive daims alleging infringement of intellectual property tight\, or may become aware of certain third­
party paten~ that may relate to our services and ~olutions. 

A<l<litionally. some of our cu~tomer agreements require that we in<lemnify our cu1>tomers for infringemem 
claims resulting from their u::.e of our intellectual property ernbc<lded in their products. Any litigation regarding 
p<atcOL'i or otht:r intellectual property could be co.,tly and time consuming anti could divert our m<.Lnagemcnt and 
J...cy personnel from our bus111e:-.s operations. The complexity of the technology involved. and the number of 
parties ht)lding intellectual property within the c:ommunication:-. indu:-.1ry, rncrea~e the 1i-,ks a"'nciared with 
intellectual property hugntion. Moreover. the commercial :,.ucce:-.s of our ~erviccs and sol utions may increns<! th t: 
risk thal an infringement claim may be made again"t us. Royalty or lic.;nsing ammgements, if required. may not 
he available on terms a.;ceplable t<> us, if at all. An} infringemelll claim 'uceessfully a~<;crted again:-.t us or 
againsl a customer for which we have an obligation 10 defend could result in costly litigation. the payment of 
'iubstantinl damages. and an injuncuon that prohibits uo; from continuing to offer the -.ervice or ~olution in 
tiucstion. any or whid1 could have a material adverse effect ~Hl our bu:-.iness. operating re:-.ulls and t"irlam:ial 
comlition. 

Tlte market for cermi11 of our carrier, e11lerprist• and i11formatio11 ::.e1Tices is competitive. and if we do 1101 

adapt to rapid tech110/ogical change, we co11Ld lo.\·e cmwmers or market share. 

We compete against well-funded providers of l.!anicr. enterpri:.e and information \Cn ice~. communication\ 
-.oftware companies and sy:.tcm integrators that provide sy~tems and ~e 1 Yice~ u~e<l hy c~irrier~ and enterprises tn 
managl' their nelworl..s and imern::il operations in connection with telephone number portability and other 
communil.!ation1, Lran.,actiom .. In addition. our indu:-.try is diaracten1cd b) rapid ti::chnological change and 
frcqut:nt new service offerings. Signi ficant lechnologic~rl changes cou ld make our technokigy and -.en·ice:-. 
l>b~olete. We mu<;t adapt lCl ()trr rapidly changing m:.ulet b) conunually imprnYing the feature\. funcrionalit}. 
rdiability and rc!'.pon~ivene<.~ of our <>ervicc~. nnd by uevdoping new features, -;ervices and applic:ui0ns tn meet 
changing customer needs. Our ability tu tal..c advant;tgc of opponunitie:-. in the market ma) require U\ to irm.!sl in 
de,·elopmcnt and incur vlher l'\JXn~es well in advance ol our ability to gent:ra11.: revenue from these s..:n kc~ . Wt: 
cannot guarantee that we wi ll be able to adapt Lo the::.e challenges or rc:.pontl <.uccc,.,full) or in .1 co~1-eflccti'>e 

way. panicularly in the early ~tag.es of laum:hing a new senice. Further. ''e may e~xperience uelays 111 the 
de\elorment l>f one or more feature-; or our solutions, which could materially reduce the poleniial l1l·nerih to us 
for pro' i<ling these \Cn ices. ln addition. th..:rc can ~ no Jssuram:c that our <.olution~ \\ill bt: ad<)ptc<l h'.- ptitcntial 
..:uswmer,. or that we \\ill he able lO reach ac..:cptllblc contract term:-. with cu<;tomers to pro\ idc these :-.1.:rvi..:e~. 

Our ri1ilure to adapt l1) meet markel demand in a co,t-cffecuvc manner could athcr-;ely <1ffect t1ur ability to 
compete and retain cthtOmer" or mart..et 'h:ire. 

Data suppliers might withdraw data .from us, leading to our i11ahility lo prt>l'ide products and service.~ to our 
client.~ which could lead to decreases iu our operating results. 

\lueh of the data that Information Scr"ice' u'e~ i<.. either purchased or licensed rrom third panic~. We 
compile the rc111aind<.:r or the data tha1 we.: use frnm public rl·cord ·.;ourccs. We could suffer a rrn1k:rial adverse 
effect if owner~ of the <lata \\e u-.e were to" ithdraw the data from u,. Data providers could ''ichdrnw 1he1r data 
from u-; if 1hcre is a competitive reason lo do so, or if leg1slation is pa~sed restricting the u~e of the da1:1, or if 
judicial in1erpretntions are i-;-;ued re<>tricting use of data. If a '>ubst;inlial number M dal<1 pro' i<ler" w<!re to 
withdraw their data. our ability lo providt: products and serviecs lO nur client~ could be materially :ith ersely 
impacled. which could result in dt:creased revenues, net income and earnings per share. 



Regulatory and statutory requirements or chan1:es in such req11ireme11ts regarding pr fracy and data 
protection may increase our costs or otherwise adversely affect our business. 

We arc subject to a variety of law:-. and regulation:. in the Uniced States anti in other juri:-.diction:. relating lo 
privacy and data protection. These ~tatutory anti regulatory requirement!. are evolving anJ may change 
'ignific:.mtly. Judicial and regulatory application and interpretation of the$e statutory • .111d regulatory requirements 
are orten uncertain. We may need to incur significant co1-1~ or modify our business praclices and/or our services 
in ortler to comply \\ ith these laws and regulation:. in the future. Any such CO'-h or changes could ha\c a material 
adverse effect on our rc:.ult~ of operatiom. or prospects. If we are not abk to comply with :tpplicahle laws. we 
may be subject to signilicanl nwnelary penalties and/or orders demanding thm we cease alleged noncompliant 
:lct1vities. These or other remedies could have a mate1ial adverse effect on our results of operation or financial 
condition. Our l"ailurc or alkgcd railure to comply with privacy and data protecLion laws could harm our 
reputation, rei.ull in legal actions against us by governmental authoritic\ or pri\'ate claim:mt:-. or cau~e u~ lO lose 
<.:ustomer:-., any of which could have u material adverse effoct on our re\u hs of operations or prospects. 

ff we are unable to ma11age our costs, our profits could be adversely ajJected. 

lfo.wricall), sustaining our gro\\ th has placed ~ignific:llll demand~ on our management as wdl :L<; l11l our 
administrative. operational and tinanciaJ rc~ourccs. For example. in 20 I 0. our profits were negatively affected by 
our business realignment. including a re~tructuring charge of S3.8 million relaied to the reducrion of employee 
hc:1dcount, CEO ~everance Cl)~ls of $2.2 million and a long-lived :1sset impairment charge of $8.5 mi ll ion relatetl 
ll.> our Converged Mcsc;aging Sen ice:-.. For m. lo continue to rna11age our expanded operations. a~ well a"> <111) 

future growth. we must continue lo improve our operational. linancial <tn<l management information :.y!>lcm\ antl 
e:<pand, motivate and manage our workforce. If our quality of !>l!rvice i" comprorni!>eJ hecaul>e we are unable to 

;,ucce~ ... rully manage our co;,t-;. or if new ... ystem-; that we 11nplement 10 ai. ... i-;t m managing our operation:; do not 
rroducc the expected benefit!>. w~ may experience higher turnover in our rnMomer bm.e and our revenue ;md 
prolit:-. could be adver~ely affected. 

Changes in our tax rates or exposure to additional income tax liabilities could affect our profitability. In 
addititm , audits by fllx authorities could re.rnlt in additional tax payments for prior periods. 

We arc ;,ubjccl to im:omc ta.Xe"> in the U.S. and in nmou:-. non-U.S. juri ... dic.:tion .... The Company"~ ~·lfrcti\\.: 
tax rate can be affected by change:-. in the mix or earning$ i11 cou11trie~ with <liffering .,l<lllltory tax rate.; (inc.:luding 
a'- a re~uh of busine:-.\ acqui~ition' and di~po~ition~l. changes in the \ aluation of deferreu tax a~-;et:o; and 
linbilities. accrunls relnted to contingent tax liabilities itnd period-Lo-period changes in such accruals. the 
C:\piration of \talute ... or limit:.lliom,. the implementation of Lax planning ~trategie:. and d1anges in tax Jaws. ln 
addition. the amount of income taxe ... we pay is <.ubject tu ongoing audits by U.S. federal. stale <tnd local tax 
:1uthorittc~ and by nnn-U.S. ta\ authoritie.,. Due to the :1mbiguity nl ta\ law:-. and the subjectivity of tm.:tual 
uuerpretallon!>, our e'umal6 of mcome tax liabilities may differ twm actual payment~ or as~essme111~. The 
imract 0 1· Lhesc factor:. m;1y be sub~tantial ly different from period to period. tr the~e auJil1> r.::suh in paynh!nt..; or 
a-.;,c~'imenls d1ffereni from our rc~encs, our future 1-c-.uh~ may include unfonir.ible adJu-,tments to tiur ta\ 
liabilitie~. whid1 may negativdy affect our results or operation-.. 

\Ve mast recruit and retain skilled employees to succeed iu 11ur business. a11d our.failure to recruit and 
retain qua/Uied emplnyees could harm our ubility tu 111ai11tai11 and grnw our busines~ . 

We believe that an integral part or our ~uccess is our ability tl1 recruit and retain employee!-. \\ho ha\'c 
athw1ced sl-.ill-. in the <;erv1ces and -.olutions that we pro\ 1de and \\hO \\Ork \\Cll with our n1<;tomer~. In 
particular. we mus1 hire and re1ain employees with the technical expertise an<l indu.,1ry 1-.nowledge nect·s~ary lO 
maintain :md continm: lo develop our operations and mu~t dfccti\ely manage our growing -.ale!> and mar"etmg 
organitation !(\ensure the grnwth or our operations. Our ruwre ~uccess depends Oil lhe ability or our 11alcs antl 
markettng organizaLion w e-;tabli-.h direct sales channels anti to develop multiple distribution channel". The 
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employees with the skills we require are in great demand and are likely to remain u limited re~ourc:e in the 
fore~eeable future. Lr we are unable to recruit and retain a suflicient number of these employees at all le, els, our 
abi li ty to maintain and grow our business could bl! nc.:galively impact..:J. 

Our.failure to achieve or sustain market acceptance at desired pricing Levels could impact our ability to 
mai11tai11 profitability or positive cash }low. 

Our competitors and custmners may cau~e u~ to reduce the price<. we charge for our services and <;olution:-.. 
The primary sources of pricing pres:-.ure include: 

competitors offering our customers sen ice:. at reduced prices. or bundling and pricing '>ervicl':. ia a 
manner that makes it dilfo:ult for ll!> to compete. For example. a competing provider of Internet 
infra~tructure '>ervice:. might offer its :.Cr\ ice-; a1 lower rates than we do, u competing domain name 
regi-;1ry provider mny reduce it~ prices for domain name registration: 

t·u-,tomers with ,1 '>ignificam \Olume of trnn~action:. m:1y have t:nhanccd leverage in pa 1L'.111g 

negotiation:-. with u:-.; and 

if our prices are too high. potential customers may lind it economically advantageous to handle cert;1i 11 
Junctions internally in'>tead of u~ing our <;en ice~. 

We may not be able 10 off!>Cl the effecb of any price reduction~ by increa~ing the number of lran~actions we 
handle or the number of custome1:. we 'en·e. hy generating higher revenue from enhanced !.ervicei. or by 
reducing our costs. 

Our expa11sio11 into imeruational markets may be subject to 1111certainties that could increase our CO\IS to 
comply with regulatory requirements i11 f1Jreign juri.<tdictions, disrupt our operations, a11d require increased 
focus from our 111a11ageme11t. 

We cu1Tcntly provid.: <>crvice~ to cu!>lomcrs located in various international location!'. such as Bra1.il. Taiwan 
and China. We intend 10 pur-,ue ;1dditional international busine~' opponuanies. ln1cmati(ll1al (lpen11io1h and 
nus111ess expansion plan\ are ~ubjet'l t(\ numerous additional ri,ks. mduding: 

l'Conom1c and political ri<,ks in foreign JL1ri:-.d1ction:-. in '-\ hich we 11pcra1.:: or ~cek to opernte: 

difficulties in enforcing contracb and colk1:ting rcceivable' through '-Om<.' foreign l.::gal o;rtem.,: 

differences in foreign lnw~ and r<!gulation~. indudin& foreign tnx. intellectual properly, labor an<l 
contrnct law. a-; well :L-, uncxpe\:t\!tl ch:mgcl> in legal an<l regul:ite>ry requircmcmi,: 

differing t<:chnology standanl~ anJ pace or aJ(lption: 

e\pon restrit:tions on enl'ryptinn and (llher technologies: 

llucw,11ion:. in cunen1:y c\changc rate:. .rnd .iny impo<.ititll1 or currency exchange cnmrob: 

increa~eJ competition hy local. regional. or gh)bal companie-;: and 

difficulue~ il\Wciatl'd '~ ith nianauing a large org:.ini1ation .,pread throughout variou:-. countrie!".. 

If we continue 10 e\pand our businc:-.:-. globally. 1itar succes' will depend, in largt' part. on our ability to 
anticipate and effocli\ely manage these and other ri-;J..-; a-;sociated '~ith our intemmional operation~. llowe,er. 
any llf the~c facwrs could adwrsely affect our imernauonal t1perations and. cons.::quemly. (1ur operating. r.::wlts. 
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We may be unable to complete acq11isitio11s, or we may u11dertake acqui!.itio11s that could increase our costs 
or liabi/iJies or be disruptive lo our business. 

We have made a numba of acquisi1ion~ in 1hc: past. and one or our slralt:gie<; i" w pursue acqu1s11u..i1b 
.;elec11vely in the fu1ure. We may not be able to locale acqui'>ition candidateo; at price<; that we con!.i<lcr 
appropriate or 1rn terms thal are satisfactory to us. I f we do i<lentify an appropriate acquisi1ion candidate, we may 
not he able:: lo -;;ucce!.!.fully negotiate the terms of 1he acquisition or. ii' 1he acqui~ition occurs, integrale the 
a<.:quire<l bu~ines~ into our exi'>ling bu:.ines~. A<.:qu1si1ions of busincs<ies or lllher ma1eria1 upera1iun~ may require 
additional deh1 or equity financing, resul ting in addi1ional leverage or dilutirn1 Lo our -.tockholders. Integration or 
acquired bu-;iness operation<; coul<l disrupl our bu-;iness by diverting management away from day-to-day 
operations. for example, we may have diflicullies in modifying TARGUSinfo's existing a<.:C<.)11111ing and internal 
control systems lO <.:ornply with Section 404 or lhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act or 2002. lo \\hich TARGUSinfo Wa'> nol 
.;ubject, \\hid1 <:l)uld ad\er:-.ely impacl the ctlecti,eneo;s uf internal <.:ontrol over financial reporting for the 
combined rnmpany. The diffituhic!. of inlegration may be i1K-reascd by 1he nece1>si ty of coordim1ting 
geogr:lphically di~per-;ed c1rgani1a1iuns. integrating pe~onnel with disparate busines-. bad.ground~ and 
combining different corpurme cultun.:s. lt 1s also possible that the integration process could result in the k11o:-. of 
key rmployec<;, the disruplion or eac:h company" s ongoing busine!>sc-; or inconsistencies in standards. cont rub. 
procedures and policie<; that ad\'er,,ely affect our ahility to maintain rela1ionship<; with cu~mmer<;, suppliers. 
dis1nhutnr~, creditors. or le~l>or~. or 10 achieve the an1icipated benelit~ of the a<.:quh.ition. Wi:. also may not realize 
co:-.t cffiden<.:ieo; or syn.::rgies or other benefit.; that we anti<.:ipated ''hen :-.clec1ing our acqubitiun candidates. and 
we may be required to ill\e:-.t significanl capital and resource:-. after acqubition Lo nrnintain or gnm 1he 
bu.;i11e1>se~ that we :t<.:qui re. In addition. we may need to record write-downs frC1m impainnen1s or goc1dwill. 
intangible a-,\et". lll' long-lived a:-.~et-.. or record adju-;1menh 10 the purchase price tha1 occur after the dosing of 
the tran'>action. whi<.:h could reduce our future reported eamings. For example. in the fourth quarter of 2010 w..: 
recogn i1.cd an 58.5 million non-ca~h long-lived as\Cl impairment ch<u·ge related lo our Converged Mc-.,aging 
hu,ine,~. If we foil to ~ucc:es~full~ integrate ~md -,uppon 1he operations ot the bu:-.ine,:-.e~ we acquire. or if 
anticipated rc\cnue enhancements and <.:osl ~a\ ing~ are not realized from the<>c acquired bu1:>inesses. \iur bu<>iness. 
results of operation~ am! financial condition \~oul<l be m::uerially adversely affected. Further. :ll Lime~. acqui,ition 
candidate:-. may ha-.,c liab1li1ics. ncutralny-rclated risks \lr ad,.er'e opcraling i~sut:'> 1hat \A.C fail to d1,t:0ver 
through due di ligence prior to the :i<.:qui,iuon. The lailure lo discover such i~~ue' prim to such acquisition could 
have a material advcr"e effect on our busines ... and re,uhs ot opera1i1ms. 

Risks Related to the Financia l l\lar ket Conditions 

We may be u11ab/e to raise additional capital. if 11l'eded, or to raise capital rm fa l'flrable terms. 

The general economic anti c1p11al markcl condi1ion:- 111 lhe United States and other pans of lhl! world ha\e 
deteriorated ... ignilicamly and have mherscly affec1cd access to cap11:.1I and tncrea:.ed the co:-.t of c..:ap11al. 11· fund:-. 
available under nur Revuh ing Facility ure insuffi<.:ient to fund our hnure ai.:tn i1ieo;. including :.tcqubi1inns. 
l1rgan1c h11'.i11ess \cnture<.. 11r capital expen<liture,, \\C may need tl) rai,e additkmal fund;; lhwugh public: or 
prin1LI! equ11y or tkbt lin;mcing. tr unfavorablt: capital markc.:t conditi111h exi~l when we ~ce" additional 
financing. we 11\<lY not be: <1ble to rai'e ,uffidcnt <.:apit:ll on favorable tam-; or :u all. Failure w obtain capital on a 
timdy ba~i<. c<mld hil\e a material ad\er-;e elfec:t on our re~ults 11f operations incl11<.l111g an inability to fund Ill!\\ 

onzan1<.: and inorganic growth. 

Risks Related to Our Common Stock 

Our 1:0111111011 stock 11rice may be 1•0/atile. 

The market price of our C'la~-; A common ">l(\Ck may lluctuale wi<ldy. Fluctuations in the markel pnc..: of 
our cia~:-. A l:Offilll\)11 :-.tock could be c:w:-.cJ by many thing-;. mduding: 

our percei.,.ed pro"pects and the prospects of 1he telephone. lntrrnet and data analytil-s industrie-; in 
general: 



differences between our actual financial and (lperating results an<l those expected by imestor-; and 
analy~ts: 

change'> in analy!>ll> · recommendations or projections: 

ch::111gcs in general valuations for comrnunic:uions companie~: 

adoption or modification or regulations, policies. procedures or programs applicable to our husi ne~s: 

sales of our Class A common '>loci- by our ofticers. directors or principal '>tockholders: 

sales or ~ignilicatll amount~ of our Class A common stock in the public marl-el. or the perception that 
<.uch sales may occur; 

~ales of our Class 1\ comm~)Jl stock due Lo a require<.] divestiture under the t..:rms or our ct:rtificate of' 
incorporation: and 

t:hange~ in gener:.il economic or market conditions and broad market fluctuations. 

Each of the'e facwr~. among •>then;, could IHl\'C :i material :idwr~I! l'ITect on the market pm;e ol our Cla:-s A 
cnmmon 'tock. Recently. the '\lock market in gent!ral ha-; experienced c"<treme price nuctuutions. This \Olatility 
ha\ had n '>ub~tantial effect on the marl-et prices of -;ecuriues iswe<l b> man) compnnac:- for reason' unrelnted to 
the operating pcrfonn;ince uf the specific rnrnpanies. Stime companies that have had \'oiatile marl-.et prices for 
their ~ecurities have had securities cla'' acuon \Uil~ fil.::d again-.t them. rr a 'uit were to be filed uga1ns1 ll'. 
rcgardle~s of the outcome. it could re:-ull in 1'\lbstanti:tl Ct)SL<; and a diversion or our manageme111's attention and 
resources. Thi!\ could have a material adver~c: effect on our bu~incss. pro<>pect'i. linancial wndition and results ol' 
tipaatwn:.. 

/Jelaware law and prtJl'isiam. in our certificate of it1corporatilm and bylaws could make a merger, tender 
offer nr proxy contest diflirnlt. a11d the market price of our Class A cum111011 stock may he lower as a result. 

We are a Delaware corporation. and 1he anti-takeo' er pro,i~ion!> t)f the Delaware General Corporauon Law 
may dbcournge. tlday or prc,..:nt a ch;mgl' in control by prohibiting us l'rom engaging in a business combination 
with an interested stockholder for a pi.:1io<l ol three yc:m. afli.:r the pcr~on becomes an intcre,tcJ stocl-holder. C\en 
ii' a change 1)1 contr0l would be beneficial to our cxi:.ting stockholder~ . In addi tion. our ccnifica1e or 
im:orporation and bylaws muy <li-;courage. dday or pre\'ent a change in our managelllcnt or control o,·er u:- lhat 
'to<:khol<lers nut> consider fa,orable. Our 1.:crtifo:alc of incorporation and bylawc;: 

authori1.e th.:: i'suam:e or "blank check" preferrc<l :-tock 1hat niul<l be issued by our Boar<l of Diri.:ctors 
lo thwart a tal-.eovi:r aneinpt; 

prohibit 1.:u111ul:.ttivc voting in the election of directors. which wou l<l otherwise enable hol<.lef'\ of ks~ 
than a majority of our' oung securitie~ to elel't :-ome of our director.: 

establish a dm.sific<l Board of Director-.. as a result of which tht: succc,sor<> to the Ji1cccor-. "ho<.c 
terms have expired will be elected to ... en·e from lhe time of' decuon an<l qualifi<.:mion until the third 
,111nual mc..:tmg fo llowing cl.::ctiun: 

require that director, onl> be remo,e<l from onice for cause; 

provide that va..:ancit:s l111 the Board of Director<;. indu<ling l1C\\ ly-crea1ed <.lirectorship~. ma) l'!i! filled 
nnl) by ,1 m.1jority 'ote of directcip, th.::n in office: 

disqualify any in<liv1<lual fwm \crving on our bo:ml ii' sud1 indi\idual''\ 1,cr\'ice as a director \\f'UIJ 

cause U'> 10 'inlate our neutral it> requirements: 

limit who may call special meetings of .. 101.:kholders: 

prohibit ;,ttx:kholder acuon by wriuen consent, requiring <ll l <lc til'lls to he taken at a meeting of the 
~tod..holtle r~: ;m<l 

l'~tabli:-.h ad' a nee notice requir..:mcnt~ l'or nominating l·:md1tla1es for d t·cuon to the Board 1)f Director~ 

or l'nr propo~ing 111a11e1-.; that can be acleJ upon hy stockholders at ~tocl-.holdcr met:tings. 
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Ju order to comply with our neutrality requirements, our certificate of incmporatiou contains Oll'llership 
and transfer restrictions relating to telecom111w1icatio11s service providers and their affiliates, which may 
inhibit potential acquisition bids that our stock/zolders may consider favorable, and the market price of our 
Class A commmi stock may he lower as a result. 

In order to comply with neucmlity re4uirements impo.;ed b) the FCC in it<; orders :ind rule~. no entity I.hat 
qualifies as a .. telecommunications service provider" or affiliate or a Lelecommunil.'.;nions service provider. as 
defined undc::r the Communications Act of 1934 and FCC ruk" and orders, may benelicially 1.mn 5c1: or more of 
our capital stock. Jn general. a telecommunications ~ervicc provider is an entity that offers telecommunications 
services to the public at large, and i~. therefore. providing telecommunication~ services on a common carrier 
ba"i". l\foreo,er, a party will be dc::emed to be an affiliate of a telecommunications "ervice prO\·ider if thfll party 
controls, is controlled by. or is under common control with, a telecommunications ~l·rvicc provider. A pany is 
deemed to control anotht:r if that party. directly or indirecLly: 

owns I 0% or more or the total out!-tan<ling equity of the other party; 

hai:. the power to vote I Q<:f. or more or the securities having ordinary voting power for the election of 
the director~ or management of the other party: or 

ha:-. Lhc power to direct or cau~e the direction of the management and policies of the other party. 

A~ a result of this regulation. subject to limited exceptions, our certificate l)f incorporation (a) prohibits any 
Lclecornrnunications. \l.!rvice pro,·ider or affi liate (I(' a tdecornmunicatil)n5. 'l.!rvice provider from beneticiall) 
\J\\ning. directly or indirecLly, Y:r or more or our ouhtanding capital stock and (bl empowers our Board of 
Directors to determine Whl•ther any particular holder or our capital :-.LOCI-.. is a telecommunil:ations \ervice 
provider or an arttliate of a relecommunicarion\ -.ef\.ice prO\ ider. ,\mong other thing-.. our certificate of 
111corpormion prm ide~ that: 

if one of our -;tod.holder' expe1iem:es a change in staLus or other e' ent 1hal result' in the :-.wckholder 
violating this re:-.tricLion, or if any transfer of our :-.tuck occurs that. 11' dfcclive. woulu violate the 5'k· 
restriction. we may elect to purchase the e11.ce'' sh~tres li.e .. the shares that cause the 'iolation of the 
re~tnction) or require th~n the excess shares be sold Lo a third-party whose nwner~hip will not vi1)late 
the r.:::.triction; 

pending a required dive ... uture ol the~e excess ,hares, the holder whose bcnelicial owncr,hip villlales 
the 5'~1· restriction may nm vote the .;hare' in e\cess of the 5i:'c threshold: and 

if our Board of Direccors. or its penniued designee. <.let.ermines that a trnn~fer. auempted tran!>fer or 
other event 'iolating this re:.triction hm. taken place. "e mu;,t take ''hate\ er JClion '' e dc..:m advl'>able 
tn pn.'\ ent or refuse to gi' e effect to the transfer. induding refusal w register the tr~1nsl'er. di-.rcgurd of 
any vote of the shares by the prohibi1ed owner. nr the in<>tituiion of procec::dings 10 enjoin the 1rnn,ler. 

:\ny person who ncquircs. or attempts or intends to acquire, beneficial owner~hip of' our stock that will N 

Illa) 'iulale thi' re•.tr1ction mu<;t no11fy u-; as pn.w1ded in our ccnilicate of inc<>rporatmn. In .iddiuon. any pt:r~on 
who become:; the bendicial owner of 5% or more of our siod mu:-.t notify u~ and cenify that <;ud1 person i~ not a 
tdecommunicatit)11S ... ervice prnvider or an affiliate of a telec:ommunic:ation:-. \e1Tice pro,1der. If :i y:~ 

'tocl-.holJer fads to '>Upply the required cerulica11011. we are authoriled to treat that 'tocl-..holder as a pr~)lubitcu 
owner - meaning. :imong other things. 1hat we may decl lo require lhaL the e'\ce'' -;hares be ... old. We ma)' 
reque. ... t .1dJitional information from our stocl-.holders to ensure compliance with this restriction. Our board \\ill 
treat any "group," a.-, Lhat term is defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Securilie\ Exchange !\cl or 1':1~4. a<; :t ... ingle 
person for puqiose~ ol appl} ing the O\\ ner-;h1p and 1ransft:r restricLion" in our <:ertificate of inc:orporation. 

Nothing in our certificale of incorporall<m re'>Lricts our abilily to purchase ~hares of our capital ~toe!-.. If a 
pun:ha'-C b~ us of :.hares ot our capi1al ~t11ck re~ulls in a '>tockhol<.lcr' s percentage mtere),t in our out~Landing 
c1pital ~tock increa~ing to over the 5% threshold. :-ouch stockholder muo;t deliver th<! required certification 



regarding suc.:h swckholder's ~tatus :I!- a telewmmunication11 service provider or affiliate of a telecommunication-; 
service pro' ider. In addition. to the extent that a repurchase by us of shares of our capital stock causes any 
<;tockhol<lcr to viobte the restrictiuns on ownership anu tran~fcr contained in our cenificatt: of incorporation. that 
-;tockholdcr will be 'ubject to all or the provi.,ions applicable to prohibited owners. including requireu Ji\'estiture 
and loss of voting right<;. 

These rcstrictionc, and requirements may: 

tli~couragc indu11try participants that might have othawisc been interested in at:quiring us rrorn rnal-..ing 
a tcnuer offer or proposing c,ome other form or transaction that could involve a premium price for our 
~hares or otherv.1ise be in the best interests of our qockholders; and 

di~couragc investment in uc, by other inve,aors who are tclecommunicauons sen·ice prmider-; or who 
ma) be <l.:emed to be al'liliates ot' a telecommunications service provider, which may decrease the 
demand for our Class A common ~toe!-.. and cau:.c the rnarkt·t pri<.:c or our Clas:. A common SLOck 10 be 
loY. er. 

ITEM I B. UNRESOLVED ST A FF COMME!\TS 

None. 

ITEM 2. PROPERTTES 

Our corporate h1.:mlqu~1rtcrs compk" i!- located in Sterling. Virginia. As or Dcccmb1.:r 31. 20 I I. \\e lca<;ed 
:tppro:-.imatel:r -l20.000 square reel of <;pace. primarily in the lJnill!d State,, anu lo a lel\Ser l!XlCnl in Europe and 
Cosw Rica. in supp<H1 of general orti.ce :ind <;ales operation->. We do not own ~my real prope11y. As or 
February 17, 2012. we belie\ e tha1 \>Ur lea<.ed facilities haH' ,ufficil·nt capacity 10 meet 1he current and projected 
need-. or our businl':.s. The t'ollov.ing table lists our major locations and pri1mu·y use. by operating !>l'gment. 
where :ipplicable. for continuing op(•racions: 

Leased Property Locat ions 

Sterling, VA. United Stales 
'.\!clean. VA. United State<; 
California. United States 
Colorado. United States 
Kt!ntucl-..)'. Cni1cd State'> 

Utah. Cnited States 
Di<>trict of Col1Jmbia. Cnited States 
)1aines. L:nited Kinguom 
Heredia, Cmta Rica 

.\ppro~imate ~quare Footai:c 

237 .000 
49.000 
57.000 
l..J.000 
18,000 

8,000 
13.000 
6.000 

13.000 

(;encral l'~aµe 

C1>rporatc headquarter-; 
Information Ser\'ices 
Carrier and Enterprise Services 
Carrier Services 
Carrier anti Enterp1ise Service:-. 
c.:ustomer ~uppon 

lnform~llion Services 
(icn.:ral orfice and ~ales 
C1rricr anu Emerpril-e Ser-. ice-. 
lnformmion Servkes 

Upon exp1rauon of the property lease<;. we expect to obtain renewab or to lea~e ahcmati'>e <.,pa<.:e. Lea.\e 
e:-. piration d:11es range from 2012 through 2022. 

lTEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDl:"lGS 

From time to time. \ve <u·e 'ubject LO claims in legal proceedings arising in the normal wur:.e of our 
busines<;. \\'e Jo not belie\e that ,.,,e are party to an:r pending legal action thar could rea:-.onably be expec.:tcd to 
lwve a material adverse el l'ect on our busines~ or operating results. 

ITEM ..J. M J!'\E SAFETY DISCLOSURES 

~ol applicablt:. 
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PART U 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REG ISTRANT"S COMMON EQL:ITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER 
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASE OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

Market for Our Common Stock 

Since June 29, 2005. our Cla,.;.; A common stod, ha.; traded on the New Yori-. Stock Exchange undt!r the 
"~ mb•)I .. NS R:· As of February 17, 20 I 2. 1)ur Cla"" A common stock was ht!ltl by 326 stockholders o r record. 
The fo llowing lable scls fonh the pl.!r-shan.: range or tht: high ;mtl low sales p1ici:s of our Class A common stock 
a~ reportetl on the New York Stod. c\changl.! for the periotls indicated: 

Hii:h Low 

F'isci1I ye<1r ended December 31, 2010 
rir\t quarter $26.10 $21.87 
Sc:cond quaner $26.73 $20.23 
Third quaner S25. 12 $20.20 
Fourth quarter $27.07 $23.89 
Fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 
Fir-;t quarter $27.89 )24.60 
~econ<l q uane r S27.22 '5.25. 18 
Thin..! quarter $27.09 .;;22.24 
Fourth quancr )3-l.7 3 )24.79 

Thi:re is 110 e-;tahli.,hed publil.: trading market for our Cla~-. B common stock. As of February 17. 2012. our 
Class B comnwn ~toe" was held by 5 stockho lder~ of record. 

Dividends 

We did 1int pay any ca~h dividends 011 our Class A or Class B common M0ck in 2010 or 20 I I and we do 1101 
~·'<peel w pa) any c;1..,h dh·idends ~m our common ... w..:k tor the roreseeable future. We currently intend tv retain 
any ruwrc carning.1' to linanc..: ou t operation~ and gnm.th . Our revoh ing credit facilit)' l imit~ our abili ty 10 
1kdarc or pay dividend .... We a re a lso limited hy Delaware law in the amount of dividemh we can pay. Any 
future'. Jctc:m1ina1ion t1) pay ca ... h <l1\ 1dends will be at the <liscre11un nf our BParcl of Director). anJ will depend on 
e:irni ng-;. lin:rncial condition, oper:Hi ng results. capital requirements. LJll] co111ra..:1ual re~trictillllS and other ta..:tors 
that Olli Boartl or Din.·ctor~ deem~ rele\ ant. 

Purchases of Equity Securities 

Th<! following table is a \Ummary or our repurcha-.cl> <'f common -.,we'-. during each or 1he three mumh~ in 
the quancr cndcd December 31, ~O 11: 

\lonlh 

0-:tober I through O.:tober 31, 20 I I 
Nm ember I through N1>vemher JO . .20 I I 
December I through December 31. 20 I I 

Total 

Total 
'\umllcr of 

Shares 
l\rrcha~cd C ll 

-l8 I. I 39 
2Jl23 

7.2-17.288 

7.7:\0.450 

.29 

\\<.·rA~e 

l'r·icc Paid 
per Shure 

~29.17 

Jl.40 
J-t50 

~34. l7 

\pproximalc 
Tot.ii Number ur t>ollur \ "afuc or 
Share' rurch:1-.cd 'iharc~ thu1 \hn 
••5 t>ar1 of l'ublich \"ct Be Purcha~cd 
\nnourwcd l'luns l 'ndl•r th1• Plans or 

or Progrnms 121lJJ l'rogra111~ <3l 

-179.556 :, 185.299.019 
·+35.299.0 19 

7.2-16.376 185.299.019 

7,725,932 5 185.299.019 



(I) The number of shares pun.:hasetl indudes ~h:u·es nf common stock tentlered by employees to us to <;atisfy the 
employees' tah withholding obligation~ arising a.' a result of vesting of restricted "tock grams untler our 
Mod, incentive plan. We purcha~cd the:.e ~harei. for their fair market value on the vesting date. 

(2J The differem:c between Lhe total number of shares purchased anti the total number of shares purchased as 
part of publicly announced plans or program" is .t.518 share:.. all of which relate to shares :.urrendered to us 
by employees to satisfy the employees' t:\h withholding obligations arising n~ a result (,f vesting of restricted 
stock grants under our incentive '\tock plans. 

(3) On July 28, 2010. we announced the adoption of a share repurcha~e progr~1m. The program authoriLcd the 
repurdHL<;e of up to )300 million of Cla<>s A common :.hares Lhrough a Rule I Ob:i-1 plan, open market 
pun:hases, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise a~ market conditions warrant. al price-; we deeme-<l 
:ippropriatc. This Ruic 10b5-I plan \\U'> terminated on Nu,ember J. 2011. upon the comment.:emcnl vf our 
mu<lilied Dutch auction tender offer. On November 3, 201 1. we announced the commencement of a 
mmlified Dutch auction tender offer to purcha.~e up to S2:'i0 mil lion of our cia~s A COlllllh!ll qo.:k. The 
modified Dutch auction to::nder offer expired at 12:00 midnight. New York City time. on the night of Fridny. 
December 2, 2011. We purchased 7 ,2.t6,376 share:. or our Cla~s A common stock at the final purd1a.\c rrit.:.: 
or $3..+.50 per share, for an aggregate c.;o:.t o r approximately S250 million. 
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Performance Graph 

TI1e following chart compares Neustar·s cumubtive \tock.holder return on its common stod. over the last 
live fiscaJ years compnred with $ 100 invested in the: (a) Rus:-.ell 3000 lndex and (b) NYSE T:VIT Indc\. an fndex 
of Technology. Media and Telecommunication:. companies. each over that \ame period. 

The comparison assumes reinve1,tme111 of di' idends. The stock pert"ormance in the graph i-; included to 
satbfy our SEC di:-.dosure requirement'), and is not intended to forecast or to be indicative of future performance. 

fhis Performance Graph shal l not be deemed to he incorporate<l by reference into our SEC tiling~ and -;hall 
not constitute soliciting material or otherwise be consi<lerecl tiled under the Securities Act or 1933. as amended, 
or the Securities Exchange /\ct ur 1934. a~ amended. 

$12.0 

$40 

$20 

so 
3l·Dcc·06 

-+-NcuStar __._Russ.ell 3000 -NYSE TMT 

31·0CC·07 3l·Dec-08 31·0<?C·09 31·0cc·10 31 Dec·ll 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

The table~ bdow prc!>cnt selected consulidatc<l staicmcnts of operations data and ~dcctcd t·onsolidaied 
balan<.:c sheel data for each ye<u· in 1he five year period ended December 31. 2011. The l>Clected con:.olitlated 
"ratements of operations data for each of the three yeai·s en<led Dccl!mber 31, 2009. 2010 and 2011. and the 
selected consolidated b:ilance sheet daia as of' December 3 1. 2010 nnd 20 11 . have been derived frorn, and should 
be read together with. our auditec.I consolidated financial slatemenl'- and related 1101es app;!aring in this report. 
The ~electe<l consolitlated statements of operations data fur each or the two years cn<led December 31. 2007 and 
2008. and the <;eJet· ted consolidated balance sheet d:it<I as of December 3 1. 2007. 2008 anti 2009. have been 
derived from 0ur audited con.;olidated financi<ll st:itemellls and related notes not inclutled in thi:-. repo11. 

The fo llowing infomwtion <;houlJ he reatl togcthcr with. anti is qualilic<l in it<; entirety by reference to. the 
more decailcd informacion C\>nlained in ··M.111agement" s Discus<;ion and Analysi~ of Financial Condition and 
Re~ulls of Operation~·· in Item 7 of this report anJ our cnn~o lida ted fi nancial statement-; and relate<l notes in 
Item 8 of thi~ repon. 

Ycur Ended l>l•t·t~mhcr .\1. 

2007 2008 2009 2010 20 11 

!in 1bou~unds. cwcr>t per , hare d:lla) 
Consolidakd Statements of Operations Outa: 

Total revenue S-12 1.062 5 47-U41 ~467.253 ';520,866 ~620,455 
Oper~uing expen~e: 

Cl.i~t of rev.:nue (exd uding depreciation 
and amor1ization ,hown separatdy 
helO\v) 87,650 89.5-B 99.436 I I 1.282 IH.992 

Sales and marketing 60,760 62.769 80.676 86.363 109.855 
Research and development 19.766 17.325 l Ul94 13.780 17.509 
General and a<lministrati\ e 41.504 S0.809 52.491 65..t96 96.317 
Depreciation and amonintion 28.24 1 29.978 29.852 .>2.861 -1-6.209 
Rc:\t ructuring charges •)74 5.36 1 \549 

237.921 250.424 277.523 315.1-U 411,.BI 

li1comc from \lper<.ll illll~ 183. 14 1 223,7 17 189.730 205.72.3 209,024 
01her (expense) income: 

lnterec;.t ;mu other expense <l .. n~i ( 15.489) (5.213) (6.ll9:'i) !6.279) 
Interest anti other income -l.599 13. 109 7.491 7.582 l.%0 

ln1:0111e from continuing operations before 
inc\.1me taxe\ 186.362 221.337 192.(){)8 206.3 I 0 20-l.7 I I 

Provi:-.inn for in...:ome taxe:-.. c:ontinuing 
operation' 75.098 86.9·13 76.498 82.282 81.137 

Income from cominuin!? operations I I 1.264 13-U9-l 115,5)() 124.028 I 23,57-l 
(Loss) in<.:ornc l"ron1 dbt"lllllinued \)pcrat i on~ . net 

1lf l~\X 118.9291 ( 130.100) I I J.369) ( 17.819) 17.249 

:-Jet income s 92 . .135 s -l.29-l 5 101. 1-l l :> 106.209 ) I C>0.823 

Basic net income <lo<.\) pt'r common 'hare::: 
Continuinl! opcr:iuons s IA-6 c;; 1.81 s 1.55 .:; 1.66 '> 1.69 
Disconti11111.:tl operation~ (0.25) ( 1.75! (0.19) 10.24) n.51 

Basic net income per common ,hare '> 1.21 \ 0.06 " 1.36 ) I 12 " 2.20 

Diluted net income <kw .. 1 per common ~hare: 
Clllltinuing operation~ ~ 1.40 s 1.77 s 1.53 ') 1.63 <.; 1.66 
Di"continuetl operation~ (0.2.+) (1.71) (0.19) 10.2:') 0.50 

Di lured net inc:ome per c<•mmon share ~ I . I 6 ~ 0.06 ') 134 ~ I -1-0 s 2.1 ( 1 

Wei!?hte<l :l\Cl"<i!!e common i>hare.;; out..,t:indirl!.?: 
~f3a,ic ~ ~ 76.038 74.351) 7-UOl 74.555 72.97-1 

Di luted 79.300 76.107 75.465 76.065 7-l.496 
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.\~or December 31. 

2007 2008 2009 20!0 !01 1 

(in t hou~andsJ 

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data: 
ca~h. cash equivalent<; and short-term investment!. $ 198.678 $ 161.653 $34~. 1 9 1 S345J72 s 132.782 
Working capiial 210.870 164,636 316.263 .145.221 193.997 
Goodwill and intang ible assets 240,944 134.661 127.206 143.625 913A l9 
Total as~cts 6 16,661 5 19.166 6-17,80..J. 733.874 1,382.638 
Deferred revenue anJ customer credits. excluding 

current ponion 18.063 11.657 8.923 10.578 10.363 
Long-term note payable and capital lea!>e 

ubligmions. excluding cun·cnt portion 10.923 11.933 10.766 4.076 586,727 
Total :-tockhokler-;· equity 480.535 386,653 504,-D7 596, 112 502.63-l 
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ITEM 7. MANAGEl\:lENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RES CL TS OF OPERATIONS 

You slwuld read rlie followi11g discuysion u11J analysi\' in cc>nj1111criu11 with the in(or111mio11 se1.forrh under 
··setected Financiul Duta" in ITem 6of1'11:. report and our nmsolidtllt:d fi11u11dal :.tatemen11 and rdatt•d 11m"s i11 
!rem 8 of this rl!/?arf. Tiu: sra1e111ews i11 this discussion refatl!d to our expecrwiuns regarding our f11111re 
performance. liquidi~\· and rnpital rern11n:e.1·. wul orlwr 11011-Jii.Hc>rical statements i11 1his di1ettssin11. are fonrnrd­
looki11g statements. These forward-looki11g H<.Jle111e111s are .rnhject to 1111merou1 risk.I and 1mcertai111ies. inc/111/in:<. 
bw 1101 limited to. the risks a11d 1111certai111ies described i11 ··Rist. Fact on" in !rem I A of this report and 
"Busint•ss - Cau11mu11:v Note Regarding Fonrard-Loc1J.:i11g Sw1e111t•11ts .. in Item I of this report. Our acnwl 
results may differ rnareria//y.fhm1 those conmined in or implied by wn"for1rnrd-looki11g statements. 

Ovcn it:w 

Consolidated revenue growth continued to be ~trong i11 20 11. Our consolidated revenue for the year grew 
19.1 o/r to $620.5 nu Ilion as compared to $)20.9 million in 20 I 0. Operating expense for the year ended 
December 31. 20 t I wa;. $411 A million. an inaea'c or $96.3 million from 53 15. t mill ion in the prior yem. 

Our re,·enue increai.e of $99.6 million wa~ dri,en primarily by an increase in the revenue under lrnr 
conlr:tcts with the North /\merican Portability Management LLC, ur ~APM. rur our number portability 
atlmini!>tration cenlcr service<;, or '\IPAC Services. We continued to see strong tlcmand for our other Carrier 
Ser\ ices and Enterprise S..:rvices. Our OMS re\cnue increased primarily due to greater usage from ex bring 
customers nnc.I the 20 11 acquisition or our licen:-,ed orcl<::r management services. Demand for our ITS solutions 
continuetl to he strong. bl)th rrom new and cun-cnt customers. an<l Regi;.try Sen ice:-. grew a:-. a rc:-.ull of an 
incrc~1sed number of common short co<l<::s and tlomain names under management. Jn addition. our ai.:quisition of 
TARGUSinf'o, our new Information Services segment. i.:nntribured $21.2 million of re,·enue in the fourth quarter 
and will help us Ji,ersify our re,enue ba-;e in the future. The tncrease 111 operating expense was dri,en by 
personnel and pcrsonnel-n.:latcd expense prinuuily rrom headcoum additions to our wams in support of business 
operation:. and from acquisition" we cornplcted in 2011. 

We plan to build on our 20 I I succes-;es by lever<lg.ing our core i.:ompetencies with our newly acquired 
""~els. Our ucquisillon of T/\RGUSinfo C\pamk<l our "Cr\'ices and 't>lutiom,. leading our customt!rs and 
111ve,tors to 'icw u" not 111st as a tclecommumcations i.:ompany hut a:-. a r!!al-time 111formation analytics 
company. n1is acquisition provide<; us with the opportunity to leverage our authPritative databa.,es that are 
prncc<...,ing trillion~ of tran~actions in a ne" -way and enable:-. us to provide ne'" ~olutions to our customer' based 
on n.:at time anal) tic-. dcrin'd from our addrcs:-.ing capabilitic:-.. We will continue Lo 11ffcr innovative services to 
our existing and new cu\tomcrs a:-. we C\olve into a global leader in rt!al -time analylics. We bdie'e this will 
prov1tle a foun<latifln for our long-term strategy to deliver -;ig.nifo:ant ~harehol<ler value. 

Our <..:ompany 

\Ve arc a Lru&1cd. neulr:il prO\ ider of rl!al-1imc inflmn;uion and analytic-_ to the ln1ernet. Cl•111munic:llions, 
eni..:rtainmenl. <H.h.:rli..,ing and marketing induMrie.., around the \H\rltl. Our ~tdvanccd. ~ecure tcchnologic;; pmvi<lt! 
.lddres~ing. routmg. pofa:y management and authemication servic:e~ that enable our cul>tomcrs to find their l!nd 
user<.. route network traffic to the optimal l<ication and \'crify end-ll"l!r idenliry. With our t:.\perti'>e in database 
man<lgement and analy-.is. we al\l) prlwide cyber ... ecunry. markeung and alh 1!11ising information ;m<l anal~ tics to 
~lur Cll'>tomt•r:-.. 

We were founded to meet the tcchmcaJ and oper;llionill challenges of the l·ommunicauons indu<.try when the 
U.S. gm emmt'nt mandatt!d k)cal 11umbt'r portability in 19%. We provide the authoritative <;olu tion that the 
communication;. indu~try rdies upon 10 meet thi~ mandate. Since then. we have grO\\ n to offer a broad rang..: of 
innovative -.crvicc-.. includ111g registry ~Cf\ ice'. managed DN<:; services. IP \ervices. fixed IP geolocation 
~crvices. Internet senirity ~ervii.:e~. culler ID services. web perlornrnnce monitoring service!-.. and real-lime 
information and ;lnal}tics <.el'\ ices. 
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We operate in three ~egments: 

Carria Service1. Our carrier sen ices inclu<le numbering service'. or<ler management services an<l IP 
services. Through our set of unique database!> and system infrastructure in geographically dispersed 
dma centers, we manage the increasing <.:lHnplexity in the communications industry und ensure the 
'eamles<; t·onne<.:lion of our CaiTicr cu~tomers· numerou'> networks, \\hilc also cnhancing the 
capabilities and perfomrnn<.:e of their infra'>tructure. We opernte the aulh1>ritative <lmabases that manage 
virtually all telephone area cOl.les and numbers. and enable the Jynamic rouLing of calls and text 
messages among numerous competing carriers in the United States and Canada. All carriers that offer 
tdecommunicalions service:. 10 thc public at large in the United States anJ Canada must access a copy 
or our unique dal<ibase w properly route their customers· calls and text messages. We also faci litate 
order management and work-llow proce:-.sing among carriers, and allow opennon; 10 manage and 
optimi1e the addressing and routing of IP commumcattons. 

E11rerprise Serriccs. Our enterpri!-c services indude fnternct infraMructure services an<l regiMry 
~crvices. Throu)!h our global directory pl:itform. \\ •~ prm ide a 'u!te or DNS ~ervice:-. to our cnh.:rprise 
customer:-.. We manage a collectll)n of <lirec1e1ries that maintain audre,,es in ordcr to dirc..:t, priori1i1.e 
and manage Internet traffic. anc.1 to tind an<l resolve lnternet queries and top-level domain-;. We are the 
authorilati\e provider of essential registry ~ervices and manage directories of -.imilar re-.ource-;. or 
a<ldres:-.es. that our customers use ror reli:tble, fair and secure ac.:e-..-; :md connectivity. In addition. 
emerprise CU!'>IO!llcrs rely on our services 10 monitor and loa<l-test websites lo help identify i<;suc:-. anc.1 
llptirni1e pe1form~111ce. We abo provide li\ed IP geolocation 'en·ices that hdp cnterpri~e<; idemiry the 
lo..:ation or their ~1nline consumers for a variety or purposes, including fraud pre' em ion and marketing. 
i\d<lition:dly. we provitl.: direl·tory '.::rvices for the 5 and 6-digil number strings ui.cJ !'or all U.S. 
Common Short Codes. \'vhich i-. p:ut of the ,hon mc,-;aging '>erYice relied upon by the U.S. \'vitcle!'>s 
industry. 

lnfi1r111mio11 Serricn. Our information -;ervices include on-demand \oluti1m.; that help c:irrier<; an<l 
enterpri-;es identify. ,·enfy. -;core an<l locate customers and prospective customer<;. Our authoritative 
databa.;es :m<l 'olution~ enable our cliems Lo make informt:d decision'> in real time abom con~umer­
initialcd imcractions on the Int..:rn.:L. over the telephone an<l at the point or ~ale. by correlating 
consumer tdentilicr information \\ ith .ittributes -;uch a:. demographic~. hu) ing behavior, an<l locmion. 
Thi, allow~ our cu!.tomer' to offer consumt·r~ more relevant 'crvices and products. and le:ids to higher 
clicnl conversion rates. Our businc:,-; listing~ identity m:uwgcrnent -;crvices help local busines~es •llld 
national bran<ls improve the vi:.il;ltlity of thdr onlin..: bu!>inl!:.:. li'>ting' on local search engines. L·sing 
1>tir proprietary databa!'>e. our online di:.play aJ,ert1,ing ~olulion allow~ marJ..cters to di:.play, in real 
time. advertisemenh chat will he most rdl!vant LO online consumers withom the necJ for online 
beh<n ioral tra.:king. 

Our costs and expen!-cs con'i~t or co'l of revenue. 'ale:. an<l marketing. rc,earch anti development, general 
and a<lmrnistrati\ e. depreciation and amoni1ation. amJ restructunng charges. 

Co..,t or revenue i11c:ludes all direct materials <.:osts, direct labor cO:'.lS. and indirect co!-ts related t~' the 
gcner~llton c•f reH:nue cc,uch as indire.:l l::thor. outsourced 'ervit·es. materials and supplie~. pa) rnelll proce-;..,mg 
fees. and general facilittc~ co:-.1. Our primary CO'\t or re\ .;nue l'i per~onnd l.:Chl~ :tS:-.ocialt:d with ... ervice 
imple1m.:ntation. proJucl maimenance. cu,tomcr deployment <1nd customer care, including :.alarics, -.tock-hase<l 
eompen,atinn :ind other p.!rsonnel-related C\pense. In ad<ltlion. co-.1 of reH!nue inc:ludes co .. t..; relating to 
developmg modilication., ;md enhancemenh of our e\l~ting technology ~md ..;en· iee~. a~ well a-.. royaltie~ paid 
related lo our U.S. ConHll\'11 Short Code '>1.!l'\'ices and registry gateway ~..:rvicc~. Cost ur revenue also includes 
twas relating lo our int1irmation technology and -.y,tem:. <lcp.u1mem. including network <.:o~t· .. data <.:l!nter 
mainlen~1nce. dataha\e management. data proce!>sing co!-ts and general facilities cP-;t-;. 

Sale~ and marketing expense consi,t:. ot per-;unncl co~Ls. such <L' ~atarie~ .... ales commission .... travel, sloek­
ha..;ec\ compensa11011. and other pe1-.;onnel-1dated expense: cost.; associated with auending :rnd spun·wring trade 
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\hows: facilities costs: professional fees: costs of mart..e1ing programl'. such a~ Internet an<l prim mart..e1ing 
programs. as well as costs ror prmluct branding. market :rnalysi'> and foreca:.ting: and customer relationship 
management. 

Re~carch anJ Jevelopment expense consi~t!> primarily of per'ionnel co~t<>. including salaries. -;cod-based 
compensation an<l other personnel-related e\pen.,e: con1rac1or costs; aml the costs of facilities. computer and 
support ~l!rvice!- used in service and 11.:chnology tlevelopmcnt. 

General :md administrative expense consists prim:u·i\y or per!'onnel co<>t!-, including ~alarie~. stock-based 
compen-.ation, and other personnel-rdated C\pen'>e. for ~)Ur execuli\e, <llhninistrati\e. legal. linance and human 
re .. ources functions. General and adrninistrative expense also includes facilities. l>Uppnn services and profe~sionul 
-.crvice~ i'ees. 

Depreciation and amortintion relates to amortization of idemitl:ible intangibles. and the depreciation of L)Ur 
property and equipment. including our network infra.;tnicture anJ faci!itie" rela1ed to our scrYke,;. 

Restrm:lUring charges rdate to the termtnaiion of certain cmplo)ee-; and reduction in or closure of leased 
fo.cili1ie~ in some of our 111terna1ional locations. 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

The tliscu,<;ion ;ind analysis of our fin:mc1al condition and results of opera1ion!> are based ,m ,rnr 
consoli<lateJ lmanci:.d statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principle-.. or U.S G/\AP. The preparation of thl.!.,e tin:rncial :.1a1emenh in acclirdancc with 
U.S. Gi\AP requires us 10 111ili1.e accounting policic!'> an<l make certain e~timatcs and as<;umptions that affi.!ct the 
reported amount" of a-.set'> and liabili1ies. the disdosure of contingencii.!s as of the date of the linandal stateme1m 
:111<l the reported anwums \lf re,enue and e\.pense during a fiscal period. The Securi1ies and Exch•rnge 
Commis~iun. or SEC. consider<; •1n accounting policy Lo be critical if it b important LO a company"s i'inancial 
condi1ion and re<.ult:-. 111' operations. and if it rl!quires .,ignilicant judgment and e~tima1es on the pan of 
manng.cment 111 its application. We have cliscu~~cd ihe -,election and devcl1)pment of the critical a<.:counting 
policie!> with the audit commiuee or our Board or Directors. antl the audit <.:omm1uee ha., re\ ie\\.etl our related 
di .. do~ure~ in thi~ repo11. 

Although v.e belie\·e thJt our ju<lgrnen1c; an<l estimates are appropriate and re:1~onable. actual result:; Illa) 

differ from Lho<.e es111n:ue~. In aclclition. while we have u~cd our best estimate~ ba,e<l on the fac1s and 
circumstunce!> available 10 u .... 1t the lime. \\.e rca•..onabl~ <.:oul<l ha\ c u .. cd different e ... 1ima1es in the cu1Tent period. 
Change~ in the accou111ing e-,umates \\e u~e are n::a~onably likely to occur from period to penod. which may have 
a material impm:t on the pre<,ent:uiun or our f"inam;ial c\•ndition and n:"ult\ of oper:1tio1h. If actual resuh" or 
e\Clll\ differ 111aten.1lly from tho-,e contemplated hy us in making these e~timates, our rep11ned linandal 
condition and rc-.ult-; of ()per~11ion:-. wultl bl.! materially affected. See Lhc information in our filings \\.ith tht.: SEC 
from time to 11mc and hem I \ of thi~ repon, ··Ri ... t.. Factor-;.'' for certa111 mailers that may bear on our rcsulL' ot 
operations. 

, \cquisitiom 

We record acqu1~i1ions u-,mg 1hc acqui'>ilion merho<l of acc:11uming. We rceogni1e ull or 1he a~sets ;1t·quired. 
liahilitic\ a\sumcd. contractual contingencie\ and co111ingc111 consideration. when applicable, a1 their fair \"alue ;\!> 
1tf the acqui.;;1tion date. \Ve record the excess or the purcha~t: price mer the estim.1te<l fair \ alue,; of the net 
Langible and intangible as~ets a<.:quirl·d a-; goodwill. Tht• application of lhe at·qu1sition method of accounting fo1 
bu~ine!>' combinatio1h require.., management to make significant e~timatc' and a~ ... umptiom. in 1he dctermm:uion 
of the fair value of asf>Cl\ acquirctJ :tnd liabilities <JS'-lltned in order t(l properly allocale purchase price 
n1nsider:uion. These a~sumpti(>n'i and estimates ret"lect our expected u ... e (If the asse1 and 1he appropriate Ji<.c0un1 
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rates from a markel participant perspective. Our e~rimates are ba'>ed on hiswrical experience and information 
obtained from the managemenL or the acquired companies. and are determined with assistance from an 
indcpend.:nt third-party apprai:.al firm. Our :.ig1111i.:ant a:.:-.umplion<> and c.,timatc:. can include. but arc not limited 
to, the ca:.h tlows that an acquired a:.set is expected to generate in the future. the weighted-av...:ruge cost \lf 

capital. lnng-cerm projected revenue<. and growrh rates. :ind the el.ti mated royalty race in lhe appli.:ation of rhe 
relief from rO) ahy valuation method. The!-e estimates are inherenlly uncerrain. In addilion, unanti<.:ip::ued event~ 
and circumstances may occur which may affect the accuracy or validity or such estimates. During the thin.I 
quarter of 2011, we acquired the <L.,:-cts and as,umed certain liabilitie:. of the Numb..:ring Solution:. bu-;ine:-.s ol 
Evolving Systl!ms. Im:. and recorded $20.3 mi ll ion vf goodwill and S:! l .7 mill ion of definite-lived intangible 
<1'>'-ets. During the fourth quarter or 2011. we acquired the capital -.tock of T ARGCSinfo for appro"(imatel) 
S658.0 111illion. In connection wi1h this acqui~ition. we :l!-!-Umcd unve!.ted option:. \\·ith an cstirnal.:d 10cal fair 
value of $5.7 million. or the total $5. 7 million. approximately S5.0 million \\ill be C\.pcn-.ed r~)f po:.l­
comnination :.en ice:- and approximately 50.7 million ha' been included in the purcha .. e price. The e:-.timated fair 
value or the ~b:-.urned unvel.ted options w;1~ dctermineJ utili1.ing the I lull-White lattit·e model which required us 
to apply judgment and use :.ubjective assumption!-. includmg volatility of stock prices and an .:mplO)ee fot fciture 
rate ba:.ed Dn our hbtorical e)(periencc. We recorded $42CJ.7 millitm of goodwill anJ $310.2 million of ddinite­
li\ed intangible as~ct~. See :-.Joce 3 to our audited Consolidated Financial Swtemcntl-. in Item 8 of Part JI of thi!-. 
report. 

l?evenue Recog11iiio11 

A:. pan ol our c.:;1rrier '\ervices, \\e provide wireline and wireless number portability, implc!ment the 
allocation of pooled block~ of telephone number~ and provide n...:twork management ~erviccs pursuant to <.even 
contracl" with Nt\Pl'vl. In January ~009. \\C am.::nde,;d our s.::\en regional contract:- \\ith :--.1 :\P~l. The aggrt'g:ttc.: 
fees for transactton:-. process..:d undl!r the amended comract:-. art' <ktermined by an a1111ual fixed-fee pricing model 
under whii.:h the annual fixed fee. l>r Rase Fee. was 'el at $3-Hl.O million. S'.162.1 million and 'S38'i.6 million in 
'.W09. 2010 :md ~011, re.;pecli\ely. and i!- .,ubjeet to an annual price e~calator of 6.5' '<- in !'>Ub-.equent year~. These 
am.::ndl'd <.:ontracts also provide fur a lixcd <.:n:dit or !:>-W.O million in ~009. S25.0 mil Ji,m in 2010 and S5.0 
million m 2011. \\ hich are applied to reduce th.:: Ba!>e Fee tl1r the applicable year. Addit1unal credit!> of up to 
::>15.0 million annually in each of 2009. WIO and 2011 may be earned if the customer.; reach certain levels nf 
aggregate telephnne number inventories and adopt and implem.::lll certain IP fields and functwnaltt). In the l!\ent 
1hat the,; \Olum.: of transa.:tiom. in a given y.:ar 1~ ab\.l\I! ur bekJ\\ Lht' contractually establtshcd \ olume range for 
that year, the Base Fee may he adju).tcJ up or down. respective!). with any '-Uch adjustment bc111g :ipplied <1g:iins1 
111voicc.; 111 1he lollowmg year. To the e\.tem any :l\ ailable addttional credits C\pire unused at the cnJ 11r a year, 
they wil l be recogni1ed in revenue nt that Lime. We do:-termine the lixed and determinable f.::e und<!r 1he~e 
.1mendcd contract.; on ~111 annual basi' at Lhc b..:ginning of each year and recogniLe thi:. fee in our Ctffier Sen ice-, 
l1pera1ing segment on a :.traigh1-line b:1si:. O\er twche month!>. 

For ~009, we condud<!d that the fixed and deterrntnllble fee equaled S:!85.0 m1llion. which represented the 
Base Fe.: of c;;3..io.o millitln reduced by the 'i-10.0 million fixed 1.Tt·dit and '>15.0 million of additional credib. 
During 2009. llltr cu,tomer' adopted and implemented the requio;i1e IP fields ;md functionallly. and a" a re~ult 
1.•arned ~ 7.5 mill ion of credits for each of 2009. 20 I 0 and 20 11. I lmve\er. the <.:u.;wmer.., did not re;1ch the level-; 
of aggr.::gate t.::lephone number inventone, required to cam additional cretllls in 2009 .111d a' a re,ult: \\e 
r..:cogni1ed S7.5 million nf revenue 111 t.IJe fourth quarter l>f 2009. Our total revenue ret·ogn11cd under our :.even 
regional contract<> with N:\P:VI w prm ide ~PAC Service' wa~ ':>2925 millitlll for the year ended December-' I. 
2009. 

For 2010. we concluded that 1he fixed and determinable fee equaled $322. I million. \\ hid1 represented the 
B;1se Fee of ~362 . 1 million. rc·duccd by the S25.0 million fixed credit and S 15.0 million of additional m:dit:-.. 
During 20 I 0. our carril!r cu ... tomer\ earned ,111 of the avail:1ble additional credit-; of) 15.0 mt llilln for the adoption 
and implemt!ntation of the requisite IP fields and functionality and the .1chiewmenc of '>pecilic levels of 
aggregate Lclt:phone nu111ber invenwrie:,. 
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For 201 L we concluded that the fixed and determinable fee equaled $365.6 million. which represented the 
Base Fee of $385.6 million. reduced by the S5.0 million fixed credit and $15.0 million of additional credits. 
During 2011. our carrier cw;tomer!> earned ;ill of the"' ailablc additional credit:-. of S 15.0 million for the adoption 
and implementation of the requisite LP fields and functionality ~md the achievement of spc<.:ilic levels of 
aggregate telephone number inventories. 

Fee~ under our contracts with NAPM arc bi llt:d to telecommunication:- service providers based on their 
allocable share nf the total tran:-;action charges. This al loc:ible 'hm-e is ba~ed on ead1 respccti ve 
tele<.:ommunications service provider's share of the aggregate end-user <.ervice!> revenues of all U.S. 
telecommunic:11ions service provider~. as determined by the FCC. Under our comracts with NAPM, we also hi ll a 
Revenue Recovery CollccLions, or RRC. fee of a percentage of monthly billings to our cuswmers, which is 
available to us if any telecommunication!> ser' ice prm ider fr1ils to pay i~ alll)cable :-.hare of total transaction:-. 
charges. If the RRC fee i:-. insufficicm for that purpo:-.e. these contr:.icts also proviue for the recovery ot' <;uch 
differences from the remaining tekcommunications service providers. 

For more information regarding our revenue n:cogni1ion policy. plea:>e .,cc Note 2 to our Consolidated 
Financial Statements in Item 8 or Pan 11 of thb report. 

Service Lel'e/ Standards 

Some of our pri' ale <.:ommercial contract<; require u' 10 meet sc!r\ ice level 'tandar<.h and impo-;e 
corresponding penalties tor failure to meet those stan<lar<l-;. We record .1 provisi1m for these performance-relate<l 
penalties when we become aw;1re that we have !'ailed lO meet required :.ervice level-.. which re~uhs in a 
con-e~pllllding rc<luctiun ot our revenue. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represent!> the excc:-.s purcha-.c price p<iid over the fair value or tangible or identifiable intangible 
a!>~ets acquired and liabilities iis:-umed in 1>ur acquisitions. In ~tccordance wilh the Intangibles-Good'' di and 
Other Topic of the Financial Accounting Standard .. Boar<l. or FASS. Accounting Standards Codification. or 
.\SC. we test our good\\lll for impaim1enl on an annual hasi~. or t'll an intenm ba$is ii' an e\ent occur\ or 
cin.:um:.t:mccs change that indicate an impairmenL may have occurred. 

Our :o I I annw1I good" ill impairment analysi<;. \\ hich we performed for each of nur two reporting t1111Ls a.; 
of October I, '.!011, did not result in an impairment charge. We determined the estimated fair value of nur 
reporting uniL" u"ing the income approm.:h anJ the market approach. consi:-tent with the approach we utili1cd in 
\lllr analy-.1<> perlormed in 2010. To assist in the pmce:-.s of uetermrning foir value, \\e performed internal 
'aluation analy:-es. considered other publicly av:li lahlc market information and obtained apprabal~ from external 
.ulvi..,or' Significant a:-<,umptions U'>ed in the tleterrrnoation of fair , ·alue under the income apprl'ach induded 
.1"urnptit111:- reg.ardmg marl-.et penetration. anticipated grm' th rates. and risk-adju-.ted d1scmmt rate .... Signili..:anl 
as..,umptitms u<;l'd in the determination ol !'air ,·aluc under the market appwach induded Lhe ... election of 
compar~1ble companies. 

The 1-.ey assumptions used in uur 2011 annual goodwill impainnem test co dcterrnint' the foir value or our 
reporting units included: I a) c<Lsh llow projection.... \\hi ch indudc growth and allocation a-;wmption" for 
fore<.:asted re,enue •md e\penses: (bl a rc:.i<lual grm\lh rate of .HJC:c to 5.0<:'c: lcJ a discount rate of 1-l.5', to 
16.00:-. which wa~ hased upon each respecme reponing unit· .~ weighted-average cost or <.:apital aJjusteu for the 
risk-; a-.sociated with the opernLionc.. al the time or the a~!.e:-.~me111: \d) ... election of comparable companies u'>ed in 
the marl-.t:t approach: and It:) a:-.~umption' m weighting th.: rc~ulb of the 111<.:0me approach and tl1e market 
approach valuatwn lc<.:hniques. 
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As of the date of our 1011 annual impairment test, our e~timaced fair values for each of our reporting units 
~ubstantin lly exceeded each or our repo1ting units" cnrrying value. We be lieve that the nssumptions and estimates 
used to detem1ine the estimated fair 'alucs or ea<:h of our reporting units are reasonable: however. these 
estimates are inherenrly subjective, and there are a number of f:.1<.:tors. im.:luding fa<..:tors outside uf lllff c.:onm>l 1hat 
cou ld cause actual result~ ro differ from our estimates. Changes in estimates and assumptions could ha\e a 
signilicant impact on whether or not an impairment charge is recogni1ed and Jlso the magnitude of an} such 
charge. 

;\ny changes co our key a~1,umptions about our bu:.iue<.<.es and our prmpecL'i. or changes in market 
conditions. could cau~e the fair ,·nlue or one of our reporting unit~ to fall below its carrying value. resulting inn 
potential impairment charge. rn addition. changes in our organiz:llional structure or how our management 
allo..:atcs re!.ource' :ind a.~:.e'><;es perfo1mam:c could rc:-.ul! in a c.:h:m:;..: of our 0~11!rating scgmelll!> 1Jr repo11ing 
units, requiring a re.tllot·a1inn am.I impairment analy~is of our goouwill. 1\ goodwill impairmenl c.:harge cou ld 
have a material effect 011 nur consolidate<l linam:ial '1ate1m:n1~ becau:-.c of the significance or goo<lwill lo 11ur 
consolidated balance ;,,heel. As or Ot>cember 31. '2011. "e had S ! 18.3 million. ~ 16.2 millivn, .rnJ S4'29.7 million 
in good~· ill for our C1rrier Sen ices. E111crpriM! Services. and Information Service~ opcrnling scgm..:nts. 
re:-pectivcly. the laucr or which is allributablc to our :.1c:qui~i1ion of TARGUSinfo un November 8, 2011 and was 
not induue<l in our 1011 annual impaim1ent te'c. 

Acc()1111ts Recefrable, Re1•e11ue Rt•co1•ery Collections, and Allowa11ce for Do11bif11/ Accounts 

Accounts rccei\·able are recorded ar 1he invoice<l amount and do nm bear irnere::.t. In accordance with 1>ur 
contracts wi1h NAPM. we bill an RRC fee or a perct:?nlage of monthly billing!> lo our customers. The aggregate 
RRC fet·~ collt-cled may be used to offset uncollccuble recein1ble-. fh)m an indi' idual customer. Beginning 
July I. :wo5. thl.' RRC fee wa.; I 'k of monthly hilhngs, On July I, 2008. 1hc RRC fee wa\ reduced 10 0.75'T anJ 
funhe r 1l•<luced to (l.65% on July I. '.!()10. Any :.1ccrued RRC fees in excess of uncollectiblc receivables are paiJ 
bad. to the cuMomers annually \)ll a pro rata b:isis. /\II other recei,able'> relatl:!d 10 ~en1c~s not .;O\ere<l by the 
RRC fo:s .ire evaluateu anc.1. if dl!l.'me<l not collectible. :trc appropnatdy r.:scrwc.1. 

Im·estme11ts 

.\s 0 1· Decc111her 3 l. 2011. Wt' h;1ve approximately S 13. I million of investments in pre-refunded municipal 
bonds. These inve,tments are accnumed for a-. a\ ailable-for-,ale 'ecurities and unreal11ed gain' or lo!>\C,· on 
the~e imestmenh are recon.led in orh..:r comprehensi\e income. We are exposed to inveqmcm ri<.k as it relalc!> 10 
changes in Lhe market val ue or our investment<.. We deLcrmine the fair value of our investments using third-party 
pricing '>Ourccs. whkh primarily ll'C a co1hen-.us price or weightcJ a\ crage price for the fair valll\: :.L'~e.,.,mcnl. 
The con<.en.,us pncc is dc1ennine<l b) u~ing matrix price., from a vancty of indu\try !'>t.1ndard pricing ~ervic.:es . 

data proviuer;. large financial institutions and other 1hird party sources and utdi;ing tho<.c matrix pri..:eii as inpuL<. 
1nll) n Ji<.Lributton -curve-ba,,ed algorithm lo determine the e:.t11nated market value. ~latri'< price<. are ba,cJ on 
4uo1ed price'i for :-.ccuriti..:.,, with 'imilar terms (i.e. t'Oupon rate. maturit)'. acdit rating). \Vc corrnboralc 
con~Cni>US prict·s provided by third party pricing S\>urcc~ using repuncd trade aclivity. benchmark yidd curves. 
binding broker/dealer quote'\ or uthcr rele\ ant price informauon. t\s of December 31. 20 I I. we determined that 
decline., 111 the fair value or our ill\e!>tmems are cons1Jcred 1(1 he not <•ther-than-tcmporary. Given Lhe 
-,ignilkance or these inve\lrne1m to our con~olidateJ balance -.heel. decline:; in the fair Htlue that are con~ideretl 
w be other-than-temporary could have a material 1::ffc<:t on our consoliuated linanc:ial <,tatcmenb. 

Income Taxes 

We rccogni1e de ferret.I tax "~'-Cl~ and liabilitic~ ba-,ed nn temporary ui ffcrence' bet \V<!Cll the financial 
reporting ba!>e!' <tnd the lax base:- ol assets and liabilities. ThcM! deferred tax assets and liabilitit•:-. are mcasureu 
U\ing the cnactt!d tax rate<; and l:l\'>S that will be in effect \\hen !>Ul'h amount:. are expected 10 rever:-.e or he 
u1ili1ed. The reali1a1ion t)f deterred tax a~~et'\ is contingem upon the generation \)f f'uturc taxable income. When 
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appropriate, we recognize a valuation allowance to reduce :.uch deferred tax a!>:-.e ts to amount~ that are nwre 
likely than not 10 be ultimntely renli1ed. The calculation or deferred tax a-;sets. inducting \'aluaLion allowances, 
and liabilitie:. requires u!> ti) apply signiricam judgment related to :-.uch factors a:. the appli.:ation of wmpk' tax 
laws, changes in tux l:.tws and our futu re operations. We review our deferred tax a:-.:-.ets on a quarterly ba:-.is to 
tlctermine if a valuation allowance i~ required base<l upon these factors. Changes in our a!.sessment of the need 
for a rnluation allowance could give rise to a change in !>Uch allowance. potentially resulting in additional 
e\pense or benefit in the period of change. 

Our income l:l\ provi'>ion includes U.S. federal. -aate, local and foreign income tm .. e.; and is ha,ed on pre-ta\ 
income or loss. In determining the annual effective income tnx rate, we nnalyzecl various factors, including our 
annual earnings nod taxing jurisdictions in which the earning!- were generated. the impact or state and local 
im:ome taxes anti our ability to use tax credtb and net operating Ith~ can-yforward!>. 

We a~~ess uncertain tax positions and rccngnizc income tax bend1ts when. ba~ed lln the ted111ical merits of 
a t<tx po.,ition. we belie\e thal if a Ji<.pute :1ro1._e \'-ilh the !:l\ing authorit) :ind w~ taker. w a court of last re~on. it 
i' more likely than not (i.e., a probability or gre<1ter than 50 percent) that the tax po!>ition woul<l be sustained as 
filcJ . If a positio11 is Jetermined to be more likely than not of being !>UStained. the reporting entcrpri-;e ~houlJ 
rccogni1c the largc<,t amoum of ta\ benefit th:tl is greater than 50 percent lif...ely of being realized upon ulun1.1te 
!.l'ttlement with the taxing authority. Our practice I!> to recognize interest and pl!nalties related tt) income tax 
matters in income tax expense. 

T<" rears 2007 thrl)Ugh 20 I 0 remain open to e\amin:nic111 by rhe major tax mg juri~diction~ to which we are 
~ubjecl. The Internal Reven ue Service. l)r IRS. has completed an examination tif \>Ur federa l income tax returns 
ft>r the years 2007 nnd :!008. The auJit re!>ulted in no material adjuslm..:ms. W..: .tbo 'clllcd a \\.ithholding l.1' 
audit w11h the fo;raclt Taxing .\uthonty for the )ears 2007 to 2009. The :1udit resulted in no material adjustments. 

Stock-llased Compe11satio11 

We recognize -;wck-based compensalilln expense in accordance with the Compensation - Sto<.:k 
Compen,ation Topic of the f ASS ASC \\hi ch require:-. the measurement am! recognilltm of compen~ation 
c \pense for <,tod.-ba~ed awurds granted to ernplo) e..:!i based on estinrntcd fair \ alue~ on the date or grant. The 
c:-.timatcd fair values of 11011-vl'Stcd stoek-ba.,ed a\vards gr:mted to com.ulwnts arc m.::a1;urcd and rccogni':led each 
n:poning period through each ve-.ting date. We estimate the fair valu..: of each option-ha:-.e<l award u\ing the 
Black-Scholt:- opticm-pncing mndcl. TI1i~ option pn<.:ing model requires that we make several estimate!.. 
including the 0pti~i 11· s expected life and the price volntility of the un<lerlying stock. 

Becau:.e '-lod .. -ba&<:d compen<.atton e\pcn~e is ba:.ed on '"' ard'> thar arc ultimately expe<.:tcd "' vc'l. the 
.1111ou111 1lf expen"e takes intn account estimated forfeitures at the time ol' grant. which estimme may be revised. if 
nece-.~ary. in subsequent periods ii actual forfeiture~ differ from tho!>e estimates Change' in Lhe-.,e e .. 1imates and 
<1,<>ump1101h can materially affect the e~timated fair \:tlue of our '>t0ck-ba1._ed Clllnp1ms.1t1on. S..:e Note 14 Ill (iur 
Consolidated Financial Statements in llern 8 of Part II of this report for information regarding our assumpLillllS 
related to srock ha'\ed compensation and the amount of -:tock-ha<;ed compensauon expen'>C we incurred for the 
pencxb c1wered m this rcp1.1rt. A' of' December 31. 2011. total unrecogniL.ed cnmpe1N1llon e-;pen-.,e wa~ "143.5 
million. which rdates w 11on-vel>ted ·Hock option~. non-ve~ted restricted stock uni t". non-vested re<;lricte<l 'lock 
;iwarJ, and non-\·ested performance \'C,t..:<l restricted .,tock units. or PVRSl.J<.. and is <.:"<peeled lll b..: re<.:ogn11cd 
'"er a we1gh1cd-:t\eragc period of 1.-18 year'. 

\Ve estimate the f:lir ,·alue uf our restri<.:ted !>tod, unit award~ based on the fair \ alue or 0ur common 'itlKk 
on th..: d;ite of grnnl. Our ouL<-tamling re~tricte<l ~Hx·k umt awards arc ~ubject 10 :-.crvice-ba!>t:d YC~ling conditions 
anti/or performance-based vesting conditions. We re1.:ognize the estimated fair vulue or <.ervice-ba:-ed awmtb, nee 
nr e.;timated forteiwres. a-., !-tock-hased compensation expen'e over the vesting perio<l on a <;Lr:til!ht-line ha'>i!>. 
\ward, \\Ith perfonna.nce-based \e,ting condition~ require the achic\ement of <;pecilic linancial targets at the 
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end of the specified performance period and the employee's continued employmem over the vesting period. We 
recogniic the estim~ueJ rair value of performance-based awards. net of estimated forreitures. a.-; stock-based 
c.:ompcnsation C\p.!n'\e over the w~ting perio<l. whic.:h considt:r~ each performance period or tranche separately, 
ba:.e<l upon our determination of whether it ii. probable that the performance wrgets will be achieved. :\t cat:h 
reponing period, we reasses~ the probability of achieving the performance targets within the related pe1formance 
period. Determining whether the performance targets will be achieved imoh·e\ judgment. and the estimate of 
:.tock-ba,cd compcn~ation t.:~pen~e may be revi\ed periodically based on changes in the probability of' ad1it'ving 
the performance targets. Lf any performance goals arc not mt:t, no compensation cost is ultimately recogni1ed 
against that goal. and to the extent pre\ iou.;ly recogni1ed. compensation cost is reversed. As of December 31, 
2011. the le\'el of achievement of the performance target awards !Or PVRSUs granted during 2009. 20 I 0 and 
2011was 133%. l 16% and 134%. rc:-.pectively. 

Changes in our a:.sump1iuns regarding the achie\emenl of specific tinancial targets t:ould have a material 
eflec1 on our con~olidated financial statements. During 20 11, we revi~ed our estimate 1>f achievement of the 
performance target rdate<l to the PVRSl.Js granted during ,010 from I()<}£} Clf target 10 I 05i;} of target. and 
funhcr re, bed our e_.,timatc of ac.:hic\'ement in the l'ourth quarter or 201 I to I 16l/c- of target. In addition, we 
revised our estimate of m:hievemcnt of the performance target related to the PVRSUs granted during 201 l from 
I 00% of target to 131 'X of target. and further revi-;ed our estimate of achie,emem in the founh quarter of 2011 tu 
134% of 1arget. These changes in estimates did nm have .1 material impact on our income from cominurng 
operations and our eaming~ per di luted sh~trc from continuing operation~. l\!Spectively, for the year ended 
December 31. 2011. 
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Consolidated ResuJts of Operations 

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to the Year Ended December 3 1. 2011 

The following table present<. an overview of our r..:sulls of 1iperatiun ... for the year:. en<le<l December 31. 
20 I 0 and 20 I I. 

Revenue: 
Carrier Services 
Enterpri-.e Sen·ices 
In format ion Services 

Total revenue 
Operating e\pcnsc: 

Co:.t of revenue (cxduding depr..:ciation anJ amorti1ation 
<.hown separately belO\\) 

Sale:. and marketing 
Rcs<.!ard1 and dc\dopmcnt 
General and administrative 
Depreciation :md amorti.1:ati1m 
Restructuring i:hargc<. 

Income from operation<, 
Other le:\pen<,e) in-:ome: 

lniere!> l and olher l.! \pcnse 
I ntere!>l ~ind othc:r im;ome 

Income from continu111g opcr.ition-; hefore m..:omc: taxes 
Pnwision ror illl."Olllt: la\Cs. -:ontinuing operations 

Income from conLi nuing opcratit)ns 
!Los-.) income from di-,cuntinue<l opcration!o., net of tax 

:--Jet i 11c~>1nc 

Ba'>1c net mcrnne tlo:.-.J per common -.hare: 
Continuing upera11n11'. 
Di,continueJ operation~ 

R:i.,ic net income per common ~hare 

Diluted net ini:ome (Im.,) per common -.hare: 

Continuing operations 
Di,c0111111ued oper;Hi(111-. 

Dilutl'd net lllcome p.:r common -,hare 

Weighted average con11m111 share' oubtanding: 
Basic 

Diluted 

Y cars Ended December 3 1, 

2010 .?Il l I .?.010 \'S. 2011 

:) S S Cbani:c '< ( h:1ni:1: 

(in thousand~. cx1·cpt p~r ~hare dala) 

$391.762 $-147.89-l 556.132 1-1.3 c;~ 
129. JO-l 151 .390 22.286 17.3 '} 

2 1.17 1 21.171 I 00.0 % 

520.866 620.455 99.5~9 19.1 ~ 

l l l.282 137 .992 26,710 2-W'}: 
86.363 109.855 23.-192 27.2 <;(-

13.780 17.509 3.729 27. 1 <7r 
65.-l% %.317 30.82 1 -17. 1 % 
32.86 1 -16.209 l.D-l8 -l0.6 <.( 

5.361 3.5-19 t l.812) <B.8J','f 

3 15, 143 41 IAJ I 96.2H8 30.6 ','\> 

205.723 209.02-l 3.JO I 1.6 r:-

((),99<i) (6.27()) 7 16 (10.2)% 

7.582 1.%6 (5.616) (7-1. I l','( 

206.31 () 20-Ul 1 ( l..'.'l'J9) ( 0.8 )<:f 
82.282 8 1. 137 t 1.1-15) ( 1.-1 J'l( 

12-1.028 123.57-l 1454> tO.-l J'7r 
117.Sl91 37 .2-19 55.068 !.~09.01•~ 

~ I 06.209 $160,82.~ S:'i-1.6 1.+ 5 1.4 % 

s 1.66 s 1.69 
t 0.2 I ) 0.S I 

'> 1.-l2 s 2.20 

') 1.63 () 1.M 
10.1~) I) 50 

s 1.-10 ::> 2.16 

74."i.<i.5 7 2.97-l 

76.065 7-1.-l96 



Revenue 

Total rc•1•en11e. Total revenue increased S99.6 million due to a S56. I million incrcas<! in re\'cnue from our 
Carrier Sef\ ices operating segment. a $22.3 million increa.">e in revenue from our Enterprise Scr\'iCC!> operating 
i-.egment. an<l revenue 1>f S:! l .2 million from our new Information Services operating ..,cgment. 

Carrier Serl'ices. Revenue from our Carrier Services operating segment increa..,ed S56. I million due to ~u1 
increa!.e of $36.1 million in re\enue from our Numbering Services. an increase of S 16.0 million in 0:-VIS revenue. 
and an increase of $4.0 million from our IP Services. The $36.1 million increase in rt:\ enue from our Numbering 
Services wa~ primnrily the result or an established increase or $43.5 million in the fixed fee un<lcr our contnu:ls 
10 provi<le NPAC sen ices, partially offset by a decrease or $6.2 million in sy,lem cnhancemem.., ;ind 
functionality reque:-.ted hy our Numbering Servict::-. customers and a <lecrca~c of 51.0 million in revenue from our 
international LNP solutions. The mcrease m our OMS revenue was <lue lO greater usage from exii.1ing cu!>tomers 
and the acquisition of our licensed order manngemenl services in Lhe third quarler of 1011. The increase in IP 
Services revenue wa:-. primarily due 10 an increase of S2.0 million in revenue from our GSMA PaihFindcr 
..,ervice!., and 1ransi11on ;,cn·ice~ re\enuc of $0.8 million pur"uant to the :.ale or cen~1in a'>seL<> and liabilities of our 
Con,·erged Me:-.,,aging Services bu ... ino::ss. The~e transition services were completed as of June 30. 2011. Then! 
was no corresponding transition services revenue in 20 I 0. 

Enterprise Sen•ia.t. Revenue from our Enterp.+;e Services operating <;egment increased )22.3 million 
primarily due lO an increase of s 13.9 million in revenue from our ns. TI1is wa<; primarily driH!n by increa~ed 
dem:md lh'm exi~ting and new customers ror our expanded serviL'.c offering~. ~uch as !ixeJ IP geolocation 
databa:-.c ~ervices. ln addition. RegiMry Services revenue incrcase<l $8.4 million due w :.in im:rease in the number 
of common 'horr co<les an<l domain names un<ler management. 

/11f(1r111atio11 Sen·irt•s. On November 8, 20 11 . we completed the acqui:-.ition t>f T:\RGUSinfo. Revenue from 
thi~ ncquisition is included in Information Services. a new operating segment. since the <late of acquisition. 
Revenue rrom our ln fonna1ion Services operating segment induded S 13.9 million 111 ldemilication Services, S-kS 
million in Vcrilication & Analytic'> Services. and S2.8 million in Local Search & Licen,e<l Oma Sen ices. 

Expense 

CO\t of" re1«•1111e. Coc;t of revenue increa..,ed 526.7 million primarily due to an increa.'>e in pcr!\onnel <tnd 
per~01mel-relaied expen\e of S 12.5 million due 10 headcount :td<lition~ rdatcJ 10 our hcensed order management 
'>en·ici.:~. fixed IP gcolocation ~crvil·es and lnfrnmation S..:rvices. In ;1ddition. co-;1 or revenue im:reas.:d S5.8 
million 111 general faci lity costs primarily due 10 additional tdcc:ommunication:, an<l main1en•u1ct! co~ts resulllng 
from the addition ot our li-..ed IP geolocation <.ervice~. a~ well a' incre:L<:ed c<hl'i for our cu-;tomer -;upport 
operation-;. Conlr:lctor coc;ts mcrea-;ed SS.1 million pn111.1rily due lCI increased n'.,l!'. incurred tor cu~tomcr 
dcploymem and t:u-.1omcr :.upport. Royalty C\(X!ll<>e incrca~oo ~4.1 million for our Regi~1ry Services related to 
the increase in revenue from managing a largt·r number or t·nmmon :.hNt codes. Thc~e in-:rea~es were partially 
nthet by a Jecrease nf 'I I. I million in other direct cost~ related to setup and implememation o;ervrt·e\. 

Sc1/t•1 and 111arkcti11'<. Sale-. and marketing expense increa~ed ~23.5 million primarily due to an increa:-.e of 
'>21.9 mil lion in pcr\1>1mel and personnel-related expense tor our expamkd "ale~ nml marketing teams for 11ur 
lnfor111a1ion Service~. fixed IP geoloc::Hion ... ervices. and 01her new -.ervices. In additi~rn. comractor co;,t!> 
incrcas\!<l )2.7 million 10 suppon our growth ..t\ we increa\cd our brand :l\\arene-.., and increa~cd our port.folio of 
~er\lces. '>Ucha~ the addition of our lixcd IP geolocaiion ,er\iCe\. The;.c incrca-;c:. were parually off:-.et by a 
decrease ot ') 1.2 million in general facility co~1 s. 

Reset1nh and cle1·e/opme111. Rc-;earch and Jevelopmen1 expense incrc<hcd ':l3.7 million Jui.: hl an increa..,c 1lf 
)-L6 mi Ilion in per-.onnel an<l pcr-;onnel-relate<l expense related to the expan-;1on and de' elnpment of new 
n<!twnrk .,ervice5 and our new Information Sen ices operating ~egmenl, panially oll\et by a decrease or '>0. 7 
million in contracLOr .:o~t s. 
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Gnu:rul and ad111i11i.lrr1.1rive. General aud administrative C\pense increased S30.8 million primarily due to an 
increase of S 15.3 million in contractor and professional fees <lltributable to an incre~e ol' SoA million in 
acquisition and ucqu1 ... it1on related 1.:<btS and $2.4 million in direct co:-.b incurred in connection wuh the moditicd 
Dutch au~tion tender offer we announced and c11mple1ed in the fourth quaner of 2011. ln aJuition. personnel and 
personnel-rdated expen"e increased $ 12.2 million. primarily as a result o f' hcaucount adJitions to our teams from 
acquisitions anJ to support bu'lines<.; operation' .md an increase of 56.0 million in :.tock-based compensation 
e\pense rec;u lting from the fair 'alue mea.,urement of stock-bu:.ec.l award:. attributable to the change in 
employment 'tmus of former e'\ecutive~. Furthermore, general facility <.:o~ts incrc<ised $3.3 million primarily tluc 
LO t)ftice expansions related l\) the relo<.:ation or our corporate headquarters and the a~quisition or li.\ed IP 
gcolocation assets nnJ our lnformmion Servke' business. 

Depredatio11 a11d w1wrri-;.atim1. Dc:prec.:iJtion and arnorli1Jlion exp.:nM: increa,cd SD.3 million Jut: w an 
increa11c in amortization expense of S7A million a:. a re1>u ll of the amorti1.ation of intangible asset-; acquired in 
connection with ac.:quisililHlS of our Information Service business. li<.:enscd order management a<;<.l!ls and tixcd IP 
geolocation assets. ln addirion. depreciation expense increased S6.0 mill ion due to the :icqui<.ition of new 
propeny anJ c:quipment. including furniture and 11\tltr<.:'> anJ leaseholJ impro\emcnts relatc:d w the rclucal10n of 
our corporate headquanc:ro; anc.J acqubitions. 

Restructuring ('/wrges. Restructuring <.:hargc~ decreased Sl.8 milli1111 Jue lo a ue<.:rease of SJ.3 million in 
1-everan<.:e nmi se,erance-relmed C\pense amihutt!d to our 2010 m:inngement tram.Ilion plan and a decrease of 
S 1.6 mil hon in se\ eram:c anJ !>I!\ crance-rclatetl e>.pen~e .1uributed lo our 2009 restruclllring plan to relocate 
certain operations and 1>uppo11 functions lt l Kentucky. The~e tlecrea:-.es in re:.tructuring charges were partially 
uffst:t by severance and severnnce-relaied expense of $1. 1 mi llion attributed to our dorncsti<.: work-t11r<.:e 
reduction initiate<l 1n 1he fourth quarter of201 I. 

/11ten·.w and mlwr expemc. Interest and other C).p<:n'>c decreas.:d <;,0.7 million primari ly due to a decrease in 
trading losse:-. of S6. 9 million re<.:orded in connection with our auction rate ~ecurities righb in 20 I 0. As <1 res uh or 
the settleml!nt of our auction rate "enirities and a<;sociatcc.l rights in 20 I 0. there were no associated trading l o<.~es 

recorded in 20 11 . The interest nnJ other e'pi.::nse uecrea.,e was partlilll)' offset b)' an increase of ':>4.4 million in 
interc'-t expense attributeu to our 2011 crt:tlit focilit). induding amort1latwn of related c.JeferrcJ linaucing <.:osts. 
In addi1i1111. losses recorded in rnnnenion with as~t't di~posab increa-;ed ':>I. I million and foreign i.:urrem:y losse~ 
increased S0.6 million. 

lmern1 and other i111·ome. 1 ntcrest and other income de<.:reased :>5.<> million primarily due to a Jecrea'e in 

traJing gain~ of S7 .0 million l"L'Corded in connection \\Ith our aucuon rate st:curnic" settled in 2010. parLially 
ofC,ct by ;in increa~e nf S0.7 million in interest in<.:ome anc.J ~0.7 million in rcaliled g;1ins for our 
:ivail,1hlc-f\,r-sale 'C<.:uritie<; !'Old <luring 20 I I. 

Prm i '"111.fl1r i11ct1111e la.\e'. nm111111i11g "I'' rations. Our annual effel"ll\ e tax rate I rom continuing opemti\)11' 
dccr..:as..:c.l to 39.6'1- for the year l'll<led December 31. 201 1 from 39.9'k for the y..:a r ~ndcd December 31. 2010 
primari ly due to a bcneli t re:.uhing from feder;tl rc~e;m·h t;1x <.:rcdits a11J a ch;mge in estimate of the re;1li?abi lity 
of .u:quircd Quova. Inc. net oper;111ng 10 ...... c:<., partially nft\et by 'enlemelll of uur IRS e:1.aminatio11 and 
TARGL'Sinfo acqui,,itinn-relate<l cost'> and ~11lCk repurch:i-;e <.:o'L" that .trc nondeduc11ble for tax purpo'ie~. 

( l .oss) i11cm111! /m111 cli.H'o11111111ed operations. 111!1 t~/ fll.r. During th.: si::conJ 4uana of 20 11 , we comph!tc<l 
()llr plan 10 '"ind Ul)\V n and cease operations of our Cun verged NJe<;saging Services business. following the <.a le 111 

February 2011 or certain a\<;eh and liabilitie,, of :"leu,tar '.\IG\I Sernce,. In<.:., or '.\IG.\1 Sen·ice~. and ll'i 

'ub.,id1arie,,. The li11ancial n:,ulls for the ~ears ended December 31. 201(> and 20 11 relle<.:t the result!-- of 
operatll)flS. nd or la\. uf the Corn..:rgec.J Messaging Servi<.:C'i businc~~ a1> di:.continucd operation;;. \Ve intl'llU to 
trem the rnmmon ~tock ol NGM Services a:. worthless for U.S. ini.:omc la.'\ purpt)se!- in our :w 11 U.S. feJ<:ra l and 
·ilate im:ome tax returns. ,\s J result. we rt·wrded a discrete income tax benefit of ~2. 7 million in the year endec.J 
December J 1. 2011. In aJ<lition. our loss from J"continued Clperatio11' hcfore ta\ e-; -.1gnilicantly declined from 
prior yc:ir due 10 the \\ind down of op.:rat11111' during 201 1. Sec Note 3 10 our a<.:wmpanying consol idated 
linancia l ~l:ttements lor more information regarding these di1>continueu operations. 



Sum111a1y of Operating Segments 

The following table pre">enls a -;ummary of our operating segments· revenue. contribution and the 
reconciliation to con~oli<lated income from cominuing operations for the years ended Decembl!r 31. 20 I 0 and 
201 1. 

Revenue: 
Camer SerYices 
Entaprise Service:. 
Information Services 

Total rev.::nue 

Segment contribution: 
Cai,-ia Service~ 

Enlerpri!'e Services 
Information Servil!es 

Total <.egment contribution 
Indirect 1>peraling e!xpenses: 

Co~l of revenue (l!xc luding depreciation and amorti1ali11n 
-.;hown separately below) 

Sak' anc.l marketing 
Rc~c;1rch and devdopment 
General and admi nistrative 
Depreciation and :imonizmion 
Rl':.tructuring charge-, 

Con~olidatcd income from opernuons 

20 10 

s 

$391.762 
129.!04 

)520.866 

5352,3 17 
59,284 

411.601 

75.690 
16,345 
11.87 1 
6'.l.750 
'.12.86 1 

5.361 

'11205.723 

Year Ended O<'Ccmb~r .\l. 

! Oi l 21110 ,.~. 2011 

5 $ Chani:;c <"<. Chun:..te 
(dollars in thou,;mds) 

$447.894 S56.132 1-0 % 
151.390 22.286 l 7.3 C( 

21. 17 1 21.17 1 100.0% 

$620.455 599,589 19.1 (~ 

$39 1,000 $>8,683 11.0 % 
65,080 5,796 9.8 % 
12.583 12.583 100.0 t;~ 

468.663 57.062 13.9 % 

83.990 8.300 I 1.0 'i< 
17,340 995 6.1 ' i-
16,.23..J. 4,363 36.8 <;f 

92,3 17 28.567 44.8 'if· 
46.209 13.348 -Hl.6 <;l-

3.549 ( 1.8 12) (33.8)% 

5209.()24 S 3.'.\0 I 1.6 C:·c 

Segment comribu11on i::. dcterminl!d based on imernal perfonnam:c n11.:a~ure!- u-.cd by the chief opernung 
ded:-.ion maker. or COD~L to ll.'>l>I!'-~ the pcrform.mce of each operating 'egmenl in a given period. In connection 
with this assessment. the COD;\.l reviews re\·enuc and !'egmcnt contribution. which exd udes certain unallocatctl 
costs wi1hin lhe fo llowi ng t'\pen5e cb::.sificat ions: cost of revenue. sales and marketing. research and 
developmcnl and general ant! admini\lrati•e. Do:preciation and amorti1ation and rl!~tructuring charge:. are ab.o 
excluded lrom the ~egmcnt contribuuon. 



Year Ended December 31. 2009 Compared to the Year Ended December 31. 1010 

The following tablo:: presents an overview of our results or operations for the years ended December > 1, 
}()()9 anJ 20 I 0. 

Revenue: 
Carrier Services 
Enterpris..:: Servit·c~ 
lnformati<lll Services 

Total revenue 
Operating expense: 

Co::.t of revenue (e\dutlmg depreciation and amonwnion 
shown separately below) 

Sales amJ marketing 
Research and development 
General and a<lmim,tratin: 
Depreciation and amo11ization 
Restruclllring charges 

lnt·tinh: from operation-; 
Other (expen~e} income: 

Interest and other ell.pen;;e 
Interest and other income 

Irn.:orne from cominuing operation' before inctime taxes 
Prm j..,ion for income taxc\, cominumg operation-; 

Income from continuing operations 
Lo~s from tlbcontinue<l tipcrat ions, net of tax 

Net income 

Basic net income doss) per common ~hare : 

Continuing operation' 
Di-.continue<l operations 

Basic.: net income per conunon .'>hare 

Diluted net in<.:(1me <los"l per common <.hare: 
(\1ntinuing opl'ntlll>n'> 

Discontinued opera111111:-. 

Diluted net im:ome per common -;hare 

\Ve1ghtt:<l aH!rage common ... hart:' out:.l:i.ndmg: 
Basic 

Dilut~d 

-16 

Years Ended December 3 l, 

ZOO<J ZOIO 200\1vs.20l0 

S S S Clrnn;:e % Ch:rni:e 

\in thousand,, cxl'cpl per ,hare data) 

S357.339 5391.762 534.423 9.6% 
109.91-1 129.104 19.190 17.So/c 

- '1C 

467.253 520.866 53.613 11.5 % 

99.436 l I l,282 11,846 l 1.9 %· 
80.676 86.363 5.687 7.0 % 
1-1.094 13.780 <31-1) (2.2)'-'(7 
52.-191 65.-196 13.005 2-1.8 % 
29.852 32.86 1 3.009 10. 1 % 

97-l 5.361 4.387 450.-1 ';( 

277.523 315.143 37.620 13.6 r:;.. 

189,730 205.723 15.993 8.-1 ''t> 

(5.213) (6,995) ( l.7lt!.l 34.2 t;l-
7.-191 7.582 9 1 1.2% 

192.008 206.310 1-1.302 7.4 %· 
76.-198 82.28} S.78-1 7.6 C.(. 

115.510 I2-+.o28 8.5 18 7.-1 % 
( l..J.,369) (17.819) 13.-150) 2..J..O I~ 

5101.141 5106.209 S 5.06S 5.0 '1· 

s 1.55 s 1.66 
!0.19) (0.2-l) 

$ 1.36 $ 1...12 

5 1.53 s 1.63 
(().I':> J (0.23) 

s 1.1-1 s 1.-10 

N.30 1 74.555 

75.465 76.065 



Revenue 

Toial revt'1111c. Total revenue increased $53.6 million due to a S34.4 mi llion increase in revenue from our 
Carrier Service:- operating segment and a S 19.2 million irn.::re~1sc in revenue from our Emerprise Services 
operating segmenr. 

Revenue from our Carrier St'rvices operating segment increased $34.4 mil lion primari ly c..lue to an increase 
or ~'.12.3 million in revenue from L)Uf Numbering Services. or this S32.3 millilm increa~e. $29.6 million resuhed 
from an establbhed incrc;i-,e in the lhed fee under our contracts to provide NPAC Services and S2.0 million wa;, 
primarily due to i.ystem l'nhancemcnts and additional functionality requested by our Numbering Services 
customers. These revenue increases were partially {)ffset by a Jecrease or SJ.3 million in revenue from IP 
Ser\ ice~ an<l a decrea:-e ol S 1.2 millilm in re' enue from our OMS. 

Revenue from our Entcrpri5e Services operating !>cgmenl increased $ 19.2 mi l lion prim:iri ly due to an 
incn.!ilSe of S 13.5 million in revenue from IIS. This was primarily driven by increased Jcman<l from existing and 
new cu:,wmcr" for e\pan<.lcJ -;ernce offerings, such a" lixcd IP gcolocalion databa~c ;.ervice .... In addition. 
Regb1ry Sen ice:-. revenue increased S5.7 million due wan incrca~e in the number of rnmmon :-.hort codes an<l 
domain names urn.lcr management. 

Rxpe11se 

CoH of rel'e1111e. Cost or re,·enue increa-.ed S 11.8 million primarily <lue to a $5.9 million increase in general 
fal·llity costs that include data centl'r and database management co.,ts. computer rental Jnd maimenance co,h and 
pa)'ment proces:-.ing fccs to :-.upport busine:-.s growth am.I ongoing operations. Cost of rc\·enue also increa:,cd by 
S..\.9 million in personnd and per~onnel-re latcd expense to suppon cxpanJed servil:c offerings. including new 
Jire..:tory ~ervices, and system enhancemems for function:ility improvements requested by our 
cu~wmers. Royalty e\pcnse in our Regi:.try Services increased 53. l million due to more common .,hon codes 
under management. These incre~l'>CS were offset by a decrease of $1.2 million in other direct cosls primarily 
n.:1:1tcd to -.cwp and implcmelllalion c.:osts and a decrea:-.t: of S0.9 mil lion in contractor co<a!>. 

s,i/e1· 1111d 111arkeri11~. Sale), and marketing expense irh.:reasc<l SS.7 million primari ly due to an incrca-.1! or 
)5.~ million in personnel and per.;onnel-related expen:-.c for expanded "uks mid marketing. teams. primari ly in 
our Enterpri'>e Service:-.. fhis in..:rea~ed headcoum supports our grCl\\lh as we broaden our portfolio l>f <.ervice.;. 
geographic pr<!'>l!nce an<l brand awarcnc:-s through product initiati\C .... a:. \\ell a~. customer :md in<lu~lr} event'>. 

f?, •seurch wuJ devclopmem. Research anJ development npcnse decrea1,cd S0.3 million primarily due lO a 
decrc:t:.C or \ 1.8 million in per),01111el anJ per),Onncl-related C\f)CO:-.e. pa11ially <lffSCI by an increase of ) 1.5 
millum 111 comractor c.:o-.ts. The decrease in pcr1'onnel and pe~onncl-rela1ed expense resulted from a Jecrea.;e in 
a\l'rage headcount for the period. while the increa:-...: in c.:ontrac.:11>r co:,.ts rclmed to the devell1pme11l 111' new 
din.·..:1ory -;ervices. 

General and 11dmi11ts1rurin•. General and administr~llive cxpen ... e increa-;cd S 13.0 million primarily due IO 

c.:o:-.1s incurred to :-uppon bu~inc~s growth and new bu~iness initiative~ indu<ling funht:r investments in tiur c.:orc 
Le;uns to support busine:-'> operntions. Personnel and per.onnel-rclateJ expcn:-.e increa\cJ S6.6 mtllion. pnm~mly 
.l!'I a result or heaJeount adc.lill011~. an increase or <.2.7 million in !-otOC.:1'-ha;;ed <.:C\lllpensation expen:-.e :1n<l 
:-.e' <:rance-rel:11ed co~ts 1)r S2.2 million primarily related to the departure M •>ur former Chairman and Chief 
Ext•cutivt: Officer. In addition. contractor I,;()\[:, ~md profe..sional ICC\. induding legal and rinancl' related lees. 
increa~ed ~5.5 million. and general fac.:ilities cO\IS increased S0.9 nu Ilion. 

Oepreciario11 and 11morri;:.mio11. Deprcc.:iation and mnoni.rntion expense increa-;ed S3.0 mil lion due LO an 
in.:rc<1~e of S-k I million in deprec1atiM due to an increa~e in capital :.i-;-;et-. to build out our infrastructure. Thi~ 
in..:rea!.e wa~ paniall) off-,et by a decrea~e of S 1.1 nu Ilion in amo1ti1at1on of imangible a<..<.et<, rela1ed to 
;11.:qui),ition.,. 
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Rcsrmcwri11g c/l(lrc:es. Restructuring charges increased $4.4 million due to an increase of' S3.8 million in 
severance nnd severance-related charges attributable to our ~010 management transition - restructuring plan :rnd 
to an incr..:ase of S0.6 million attribut;ible to our 2009 re'>tructuring plan lO relocate ccnarn operati<)ns and support 
runction"> IO Loutsville, Kentucky. 

lntert'sr a11d 01her t•.rpmse. Interest and other expense incre:ised S 1.8 million primarily due 10 a S3. I million 
net im:n:asc in lossc., rl'Corded in connection "ith our auction rate securitie:.. or ARS, am! a :-.ettlement t')flcr tn 

the form or a rights offering from the imestme111 firm that brokered the original purdrnse:-. of the t\RS, or ARS 
Rights, anJ a Jecre:i:-.e or $0.6 million in gain~ on asset disposals. This increase in other expens<:: and decreasl.! in 
gains on a~set dbposalc. are partially t)ffset by a decrease or $1.9 million in intert:st cxrense primarily due lO a 
reduction in accrued 1111creM rel:ited to a s:ile~ t:lx liability. 

llltereu c111d 01lu1r inco11111. lnterl.!~t and other income im.:rcascJ SO. I million primarily due tu a net inaea~c 
1ir )2.1 mil lion in g;1i1h recordcJ in connec1iun with our ARS and ARS Rights. Thi" nel incnwse \\a!> p~1rtially 
off~e1 hy the receipt in the first quarter of 2009 or a $1.~ million pnyrncm for indenmitication dai11h madt: in 
conn..:ctwn with L)Ur 2006 acqui-.ition of Fullowap. Im:. a.~ nu indemnification paym..:111:. were recei' cd in 20 IO. 
and a de1.:rea'\e in reali1ed gains of S0.5 million on our investml!nt in a ca.,h rescrv<.! fund that wa~ c.:ompktcly 
liquiuated a:- of Occ.:en1ber J l, 2009. 

f>rm•i .mm for i11c11111e wi:e.,-. co11ri1111i11~ opt•mrimis. Our annual t:lfoctin: tax rate fr<,m continuing operatiL)l1' 
incrcal>Cu to 39.9(:~ for the year ended December 31, 20 I 0 from 39.8'i( for the year ended Dc\;ember 31. 2009 
primarily due 10 an increase in loreign withh1)lding t~1xes. 

u 1n /m m diH"o11ft111wd "f't'l'allons. ner <~f rar. During the tlu·et: month~ ended June 30. 20 l I. we completed 
our plan to exit our Converged Me:-.~aging Senices bu~ines". The financial re~uh:-. for the year:-. ended 
December 3 1. 2009 and 2010 retle<.:t the result~ of operations of 1he Converged Messaging Service:-, husines~. nc.:1 
of ta:<. a:-. di-.1:ontinued llperation-;. Lo<;~ rrorn discontinue:<.! operation~. nt:t or tax lrlCrt!a-.c.:d $3.5 million primatily 
due wan impairment charge of S8.5 million recorded in lhe fourth quarter or 2010 to \Hite down 1he long-li, cd 
a:.~c:t~ u:-.c.:d in thi:-. hu~inc!:-i:-.. Thi'> increa:-.e 111 lo~:-. i" p<mially offset by a dc.:crease in rc,tructunng charges ol Y3.1 
million a1tributable to the Convergl'u Mes~aging Services rcs1rueturing plan we i11iua1cd in 2008. 



Swwnat}' of Operating Segments 

The following table presents a summary of our operating segment!>' rev..:nue. rnntribution and 1he 
rec:onci liation to con~(i lidated income from continuing operation~ for the year:. ended December 31. 2009 nnd 
2010. 

Revenue: 

C:.uTier Sen ices 
En1erp1i ... e Services 

Total revenue 

Segment contribution: 
C:mier Services 
Emerprisc Services 

Total -.egmenl conu·ibULion 
Indirect operating expen-.e:.: 

Cost of' revenue (excluding depreciation and arnoni1.ntion 
... hown separately bdow) 

Sale-; and marketing 
Re.;earch and development 
General and admirn , trntive 
Deprec1a1ion and am<i11i£ation 
Restructuring charges 

Consolidated im;ome from operations 

:!009 

s 

$357.339 
109.914 

'>467,253 

S:H7.070 
46. 130 

363.'.WO 

66.0l'IO 
15.269 
10.6-14 
50.651 
29.852 

97-l 

s 189.730 

\'car Ended December J I. 

::?OIO 2009 \'S. 20 Ill 

s S Change '.r Change 

(dollars in thou~andsJ 

$391.762 $34.-123 9.6 ';·(: 
129,104 19,190 17.5 % 

$520.866 553,6 13 11.5 % 

S352.317 $35.247 I I.I% 
59.284 13.154 28.5 % 

411.601 48.-101 13.3 'k 

75.690 9.610 14.5 l,} 

16.345 1.076 7.0 ''f 
11.!nl 1,227 11.5 i;~ 
63.750 13,099 25.9 ('t 
32.861 3.009 1().1 l(-

5.•61 4.387 ..+50.-1 'k 

5205.7'.!3 $15.993 8_.4 C"'( 

Scgm..:lll co111ribu1ion is tlc1er111ined bas..:d on int..:rnal pcrforman1.·c measures u~cd by the CODM to a-,,..:s~ 
the perl'ornrnnce or each operating ... cgmcnl in a given period. fn connecti11n with this a~;.essme"1n. the CODM 
re' 1ev.·s revenue and -;egmem contribution. '' hich ex dude:. certain unallocated co-,ts within the fol low mg 
e>.pense cla:.-.itication'>: co,t of rl!venue, ~;iles and marketing. research .md developmem and general and 
admini~trati\'c. Depreciation and amoni.lation and rc:,,truciuring charge:. arc also cxd wfod from the segm..:nt 
wnLribution. 

Consolidated Results of Operations 

We operate in three operating -,egmem" - Carn..:r Service!,. Enterpri-,e Service:. and Information Sen ice-.. 
We ha\e provided con'>olidated rc-,ult<> of operation-. for (1ur Carrier Services operating ~cgment, our En1erpiise 
S.:n ii:cs operating ~..:gmcnt and our Lnforrnation Services t)perating :-t:gmcnl. Ft)r !'urth.:r dis1.:ussion of 1hc 
operating n::.ults of our 1.1perating ~egrnem~. including revenue. segment contribution. rnn-;oli<lated income frtlm 
~·on11nuing o~rauon:-.. and enterpri<.e-wide related disclosures. "~e Note 16 to our Con:.ol11fated Financial 
'itaternents in Item 8 of Pan II or LhlS report. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Our principal ~ource~ of' liquidity are cash provided by financing and operming activities. Our principal uses 
nl' c;i~h ha\.: hcen lO fund acquil>itions. :.har.: repurcha-.es. c;1pital expenditure~. facility e.\p;u1-;ions and debt 
sc.:n ll:C requirement.... \\'e anticipate that tiur princip;1l u-.es or ca'h in the future will be for 'hare repurcha,e:.. 
(:ap11.1l expenditures, debt ~ervice requirements and acqubitions. 



Total cash. cash equivalents and investments were S 135.3 millitrn at December 31, 20 I I. a decrease of 
S2.+7. I million from )382.4 mi ll iCln ::n 0.-:cember 31. 2010. This Jecreas.-: in CilSh, cash equivalents and 
mve:.tment" was primarily due to uur repurchase of $324.3 million of -;hares uf uur Cla~s A common stock. our 
acqui.;itwn of the numbering soluti\lllS as:.et~ for cash .:on:-.i<leration of approximately 539.0 million, anti our 
acquisition of TARGUSi nfo for cash consideration of appro:<imarely S657.3 million. We funded our <Kquisition 
of T ARGUSinfo with a combination of c:ish on hand and borrowings under our new $600 million -;enior secured 
term loan facility. The"e decrease.,\\ ere offset by an increa:-.e of $81.6 million in cash provided b) operations. 

We believe that our existing ca!>h and cw;h equivalent~. short-term investments, and cash from operations 
wi ll ht: ~ufficiem to fund our operations for the next twelve months. 

Credit Fal"ilities 

On November 8, 20 11 , we entered into a credit agreement that includes: ( I ) a S600 million <..enior secured 
term loan facility, or Term F:lci lity; ant.I ( 2) a SI 00 mi Ilion 'cnior secured re\ olving 1..redi1 facilit). ur Revoh ing 
F:icility. and 1ogeth<.'r '~ ith the Tenn Facility. the ~011 Facilitic~. The Rernlving Facilil) matures on 
:-.lovcmbcr 8. 2016. am! the Term F~1c ility mature!> on November 8, 2018. The entire ':>600 million Term Fadlity 
was borrmved on November 8. 20 11. and used to fund a portion of the acquisi tion nr TARGUSinlo and w pay 
cost~. fees and expen\e$ incwTed in connection with the acquisition. We did nor borrow any amounts under the 
Re\ohmg Facility in 2011. 

Principal payments umler the Term Facility of SI .5 mi II ion are due 1111 the last day of the quarter sr:-trti ng on 
December 3 1, 201 I and ending on September 30. 2018. The remaining Term Facility principnl balance of S55~.0 
million i' due in full on :'-/u\·embcr 8. 2018. -.ubject tu earl) 1mm<lallir) prepayment~. The loans Olll~landing under 
the credit facility bear imere:-.t. at 0ur optiPn. either: (i) at the ba~e rate. which i..; dclined al> the h1ghe\t t>f (a) the 
l"ederal funds rate plu~ 0.50%. lb) the interest rate publi <.. hed by the Wall Street Journal a:-. the "U.S. Prime Rate'' 
and tcJ the adjusl<::d LIBOR rate for a one-month interest period beginning on ~uch day plus l.OO'ir: pro1·id1!tl that 
the ba'>C Mc for loan~ un<ler the Term Fadlil) i« deemed lo be not le:.-. than 2.25':r per annum or (ii) at the 
UBOR rate plus. in each cm.c. an applicable margin. The appli1.:able margin 1s (i) in re~pect of the Term Facility. 
2.75% pt.:r annum for borrO\~ ings based on the base rate and 3.75%· per annum for borrowings ba:-.ed 1111 1he 
LlBOR rnll·. and (ii) in respect of the Revolving Faci lity. 2.50'1 per ~innum for bcmowings based on the b:L~e rate 
and 3.5Wf per annum borro\\ ing., ba~ed on the UBOR rate. The m:nucJ interest un<ler the Term Facility is 
pa) able quanerl~ bt>g1nning on fehruary 8. 2012. \!>of December JI. 201 I. the interest rate on the Tem1 fadlit) 
was 5"} per year. The uccrued inten~~t under the Re\'Olving Fat"ility i~ dlh.l on the last day l'f the quarter !--tarting 
nn December 3 1, 20 I I . 

\\ e may rnluntaril~ prep:iy the loaih at any tune in whole or in pan \\ ithout premium or penah). prm idcd 
that an) !>U<.:h prepaymem made on or prior to ;\lovember 7. 2012 in cc111nection with a re-pricing e\ent :-.hould he 
accompw1ied by a p1e111ium equal Lo l.OOo/i- ol the principal amount prepaid. The 201 1 Facilities provide for 
mandatnry prepayrncni.. with the net cash prn..:eeds of cerwin uebl 1~-..uance.s. et1ui ty b-.u:mces. i11'urancc recciph. 
di!>po:-.111ons an<l e\..:l''" ca:-.h flow:.. ~ lanJator) pre pa) ment~ anribulahlc to excl.!:-.' t';t'h now-, \\ i II be ha ... .:d on 
our leverage ratio anJ will hi! determined ~ll the end of ea<.:h fis..:al year. hcginning \\ ith the year ended 
Oecember 31. 2012. J\ leverage ratio of I .5x ~)f higher will tr igger mandatory prcpaymenl.'> of 25"'r ~i r 5()<k o l" 
<'xces1,, cash llow. 

The 2011 Fm:iliue-, contain t•u:-.comary repre'\entatirn1!> and warranue~. :1ffirmati'e and negative <:1J\emll1l'. 
and events of <lefaull. The quarterly finnncial t·ovenams induJe a maximum con~ol idmed fixed charge coverage 
ratio and ;1 minimum consolidated leverage ratio. ,'\;;of and fo r the pe1fo<l from im:eption or the 2011 Facilities Lo 

December 31. .2011. we were m cornpliam.:e wnh the!.e nncnant:-.. Further. \\C belie\c the:-.e cmenant'> \\.Ill not 
rc~trict 11u1 abilit) to execute our hu!>iness plan. 
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A~ of December 31, 2011. our outstanding borrowings under the Term F.icility were 'i>589.7 million and 
accrued imerest under the Facilities was 54.5 million. As of December 31. 2011. the Compnny·s available 
borrowings umk'r the RcH'h ing Fat"ilit)' were SI 00 1mllion. 

Discussion of Ca~h Flows 

2011comparedto1010 

Cash f1ows from upemtions 

Net cash provided by operating acti vi tics for the year ended December 31. 20 I l was S226.4 mill i~ln. as 
compared to $ 144.8 million for the year enc.hi December 3 1. 2010. This $81.6 million increa<.e in net cash 
provided by operating acti\ 1ties was the result of an increa"'e in net income of $54.6 111illiun. an increase in 
non-ca~h adju:.tmcnts ol $29.4 million. and a decrc.i~e in net dumges in oper;11ing a:.:.el:. and liabilities uf S2A 
million. 

~cl income mcrca!>ed $54.6 million primarily due to a change of $55.1 million in the income tax benelil 
from discontinued operalitrn\. In the i"irst quarter of 20 11. we recorded a tax benefit of $42.7 million related to a 
wonhless \tock deduccion for che common ~tod. of Ncustar NGM Service!>. fnc. 

N(\11-<.:ash m.Jjustllll'rllS incrca.~ed $29.4 million due to ;111 inerease or 519.5 million in defem.":d income laxes. 
an im:re:.he or ':>9.8 million io stock-based compen~ation. an increa-,e or ":,6.7 million in depreciation and 
amnni7ation expen~e. an increa,\e of 53.0 million 111 amo11in1tion of bond premiums. and a <; 1.9 million 
11)Ss-on-sale allributable lo 1he sale of certain as,.eb and liabilities l)f lHll' Cun verged Nlessaging Sen ices husine~s 
in the liN quarter or 2011. Thc~c incrca:-.e-. in 111.m-Ca.\h adjustments were partially off!>et by a deacase ol '-.8.5 
1111llion ;mributed to an impairment of long-lived assets of our Cmvergcd :V1e!>'>aging Sen i(:es business recorded 
in 20 l 0. and a decrease of $2.9 million in excess tax benefits from stock option exercises. 

Net changes in operating a:.sets and liabilities decreased ::.2..l million primarily due to an incn:ase of) 18.8 
million in income laxes rt•ccivable, primarily the result of Lhe tal\ benelil we recorded in the first quaner ,,f 2011 
in connection \\1th a deduction for the loss on worthies'> <.tock. a decrea\e or SI 0.0 million in mher ltabilitic<.. and 
,to increa<.e of )7.7 million in prepaid expen:.es and other current a~set~. In addition. deferred CO!>ll> increased S3.7 
1111llion anti n{1lcS receivable inerea),cd )J.4 million. These dccrea,el! in net change:. in operating a<.,set:. anti 
liabilitie., were partially ofl\ct by a net change of ()25.2 million allribut:ible to net in-.:rca'>c~ in accounb payable 
and ai:crued expen~e-; dunng }011 as compared to <lecrea),C\ in 2010. and a net change ol $20.2 million 
attributable to net decrease~ in accou111s and unbilled l'l'ceivabks during 20 11 as cC1mpared 10 increases in 20 10. 

Cash /lmrsjro111 i11res1i111f 

:--let cash w,ed in ime\ting aeti\ ities for the year ended December JI. 2011 wa-, S706.4 million. as compared 
to S72.8 million for the) car ended December 31. 2010. Thi~ S6J3.6 million inlTl'a~c in net ca..,h u~cd m inve\lmg 
activitic'> was primarily due lo an increase of 5673.9 million in cash u:.cd for acqui:-.ition•,, an increase of 530.5 
million in inve-;lmcnt purch:\!>e<.. and :m 111crea'e ')7.7 million in ca-;h used for purclt<L..,es ol prope1ty and 
cquipment. The~e mcrea~es in net c:t),h u~ed in inve..,ung activities \\ere panially offset hy the ini:rease ol "78.-l 
million in ca~h received from 1he sal6 of investments. 

Cush flows fiw11 //11a11C'i11g 

:--lel cash PH'' ided by linancing acti\ itie-; wa:-. ~270.9 million for the year ended December J l. '.!() 11. as 
..:ompan:d to n.:t ca-.h u;e<l in financing acll\ iues or ~45.0 nullion fN the )ear l'nded D..:ccrnbcr 31. :!OJ 0. This 
S,315.9 million inaca~e in ncl cu~h provided by financing activitie:- wa ... primarily the result or nc1 prorccds of 
S59 I .O million from our <.cnior ... ecured term loan faciliry. and an increa.,e of S3 I .5 million in proceed' from the 
exercise of stock 11ptions and a reduction of .;;s.o million in C:l'>h us.:d in principal repaymenL"\ on capital lease 
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obligations. The-;e increa-;es in ca-;h prO\ ided by financing. activitie<; were panially oft\et by an increase of 
S2S3.9 million in cash used to repurchase shares of our Class A common stock under our !-hare repurchase 
pn)grnms. an increase or $20.4 million in debt i:.suan<.:e co:;ts, and a net increase of $8.8 million in n:stricted ca1>h 
primarily used to collaterali7e our outstanding letters of credit. 

2010 compared to 2009 

Cash j7ows /mm opernrions 

:-.let ca-;h provided by operati ng a<.:tivities f<1r the year ended December 3 L 20 I 0 wa' S 144.8 million. as 
t'Olllp<lred to S 175.3 million for the year ended December 31. 2009. This $30.5 million decrease in net ca\h 
pro,idcd by operating acth ities wa'> principally the rc1>ult of a dc<.:reasc in account'> payabk and accrm:d 
expcnse1> of S23.0 million and an inaea-;e in ,1n:ounts rcceivahk of 52 1. I million. These decrea-;e-; in n<!t ca:-.h 
provided by oper:1ting ac ti vi ties were partially offset by a decrease in deferred revenue o r $ I 0.9 rnill ion. 

Ca:.h .flmn f rom i111·<•sr11111 

Net ca~h u:-.eJ investing ac1i vi ties for Lhe year ended December 31. 20 I 0 was $72.8 million. as compared lo 
'>10.6 mil lion for the yea1 ended December 31. 2009. This $62.2 mi llion rncre:ise in net cash u:-.cd in inve~ung 
at'li\ ities \\a\ principally due lO OUI' U<;e of ca~h for the purchal-eS or the pre-refunded municipal bondi> Of ~50.8 

million in 201 O. an incn:a~c or 521.3 million in cash paid for m:qu bitions, and an i ncrea~e of 5 12.6 million in 
purcha<;e:- of property and equipment. Thc:.c u:-.c:; ol' ca\h were partially offset h) an increa<;e in ca~h provided by 
:-.ale-. of ~hort-t<!nn inve'lments of <;22.5 million auributable to our ARS and ARS Right-.. 

Cash .f7m1·s /i'Oln fi11( 111ri11g 

\let ca!>h us-.:d in linam:ing :11.:ti\ itics wa.o; S.+5.0 million for the year ended December 31. 2010. "'compared 10 

S 1 l. 1 million for the year ended December 31. 2009. The $33.9 million increa<;e in net cash u~ed 111 financing 
activi ties was primarily driven by $40.4 million in repurchases of our Cla).S A common stod. under a sh:m.! 
rl.'purchase program announced in .Ju ly 20 I 0. and thi!- UM! wa). partially <lff-.e1 by an incr..-a~e or ')6.1 million in 
proceed!' from the exerche of s11x:k 11ptions. 

Contractual Obligations 

Our principal <.:OITilllllmenb C<'l1'>i~t or obligation-; under our 2011 Credit Facilities. lease:-. for office :-pm.:c. 
computer equipment and lurniture and lixtu r-.:~. and dercrred tax l iabi l i tie~. The fo llow111g table !-Ull1mari7e~ our 
long term contractual t1bligati@:-. a~ or Dec..:mbcr 3 1. 20 11 . 

Pa~ m~nt,; Due h~ Period 

1.e~s Than 2·.' -l-5 ;\Ion Than 
lo1al l Year Yt-ar~ Ye:ir~ 5 \ cur' 

cin thou..,and,) 

Ctpit.il lease obligation., '> "..,.,.., 
~ ·-.,·'- 'i 33 13 "I 2.019 s s 

Operating len~c obligations 86.050 I 1.95.+ 2 1.542 18.21 lJ 34.335 
Tl.'rm Fal'.tlitv I I) 799.671 J6.309 7 I .5J() 70.-W2 621.-121 
Dekn-cd tax li.ibiliti..::-. 121.237 28.348 -18.610 33.9 12 ICU67 

Total '.-1 1.0 12.290 S79.924 ')I <+J.7 10 S\ 22.533 S666. 123 

t I J ln<.:lude~ rntere-.t expense calculmed u .. ing the intere,,t rate at Oecemb-.:r 31. 2011 ol 5<;i· per >ear. l;nder nur 
Term Facility and Revol\.i ng Facili ty. we may be requ ired w 111::.tke n1amlalory prepay111en1 ~ with the net 
cash procccd'> ol' c..:rtain debt issuanc-.:s. equity bi.uances. in"urant'e receipt!>. di-;po"ition"> and cxces., ca"h 
llows. Th..- amount-. presented in the table:-. abme do not rellccl the ac1:clcn11ion of m<mdatory prepayment<; 
that we nm) be required to pay. 



Some of our commercial commitment<> are secured hy standby letters of cre<lit. The following is a summary 
or our commercial commitments secured by .;1andby tellers of credit by commitment <late as or December 31. 
201 1: 

Less·lllan 1-3 4-3 :\lore'l h:m 
Total I Yea r \'ears Ytars S Ye:u-s 

(in thmL~ands) 

Slandby letters or credit SS,760 SS,760 s ~- S- S---- --- -- -- --
The amounts pre~entcd in the tables above may not nece~sari ly refle1.: t our actual future cash funding 

requirement!. because the actual liming of the future payments made may \<\I)' from the stated contractual 
obliga11on. In adt.lition. due to the uncertainty with re~pect to the timing of future cash flows m;sl)dated with our 
um'l!cogniLed tax benefiti. al December 31. 2011. wear.; unable to make reasonably rcliabh:: c!-timatcs of the 
peri<1d of cash settlement with the respecti,·c taxing authority. Therefore. we have not included S 1.6 million of 
unrecogni7e<l tax benelits and intere<.t thereon. in the comractual ob! ig:ition~ table ablWC. Sec Note l 3 to the 
COlhOlid:ued financial statements in Item 8 or Part fl of thi'\ report for a discu~sion on income taxes. 

Effect of Inflation 

lnlhtion generally affects us by increa~ing our co~t of labor an<l 1.!quipmcnt. We do not believe that in nation 
had any material effect ~111 our rewhs of operations during the years ended December 31. 2009. 20 I 0 and 20 l 1. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

See Note 2 10 our Consolidated Finam:ial Stacement'> in Item 8 of Part II of this repon for a di~cussion {1f the 
effccb of recent accounting pronouncement\. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

We had no off-balance ~heet arrangerne111~ as of December 31, 20 I 0 and WI I. 

ITEM 7,\ . QlJ,\NTI'l'.\TIVE .\ ND QUAIS fATIVE DJSCLOSl 'RES ABOUT MA RKET RISK 

We an: cxpose<l Lo a variety ol m~u-ket ri-,ks. including changes in inten.::,.t rates affccting the return un our 
Term Facility. investment!-., and foreign cu1Tcncy lluctu;1tions. 

Borrowin~:-. out!>t<tnding under our Tc1111 Facility bear intere:-.t. at our opuon, either: (i) .11 the ba~l' rate. 
\\ hid1 i!> tldined w• the highest llf (a) 1he federal funds r~1te plus 0.50'-i. <b) Lhe 1mere~1 rate publi!>hc<l by the Wal l 
Street fournal a~ the .. lJ.S. Prime Race·· an<l (c} the adju~ted LIBOR rate for a one-month intereM perioc.I 
beginnmg 011 \l11.:h day plu<. l.O(Yf: pro' i<led that th!:! base rate for loans under the Term Facilit) i' deeme<l to be 
not lc\s 1ha11 2.25<;·( pa annum or Cii) at the LIBOR rate plus. in each case. an applicahlc margin. The appl11..:ablc 
margin is (i) in respect 1>f the Tenn Facili ty. 2.75':4 per annum for borrowings b~1~cc.I on the ha~e rate and 
t15"r per .mnum for h1lrrowi11g-. hase<l 011 the LIBOR rate. and 1iil in re<>pect of the Re\olving Facilit}. 
2.50'·r per <mnum for horro\\ings hase<l 011 the base rate and 3.50~·( per annum boml\\1ng.s ba-.ed llll the UBOR 
rate. ,\s tlf I kccmher 3 1. 2011. the LIBOR rate on our Term Facility wa!:> below lhe applicable margin. or fllh>r. 
,111d a hypothetical incrca1-e or decrease of IO"'c· in the Lll30R rate would not impact our imere~L rate. 

E.\po:-.ure Ill murket rate risk for change~ 111 inten.:1,t rates aff.:cts the 'Jluc tlf our i11.,,cstme11L ptirtfolio. We 
have not u~ed derivative financial inslruments to bedge again<;t -;uch risk in our i1we1,tn1enl porlfolio. We i11w-;1 
in -;ecuritie!> or highly-rated issuer\ anc.I folio\\ inve,tment pofic.:ie' limiting.. among 111hcr things. the amount (lf 
aedit e\ptNtre to any l'lle 1s!.uer. We seek to limit default ri<.k by purcha!.ing ti11ly invel>tment-grnc.le <;ecunue:-.. 
We do not ,u:tivcly nwnagc the risk of interest rate tluctuations on our short-lerm invcstmcnb: however. our 
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e:-.p0-;ure to thi" risk is mitigated by the relatively shon-term nature of these investments. Based on a hypothetical 
I OCX adver-;e movement in interest rates. the impact on our imere!'.l income for our short-term investments for the 
year ended December 31, 20 l l would have been in~ignific.:an l. 

We ha\e accounts on our foreign subsidiaries· ledgers which are maint~1ined in the respective subsidiary's 
local foreign currency and remea!>ured imo the United Slates dollar. As a result. we are e>..pose<l to movemo::nts in 
the exc:h:rngc rates of various currencies against the United Stales dollar and again~L Lhe currencies of other 
countrie!> in which \H! sell service~. A<> of December 31. 2011. our a~~ets and liabilitie~ related to non-dollar 
dcn0minated currencies were primarily related to i111ercompany payable:.. and rec<!ivahles. An increa'.\e or 
de<.:rease of !Olh in foreign exchange rate w~)uld not have a material impact on our fi11,1ncial position. 

Because our :-ales an<l cxpen'e are primarily denominatt!d in local currency. the impat:t of foreign <.:urrency 
lluctuations on <.ale:. and 0xpenses h<t~ not been material. and we do not employ mt:asurcs imcnde<l to manage 
foreign exchange rate ri.-.k. 

54 



ITEl\1 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

l~DEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINAl'\CIAL STATEMENTS 

P<1ge 

Report or lndeJX!mlem Registered Public Accouming Firm 56 

Consolidated Balant.:c Sheets as of Det.:ernbcr 31. 20 I 0 <tnd 201 l 57 

Consolidated Statement~ (11' Operation-. for the years entl..:d December 31. 2009. 20 I 0 and 20 I l 59 

Consoli<lated Statemems or Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31. 2009. 20 I 0 and 20 I l 60 

Con"oli<latc<l Statcmem:. or Cao;;h Flow~ for the year:. ended December JI. '.!009. 20 I 0 an<l 2011 6 1 

~ntes to Con~oli<lated Financial Statement" 62 

55 



REPORT OF fNDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FlRM 

Board of Director~ and Stod:holder:. 
NeuS1ar. Inc:. 

We ha\e audi1ec.l the accompan) ing consolida1ed balance ~heels of NeuStar. Inc. a~ of December 3 l. 20l0 
and 20 l I. and the related ctmsolidalcd statcmcms of operations, ~Lockholtlers · equity, and cash now<; for each of 
1he three yC'ars in the period ended December .31. 2011. Our audits abo im:ludeJ the financia l statement schedule 
li-;1ed in the lndex at Item 151a)12). These financial statements and '>chedule are the re<;pon-;ibiliry of the 
Company"' management. Our re~ponsibility is to expre"s an opinion on these linancial ~1a1emen1s anc.l schedule 
based 0 11 our audil~. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the "lane.lards of the Public Company /\ccouming Over.,ight 
Board (United States). Those standards require U1at we plan und perform the audil to obtain rea~onable as~urance 
ahout \\hcther the tin:mctal -;taterne111<; are free of materi::il mis,t:itement. An audit includes ex:uninmg, on a lt:~t 
ba:.is, evi<lem:e 'upponing the amounts and <lisdo~ures in the financial :-.t;1tcrncnts. /\n audit abo includes 
assessing the accounting prin<.:iples u~ed and signiJicam e~timmes made by management. as wdl a:-. evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit:. provide a re~1.,onablc b:i.~i-; for our 
opm1011. 

In our op11uon. the financial :-.taternrn1c; referred Lo abme pre,ent fairly. in all material rcspech. the 
consolidated financial (X)'>Jlion ot NeuStar. Inc. at December 31. 2010 and 20 l I, and the consolidated re:-.ull'i pf 
its operntwns and its cash llows for rach or 1hc three years in the period ended December 31. 2011. in conformity 
wi1h U.S. generally at:ceptl'<l acc:ouming principks. i\l<;o. in our opinion. the rdated linam;ial -;iatement st:hedule. 
\\hen con-.1dere<l 111 rela1i1m to the ha-;ic financial !.tatemcnts taken as a whole. present<. fairly in all material 
re1'pe<.:1s the informarion <:cl fort h therein. 

We alsu ha'c audited. in act:ordancc ''1th the :-tandards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United StatcsJ, NeuStar. Inc.":. internal control over financia l reporting as of December 31, 20 I I. ha\e<l on 
criteria e<.;tabli,hed in Internal Control - lntegrnteu Framework i:.\ued hy the Commirtee of Spon.,oring 
Organi1ation!> of the Treadway C\)mmis~ion ;.ind our repon daied February :!CJ, 2012 i:xpressed Hll unqualified 
<)pmion thereon. 

\kLe:m. Virginia 
February 29. 2012 
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NEUST,\ R, INC. 

CONSOLlDA TED BALANCE SHEETS 
(in thousands, except share and per share data) 

ASSETS 
Curl"l!lll a:-.:.el\: 

Cash and ca:;h equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Short-term ill\ e'>lmcnl<; 

Account'> receivahle. net of allowance for doubtful acwunb or SI .435 and S 1.9-12. 
respectively 

U nbi lied receivable~ 
'.'fmes recei..,able 
Prepaitl ex penses and other current assets 
Ot: ferred costs 
Income l<l\es receivable 
Dt!lerred tax asset!-

T olal current as:-.ets 

Long-term inve:.tmt:nts 
Property :inti equipment. net 
Uoodwil I 
lncangihle a ... :.et<>, net 
Note'> receivable. long-term 
Def"errc:d costs. long-term 
Defem:d tax asscls. long-term 
Other a ... set:.. long-term 

Tolal a..,-,ets 

See accom1u111yi11g note\. 

57 

lkccmher JJ. 

:?010 2011 

$33 l.570 $ 122.237 
556 10.25 1 

L3.802 10.545 

82,250 106.27..f. 
7.1 88 5.551 

567 2.786 
12.797 29.7 14 
5.8..f.9 8. 17..t 

37.599 
6.1 46 6,26..f. 

460.725 339.:\95 

37.009 2.506 
7-L296 100.1 02 

124.65 1 574.65 I 
18.97..f. 338.768 
1.023 3.748 
1.052 701 

10. 137 
6.lXl7 22.767 

$733.874 SI .382.638 



NEUSTAR. ~C. 

CONSOLIDATED JlALA NCE SHEETS 
tin thousands, except share and per share data) 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Current liabilitie),: 

t\..:count~ payable 
A..:crueJ expenses 

Income taxes payable 
Defem:d rl!\ enue 

:-.Jore payable 
Capi tal lease obligations 
• \ccruo.:<l rc!>tructuring rc:-.ene 
Other liabil ities 

Total current liabilitie" 
Oetem:d revenue. long-term 
Note p~1yable. long-term 
Capilal l c~1sc ob ligation~ . long-term 
. \cerut:d restru..:turing re-;en e. lnng-term 
Oerem:d ta:-. liability. long-term 
Othc:r Jiah11ili.::s, long-term 

Total lbbilitics 
Commitment:> and l'ontingencie.; 
S{()d,holder<> • equity: 

Prd'..:rn.:d i.tock. S0.00 I par vuluc: I 00,000.000 ,har~·-; authori1cJ: no :-.hares 
issued and out,tanding a' of December 31. 2010 and 2011 

Class A common -;wet..., par 'aluc S0.00 I; 200.000.000 share-; .iuthori7ed; 
30,294.573 and 82.959.411 ~lwre~ is!>ued and out:-. tanding at Ot!cembcr 31. 
20 I 0 and 2011. r..:spc:cti\'dy 

Cla!>:-. B common -;ttx:k. par , ·alue 50.001: I00.000.000 ..,hare<. authorizeJ: :>.082 
and 3.082 share~ i<.:-.ued and out:-.tanui 11g at December :11 . 20 I 0 un<l 2011 . 
respectively 

\dditional paid-in capital 
Trea.\ui: ~toci..., 6.665.228 and 16.807.9.n ~hare:. at 01.!cemher 11, 2010 and 20 11 . 

re~pecl l\·ely. at C(l'.t 

.\ccumulale<l other compreheu~i\'e lo!>~ 

Retatnl.!d .:.1ming:. 

fotal :.trn:kholdcr:. • i::quity 

rotal hahilities and <.tockhol<lers' equity 

See r1ci:r>m/7tt11yi11g 11ot1's. 

Occcmbcr 31, 

'.WlO 20t t 

$ 3.882 $ 7.385 
57.808 79.33-1 

l.590 
31.75 1 -1 1,080 

-1.856 
6.325 3.005 
-1.703 4.3<> I 
9..t45 5.3 17 

115.50.+ 1-15.398 
10578 ICU63 

58-1.809 
4.076 1.9 18 

315 
121.237 

7.289 1(1.279 

137.762 880.00-1 

l\O 83 

364.3-16 -116.598 

t 169.84XJ C-195.740) 
( 144) 1758) 

-101 .678 562.501 

5%.J 12 502.6J4 

~ 7:\.1.87-1 c;; 1 . .\82.638 



NEUSTA R. lNC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERA TIO~S 
(in thousands. cxrept per share data ) 

Year Ended December 31. 

Revenuo::: 
Carrier Sen i..:c-; 

Enterpri<;e Sen ices 
Information Service' 

To1:il revenue 
Operating expense: 

C1)!>l or revenue (excluJing depreciation and amorti1.arion shown 
... cparately hclow) 

Sak'> and marh.eting 
Rt:scar..:h and <levelopmcnt 
General and adminbtrauve 
Depreciation anJ am~111in1ion 
Rc:-.tructuring t·h<u·gcs 

Income from operations 
Other (e>..pcn;-,e) income: 

lm.:n.!-.t anJ other expense 
I 111.:rcst and other income 

Income from continuing: operation'> before income ta:<t!' 
PrU\·ision for income ta.\t!S. continurng operations 

Income rrom continuing opcrations 
t Lo\:-.) 111come from di,cominued operation,,. net of tax 

'lel income 

Ba~ic nrt 111come (loss) per common 'h:ire: 
Cnntrnuing operation.., 
Dii.cominucd <1perations 

Ba).ic net incomc per common ~hare 

Di luted net int·ome cl0s~l per <.:0mmon :-.hare: 
Continuing operauon-; 
Di ... conrinueJ opernuons 

Diluted n..:t in<.:ome per ctm11nnn share 

Weighted a,·erage common -;hare!. t1ut-.1ancling: 
Ba;-,i<.: 

Dilut.:d 

See m·co111pw1ying note!>. 
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!009 

... 357.339 
109,914 

461 .. 253 

99.436 
80.676 
1-k094 
52.491 
29.852 

97-1 

277523 

189.730 

15.213) 
7,491 

192,008 
76.498 

115.510 
11-Uo9) 

5101.141 

:;, 1.55 
(0. 19) 

.., 1.36 

"> 1.53 
tU. 19) ., 1.3-1 

7-UOl 

75.465 

201() 2011 

$391.762 $447.894 
129, I 0-l 151.390 

2 1.17 1 

520.866 620,455 

! 11.282 137.9l)2 
86.363 109.855 
13.780 17.509 
65.496 96.317 
32,861 -16,209 

S.36 1 \549 

315.143 -l I 1.4.1 l 

205.723 209.024 

(6.995) <6.279) 
7.582 1.966 

206Jl(l 20-Ull 
82.282 81. 137 

12-Ln28 123574 
( 17 .. 819) 17.2-19 

">106.209 s 160.823 

s 1.66 $ 1.69 
(0.24) 0.5 1 

~ 1.42 s 2.20 

') 1.63 <') 1.66 
m.23 i 0.50 

s 1.-10 ::. 2.16 

7-k555 72.974 

76.065 1-IA96 



NEVSTAR. 11'\C. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUJTY 
(in thousands) 

Cla<~ A Classn ,\ ccumulatcd 

Conunon Stock Common Stock ,\ dditionol Oth~r Total 
Paid-in Trcasu1·y Comprchcn~i~c Retained Stockholder~' 

Shm·l·s ,\mount Shan•s Amount Capital Stock Lt~'S EarninJ,!S E<1uity --- ---- --- ---
BalJn.:c at Dcccmocr 3 I. ~008 18.925 '.:) i9 -I ) 5321.528 S1128A03J St:H9J $19-1 . .328 s 386.653 

Commun ,md option' .:"crchcd '-l-1 1.7116 1.7116 
'itod.-b.L,e<l l'mnpen"1uon 

cxpen;e 1-1.279 14.279 
Convcr~ion of Cla'~ 13 common 

,t,~k 10 Cl~." A commcH\ st<,,;k I II l 
Rc,trkted ,tod. grJnt.:d. n\'t 
Cummon 'h"-k fe•ci,\'J lor ta\ 

155 

\\tthhuldin!l 
E'ce'' tax bc1wlit from ,toe~ 

135-1) c '!i-ll 

11p1in11 c ~aci.c' :.% '\% 
'•'t in~<'m<' IOI.I-II IOI.I II 
Oth.:r comprchc1hi'c income 

Unn·ah1.:d gain on 
in' c~uncn t-.:. net ol' tn1' of 
'>170 141 1-11 

F.1re1g11 currcnc> lran,lation 
:1<lJU'tmcnt. net 01 I<!\ 01 
~11-l- 275 :!.75 

Cl)lnprclw11:-1 ve i ncnmc 101557 

BalmKc al Dcct1uticr .~I 2009 7'>.-125 7') ·' 1J8.l09 (I :8.7571 c-lo.'> ::.<JS.-169 ~0-1.-1 '7 
Cummon 'l<I<:~ opt1011' l"\eR•":J 5'JCI I 7.765 7.7t>ti 
'it•x~·bas....J compcn~.lla>n 

C\pC'n'c 18.252 I X.252 
Rc>11·ic1cd ,1,11,;k ~ramcd. net :!71 
Common 'Ind, rcpurcha~ 
Cnmmon '''"" recel\<'<l fnr 1ax 

t-10.-l(Kl) \.UJ.-l-00) 

w11hhol<l111)( lb91) \(1'Jl1 
'let ex~,::,, 1:1x benefit from '"lC~ 

11p11on cxe1c1>cs .220 .220 
\!..:11 ricomc 106 . .:!09 IOh.:!.tl<J 
Otlu:r ..:t'mprd1cn,1ve 111..:omc 

Unrcal11cJ t!'"lm on 
111\C,lllleOI>. nel of I.IX uf 
'>1.IU .:!77 ::.77 

l'orc1gn ..:urrcncy tr:m~lmwn 
,iJju,tmcnt. rn.'I of ta" o[ 
'lll'l -l:! 12 

Comprcilen'i' e tnlome 106.5211 
l.lalan..:l· at D.:n·mb,•r ·11. :w Ill XCJ.Z95 1:\0 I lb-U.lti (169.l!-!Sl tl-1-1) -IOl,l17S 5%.112 

(·nmnl<lll '''x~ t'pt1,)n' ~'"''n.:1~~d 
:-.1ock-ha,,.;J ..:umpen,at1<1n 

::. . '·10 ,\ .\9,.275 l'l.271' 

\.·,pcm.\! ::.s.m;:1 2lUISS 
F.qun~ ·'"~ml' ·"'umcd 111 

I AR(iUSinli> a..:t1ui,11um 677 1177 
Rc,tn.:ted ,1od. 11ramed. lll'I 121 
C "•mrnon 'u d, n:pur..:h;1...: 1 ;z-1.Jlll l 1J2-l .'OI l 
< 'omrnon '""k rcccl\ cd l<•r t.1\ 

"1thholdmg 11.(1-l I l Cl.6-Hl 
\ct C\(;C" wx bt•ncl it lrom ''"<.:k 

np1ton t:xl·r~1:;.'°' -L.212 -1.212 
'e:• 1nt.:ome !1111) .. ~.' 160.1123 
'Jthl.!r lOmmch~1h1v-.: 1n~<,mc 

t.:nr~al11r<l Ith< on 
IO\~'tmcnL,. 11~1 "' lilX uf 
::.~ 1-l t-151) tlC\I) 

i--nr~l~O t..:Ufr~ncy lr011l"-l;1llOl1 
J1h1Nllll'OI. nel ol ta' 1lf 
'W6 1 lt1.~ I 1 J (J_,) 

Co111prl'11cn"ve inct•ffil! lf')(J.209 

ll.il.in~c at D«ccmbl'r _;I. ~I) 11 ~2.9~9 S lG -:,_ ~J6.511X '>1495.~91)) ::.<7~~1 S5f12.50I S 50Z.f>:\4 --- -- - -- ---- -- - ---
See accompanying 1111111.\. 
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NEliSTAR. ll\C. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
lin thousands) 

Y car Ended Dcccmhcr 3 1. 

Upcrnung ucti' i1ies: 
"1l'l IOCC\ITit 
.-\Jju,11nc11ts «>reconcile net inc:<•mc IC\ nel ca'h prl" 1J.-d hy opemung Jclh 1lic,: 

l)cprecia11on and amon11al11111 
St1><:k-ba<ed compensation 
Amortization ot .tcterreJ l1n:111cing co'" anJ origmal 1~;.uc di;.comll on Jcb1 
L".:.s; tax b1:ncli1s from 'lllCk op1i1•n cxcR"c;. 
D~lcm:d income t;\."tc> 
hnpamncnt 01 l1111g-li\'cJ ""Ct' 
Prnvi,inn for ,Joubtful ;iccrnml<. 
( i:1in;. on av:1ibhle-for->alc i11 ,csr111cnu. ;ind trading 'ccuritic> 
l,11;.;. on au..:1i1)n r:ue -e.:uritic~ ri2hh 
\nMrrilallon ,,t bunJ prc11Hu111 ~ 
Lu» on J'>Cl ;.ak 

Cliange' m Op.!r:11ing: a.,;.e1;. a11J liahilitie,. net of acqui>i111rn,: 
A~cuunt;. rc:cc1vable 
Llnb11led rccc1\;1hle;. 
'.\c\IC< l'\.'CCi\ ;)f'\IC 

Prepaid C'fli.'ll'lt'< and other curren1 a."cL' 
Ddcrrcd co'b 
l ncomc: ta~e' rccci vahh! 
Other a''ci-
Oth.:r liahll11ie' 
\l'COUnt' pay:1ble and .ICCllJl'tl CXP<'ll~' 
lnrnme 1:1.~c' p:w:ible 
.\«cru<'d rc>tn1cwrine rc,,·rvc 
Ddl!rrcd rcwnuc ' 

'llc1 ca'h p1mu.JeJ b) upcra1ing acU\11IC\ 
(0\ C\ltnl! at:ll\ ttic,· 

l'urcha,cs nt p1"<)P,:n} and equipment 
Salt's and 111aturi1ic-<: Clf 111 vc,11ne111s 
Purrha\c<: ol ill\ CSlmcnt\ 
Hti-ine"c' uc4uir<!d. n<.'t uf c:L'h aci111i~d 

l\t.'t ca'h u-cd in 1Jl\e,11ng .1cll\ i1ie' 
1--rnan~ing uctJ\ 1t1c,. 

lnnca'e in rl'\ll'ic1ed c:l\h 
Pmceed,. l'rc•m note pavablc: 
Prmcipal tl'I·"'> rncnL' ,in n<•tc' p:t) Jbf..: 
Principal rt•pa)mcnt' nn 1:ap1tal lea,c ublig:mnn' 
I )(!ht i"'u;tn1,,;.i: t.:tl'L' 

Proceed, lrom exerd'c nt common \IOc~ nrtion, 
l~\Cc~ 1.1\ hcncli1s from wick-l'~'cd ..:ompcns:11inn 
Rl·purchJ'c ''' rc,11ic1cd 'l<>ck ;iward' 
Rcpurcha-c ••I <<•mmon '((" ~ 

'\ct ca,h (u,cd in1 prov1dctl h} tin.mc:mg .1ctl\ 111c' 
Eltc<.:I nl fnrc1g11 c•d1angc ralc\ un <.::t'h and ca>h eq1mafcnr, 

l\c1 mnc:L'C tdtc:rcil'Cl in ca'h :ind cash •·qui\ alcnb 
( ·.1<h ;ind cai.h c4111\ alcn:~ :i1 hcgmning nt) c.ir 

C.1,h :ind c:ll.h ClfUI\ ;1lcnt\ at end Clf )Cai 

!-.upplcmenrnl c<i.h now mform:11ion: 
('a,h p:ud lor IOIC~\I 

( "'h p:ud lnr 1n.:ome 1aw' 

'\,111 ·.:3,h imc,uni: acll\ 1Uc>: 
Proper!) .inti equipment .1rquired unJ.;r capital l~:tw' 

-\ccouni- P·»Jble incu1y,·d 10 purch.t.'<' prupcny and e4u1pmen1 

liljuity :t\\Uld' :h,umed 111 T.\RGl $11110 acqui,i111111 

St'e accom1"1nyi11~ norn. 

2009 2010 2011 

'::illll.1-11 

1l(.o.rn 
14.279 

169 
15%) 
3.2~8 

.\,(~l.5 
r-Ul78) 
.?5!..1 

.1.621 
12.1561 

759 
11.0601 
3.204 
S.2 17 
11!!3) 
l • .?12 

10,.\97 
2.764 

114 
( 1).1471 

17~.344 

<25.497) 
15.274 

1150) 

11057.1) 

(It)} 

11 . .1771 
1'.1.6571 

l.706 
596 

1154) 

111 . IO.!) 
8' " 

15.l.752 
1~11.\2') 

-,10-l.5XI 
----
~ Ul3 
----
) 56.'.1% 
----
) I0,787 
----
" l .fl'"J.! 
----... 
----

SI06.209 

.l(J,lf'i7 
111.25! 

17() 
! l.61JJ 
(4,.t.10) 
8.495 
Y>OO 

17.0()7) 
6.892 

12 

<l 7.515) 
il,20!) 
11.5'.llJ) 
(~J) 

1,746 

15201 
o.774 

02.6l:H 
-139 

1.448 
1.7115 ----

144.777 

118,077) 
17.7.!5 

150.7621 
( 21.6511) 

<72.7721 

1441 

1llK7l 
112 . .?IU~I 

7.7<1'1 
1.61.\ 
11191) 

I 11)..jl)(l) 

! 1-1.•)51 I 
(65> 

26.l)l(I) 

_;O.l 5RI 

5331.570 
----
<, I .?-17 
----
' "' ~.i~6 
----

" l..IP 
----
\ (.1()4 

----
'i 
----

5 160.!<23 

-111,8.17 
2k.m;x 

7114 
(..15-lll 
15.025 

1.596 
1701 J 

2.ll75 
l.933 

1.t624) 
.!, 11 l 

<-1 .'>44) 
\8,_121)) 

11.97-1) 
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NEUST.\ R. INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOL IDA TED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS At~D ORGANIZATION 

NeuStar, Inc. (the Comp<my or Neustar) i:,, a trusted. neutral provider or real-time information and analytics 
to the Internet, communication~. elllertainment. auvcrtising and marketing inuustrie:- th roughout the world. Using 
the Company's advanced. secure technologies. the Cornp:.my provides addressing. muting. policy management 
and authentication services that enable its customers 10 find their end users. route network. trnffic lo the optimal 
location and verify end-user identity. The Company provides -.ervice1. to both communications :-.er, ice provider•" 
or carrier~. and commercial bu~inc:-:-1.!s, or entcrprbes. With the Company')> cxpcni.;e in databa-.c management 
and analysi:>. the Company abo pwvide:-. c:yber .;cc:uriry. marketing and ad,crtising information and analytic:. to 
it~ cu~tomers. 

The Company was incorporated as a Dela\\ an: corporauon 111 1998. The Company was founded to meet the 
technical and operatilmal challenge:- of rhe commumcation~ industry '"hen the U.S. go,:ernment mandated local 
number portability in 1996. The Company pro' ides the authoritative solulion that the communicntions indu:-.Lry 
rdics upon to m~·ct this mandate. Since then. the Company has grown to offer a broad range of innovative 
services. im:ludi ng registry :.er' ices. managed tlomain name ~y:-.tcm (DNSl services. Internet Protocol tlPJ 
ser\'ices. fixed IP geolocation services. internet .,ecurily sen1ces. caller identitic:ation (Caller ID) -;ervices. web 
p.::rtormance monitoring services. and real-time information and anal>Lics sen.1ce1>. 

The Company operates in three segments: 

C(/rria Serl'ic·es. The Company's carrier ser\'ices include numbering <;ervice:-.. order management 
.;ervice:-. and IP sef\ ices. Through it:- set of unique databases and S) Mem infra:-.tructurc in 
geogrnphically disper<tcu data centers. the Company manage'> the increasing comple\ity in the 
communication~ indu~try and ensure:- the se:imles<.. connection of its <.'a1Tier customer•;' numo::rou.; 
networks. while also enh:rncing the t•apabi lities and performance of 1hcir infrastructure. The Company 
\lperate!. the authoritative databases that manage virtuall y all telephone area codes and numberc;. ~1ml 
enables the dynamic routing of calb and text me:.sages among numerous competing carrio::rs in the 
United St;ite-. and Canada. All carrier\ that ofl~r ccl..:communicauons <;cn·ice:-. to the puhlic ac large in 
the L'mted States and Canada must acce:-:- a copy of th<! Company'-; u1114ue databa"<! to properly route 
their customers· calls and text me,sage1>. The Company also l'acilit:Ue<. order management and work­
lluw procc::-.~ing amo11g carriers. <Ind allow~ operator~ to manage am! optimiLe the: addressing and 
routing ol 1 P communications. 

£11tapriw Sen·iffs. The Company·<.. emerprise -.en ice' include Internet infra")tructure '\ervices •IOU 
rcg1:.11y 'crvkes. Thwugh the Company·-. global directory platform. the Company provide:- a suile of 
DNS 'ervi<.:es lo its enterprise cuswmers. The Company manages a collection ol directories that 
ma11ttain addres~es in \)rder co di reel. priori tize and 111a11age Internet 1raffic. :rnd lO find and resol \'e 
Internet queries and top-level domain'\. The Cornpan> b the authoritative provider ol e<.,ential registr~ 
\Cf\ ice.., and manage-.. directories of ... imil.ir resource:.. or ad<lre::.se:.. that its customer<. u-..e for reliable. 
fair and 'ecure acce:-~ ;m<l conne<:t1\ it~. In addition. enterprise t'ustomer:- rel) on the Company·, 
-;en ices to monitor and load-test \\<!h~ite~ to help identil'y i~~ues and nptimi1.e performance. The 
Company also provide!. l'ixed LP g:eolocatilm servi<:e~ that help enterprises idenlify the localion or their 
on line c:on,umers for a variety of purpo\e~. including fraud prevention an<l marketing. Add11ionally. the 
Compan} provides directory :.t::n ice-. for the 5- and 6-digit number -.trings used tor all C.S. Common 
Short Codes, \\hi ch i~ part of the ~hl'rt me:-saging :.en ice relied upon b} the C .S. '' irelcss mdu:-.try. 

/11jor111a1io11 Sariccs. The Company"· information services include on-demand .\olutions rhat hdp 
carri..:rs and enterpri :-...:s identify. v..:ri l'y . .,c:orc and loeatc -:ustomers and prospecti\I.! c:usLomers. The 
Company':. authoritati~c databases and solutions enahlc ii:-. c:liems to make informed decisions in real 
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Lime about consumer-initiated imeractions on the lntemc:1. over 1he telephone and at the point of sale. 
by correlating consumer identitier inft)l'mation with attributes such as demographics, buying behaviors 
and location. This allow<; the Company's customers to offer consumers more relevant services an<l 
producb.. and ka<ls to higher diem con\'er ... ion rates. The Company·., busines:. li\ting'> i<lentity 
management sen·ices help local bu~inesses <tn<l national brand<: improve the vbibility of their onlinc 
business lbtings on lo<.:al search c:ngi nes. Using the Company's proprietary database, the Company's 
tmline display advenising solution allows marketers 10 display. in real time. advertisements 1ha1 will be 
most relevant 10 online <.:tm·.;umer<> without the need for online beha\'ioral tr:id.ing. 

2. SUMMA RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation 

The <.:tm~olida1ed financial :)la1emen1~ indude the accounts of the Company an<l i t~ wholly owned 
-;ubsidiaries. All material intcn.:omµany 1ran-..ac1ions anJ a<.:coun1s have been eliminated in co11~olida1ion . The 
Company consolidmcs investment-.. where il has a wntrolling linancial intere~1. The usual condition l<1r 
controlling financial i111eres1 is t)Wnership or a majorit} of lhe \'Otmg in1ere:.1 and. therefore. a-. a general rule. 
owm:rsh1p, directly or indirectly, of more than 50"f of the outstanding '<oting :-,hare-. is a condition indicallng 
consolidation. The Company doe~ not have any variable interest entide~ or investments accoumcd !"or untkr the 
i:qui1y method of accounting. 

Discontinu<.'d Operations 

A business is da-;sitie<l as discontinued operations when ( I ) the operations and cash flow' ot the bu .. ines~ 
can be c lear!) clis1ingubhed and have been or \\ill be eliminated from the Compan) ·,ongoing operations: (2) the 
busine~-. ha<; either been disposl.'J of or i~ da-.-.1fie<l as hdtl for ~ale: and 13) the Company will 1101 ha\c any 
~igniti<.:an t continuing imolvemt:nL in the openi1ion~ of the hu~i ne:.~ after the dispo,:d 1ransac1ion. The results of 
dbcontinucd operation<. <as well a~ the gain or lu-;s on the di'iposal) are aggregated and 5ep;\rately presented in 
the Company· s consolid:ued 'itatement of operauons. net ol income 1axe5 . 

. \cquisit.ion of Targus Information Corporation 

On \lovember 8. 2011 , the Compan) completed ii!> acqu1~1uon of Targu~ 1ntomiation CorpNation 
(T.\RGLSinfoJ. A<ldttional detaih regarding 1h1-. ,1cqui-.ition ,1re included in :--io1e 3 helm". 

Reclassification 

In the o;ernnd quarter ol 2011, 1he Company cca ... ed opc:rnllon' of ih Com erged \le,,aging Sernce ... 
busine-.-;. a compt111cnl pre\ iow.ty presented \\dlhin the Compan: ·.., Carrier Sen ice<. opera1111g segment. The 
re~ult~ or operation:-. or ib Converged ~les ... aging Scrvil'l!S busme<.<; have been n.:dassificd a~ JiM.:0111i11ued 
<'pera1ion~ for all periotlo; pre~cnte<l hec Note 3 ). 

Csc of Estimates 

The preparation or linancial 'ilalemenls in tunformity Wll h U.S. grnerally :tl'Cl'pted a<.:coun1ing prin<.:iple:. 
< G.S. G.-\r\Pi requires managemelll to mai...e e~1im:ues anJ a ... ~umption' that <1ffect the repone<l at11ou1w.; ol ;1~-.el<. 
.mt! li.1bditit'~. the c.li-;clo ... ure or c~inlingem a-;sel'i and liabilnies at the date or the linancial '-l:itcmenls and the 
rcpolled :unounts o( re\ cnue and expense Juiing the repl)rting period!.. Significant ..:stimah:::. and as~umplion~ arc 
inhert:nl in the analy~is an<l 1hc measurement or deferred la:< asset:,; the i<lenli f'ication and qu:mtilication of 
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income tax liabilities due to uncertain ta.\ positions: r.:structuring liabilities; valuation of investments; 
recovernbility of inli.tngihle assets, other Jong-lived asset~ and goodwill: and che determination of the allowance 
for doubtful accounts. The Company bases its e~limates on historical e>..perience antl m.sumptions that it believes 
are re:1sonable. Actual re.,uhs could differ from those estimates. 

Fair Value of Financial rnstrumcnt.s 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB> Accounting Standards Codification (A$C) Topic 
Finandal l n~trumi:nts requires disclosures of fair value inl°omiation about linanci:.tl instrument!>, whether or not 
recogni1..c<l in the balance sheet. for which il is practicable to estimate that value. The carrying amounts reported 
in the accompanying con-;oli<lated financial statements approximate the fai r value for c:1sh and ca-;h equivalents. 
account'> receivable. accounts payable and accrued expenses due to their short-term nature. The Company 
detemune!- the fair \alue of it~ inve!.tments u-;ing third-p;trty pricing sources. which primarily use a con~ensus 
price or weighted average price for the fai r value asse~~ment. The consensu~ price is determined by using matrix 
prices from :l variety of indu<>try ~tandard pricing services. data providers, large financial institutions and other 
third patty source,., and utiliLing those matrix prices as inputs into a <li'\tribution-curve-based algorithm tl' 
determine the e:.timated mnrket 'alul.!. Matri\ prices arc: bas..:d on quoted prices for securities with similar terms 
<i.e. coupon rate, maturity. credit rating) bee Note 5). The Company believes the carrying value <if its notes 
receivable approximates fair value as the interest rate approximates a market rate. The Company believes the 
carrying \alue of it'> long-tem1 dt!ht approximates the fair value of the debt as the terms and rates apprO.\imate 
marl-.et rate.-~. 

Tht! c:-.timated fair values of' the Company'<; financial instrument:-. arc :i:-. foll ow!> (in thousands): 

ca.,h and cash e4ui' aknts 
Restricted ca~h (current <L'>,.el\) 
Sll(ll1-tcrm investment;, 
Note' rcceivable (including current po11ion1 
~1arkctable .;ecuritiei. !other a ... set;,. long-term) 
Long-term mve,unent'\ 
Defcrrcd compensation (other liabilitie" hmg-termJ 
Nlitc payable (induding current portion) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

.:?Oto 

Carrying 
\mount 

.:;:;:; 1.570 
<; 556 
) 13.802 
s 1.590 
'> 3.68 1 
'> 37.009 
... 3.621 
s 

F:iir \'<iluc 

<;33 l.570 
) 556 
<;, 13.802 
s 1 .590 

'> J.681 
'> 37.009 
.;, 3.62 1 
::.. 

201J 

( 'arrying 
\mount 

"122.237 
) 10.251 
"i 10.5-1-5 
s 6.5'.t.I 
"> -Ul08 
s 2.506 
::. 4,028 
5589.665 

Fair V:Jluc 

<; 122.237 
s 10.251 
s I 0.545 
s 6.534 
s -1.008 
) 2506 
) -L028 
5589,665 

The Company con<. ider~ al l highly li4uid inve<>tments. which :ire invc~uncnt" 1h:1t are readily convertible 
iuw ca'h and ha\c original maturities of thrc..: months or les., at the time of purcha.,c. to be ca'h equi"alent'i. 

Restricted Cash 

,\,of Dccemhcr 31. ?.OIO and 201 1. re ... tricted cash wa\ )(J.6 million and SHU million. r6pcctivdy. 1\\ ;1f 

December JI. 2011. cu'ih of S9.2 million \\:.t'i re<.tricted a<. collateral for the Co111p.1ny· ~ out~tanJing letters 11f 

credit hc::c Note 9). A!- or December 31, 2010 anJ December 31. 2011. cash of S0.6 million and SI.I million. 
rc~pecti vcly. wai. restricted for dcrosils on kascd facilitic;,. 
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Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Financial in),trumcnts that arc potentialJy <;ubject to a concentra1ion of credit rbk con:-.i:-.t principally of ca:.h, 
cash equivalents. investmcnrs. and accounts receivable. The Company'~ ca~h management and investment 
policies are in place to re~trict placement of the\e instruments'" ith only tinancial institution~ e\ aluated as highly 
..:re<litwonhy. 

With respect lo accounts receivable. the Company performs ongoing evaluations of iL'i customers. generally 
granting um:ollaterali1.e<l cn.:dit term-; lo its cu~tomer:.. am! maintains an allowance for doubtful account!. j)a<;cd 
nn hiqoricnl e.xperience and managemenr· ~ expectation!. 1)f future los:.es. Customers under the Company's 
contracts with North American Portabi lity Management LLC tNAPM) are charged a Revenue Reco\·ery 
Collection <RRC) lee tsce "Ac1.:ount:. Rel.'...:ivable. Revenue Re1.:mwy Colh:ction and Allowance for Do11h1t'ul 
r\c1.:ount~ ·· below). 

In vc!.1 men ts 

The Company's in\'estments dassificd as avaih1ble-for-\ule are carried al e'-limated fair value with 
unrei11ized gains and lo!.ses reported as a separate component of acl.'.umulmed other comprehensive loss. Rea l i:n~d 

gninc; and lo')..,C), and declines in 'alue judged to be other-than-temporary. it any. oo :l\ ailable-fc•r-:,.ale ~o::curities 
are 111cludc<l in other (expense) income. The co~t at time of :.ale of availabk-for-<;alc in\'CMmcnti. is based upon 
the ~pccific i<lcntificarion method. l ntere~t and dividends on the:-e securities is induded in interest and other 
income. 

The Company periodically C\ aluates whether any declines in the fair value of its investmems ure other-than­
t1.:n1porary. Thi~ evaluation consi~t~ or a review or several fac tors. including but not limited to: the length of Lime 
and extent that a 'ecurity ha:. b<:!cn in an unrealiLed lo')s pm.ition: the existence of an CH!nl that would impair the 
•~l>uer' :-. future earning., potential: the near-term pro ... ~ct:o. for recovery or th.:: mar!..ct value of .1 -;ccurity: the 
C1m1pany'-; intent Lo sell an impair~·d -.ecurity: and the probability that the Company will be required to ~ell the 
~ecurity before the market value recover5. If an inve~unenl which the Company doe:. not intend LO 'ell prior to 
recO\ery <lecline5 in \alue below ll\ amoni1ed cost ha-.1-.; and it b not more Iii-el) than not that the Compan) \\ill 
be r.::quire<l to :.di the related :io::l·unty befor.:: the reco\ery or its amortized co~l ba~is. the Company re1.:ogni1..::s 
the <.l ifferencc between 1he presem va lue of the l.'.ash flow.., expec1cd Lo be collected am! the amo11.i1.ed cost ba~is. 
or credit 105..,, a<; an other-than-temporary l'harge in intere5l and other e.xpen!'.e. The difference between the 
e).t11nate<l lair value and the security"; amoni1eJ cost ha ... i~ at the measurement <late relmed to all other factor\ i~ 
n:pon.ed a~ a \l'para1e component ol accumul~th.:d other l'tllllprehi.:nsi\e lo:.s. 

The Company·-.; ime~unent:. da~sifie<l a~ trading arc ..:arne<l al c:.timatl!d fair \'alut: \\ilh unreali1.e<l gains 
anJ lo.;<.es reported in 01her (expcnl>e) 111come. During 2010. the Company cla-;-;itied it:-. auction ra1c 'ecuntie' as 
1ra<ling pursuant to the lnvestmenl'> - Debt nnd Equity Securities Topic 01' the FASB /\SC. with changes in the 
t'air value of these securuies recorded in earnings (\ee ~ote 4 and Note 5 ). !merest anJ dividends on 1he5e 
'>Ccurnie5 arc 111cludcd in iniere~t anti other income . 

. \ccounts Reech able. Revenue Recover~ Collections and Allrm ance for Doubtful Accounts 

\1.:counb recci' able art· recorded at the im oiced a mo um and do not ht:ar intcre'>l. In accordance \\ ith the 
Company'~ rnmrncts wnh NAPM. thl! Company bilb a RRC foe to offset uncollectibk receivable~ from any 
indi,·idual c:u'lomer. The RRC ree is based on a percentage of monthly billing-;. During 2009. the RRC fee wm. 
0.75'1-. On July I. ~010, the RRC ree wa5 reduced to ll.o5C:c and remained al that le\cl through December JI. 
2011. The RRC fees are recorded a~ ;m accru.::d liability when collectcd. [f the RRC fee i~ insulfo.:ient. the 
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amounts cun be recovered from the cuqomer-.. Any accrued RRC feei. in e\ce'' of uncollectible receivables are 
p:iid back to the cu~tom<::r'> annually on a pro rata basi~. RRC fees ofS2.6 million and $2.4 million are included m 
accrued expen:.es as or December 31. 2010 am! 2011, respectively. All other receivables related to services not 
covered by the RRC fees are evaluated and. if tleemed nuL rnllectible. an.: reserved. The Company recorded an 
allo,,ance for doubtful account:. of Sl.4 m1llion ~111d Sl.9 million :i:. of December 31. 2010 and 2011. 
re .. pectively. Bad do::ht e\pense amounted to ~3.0 million, S2.6 million and S2.6 million for the yc:.w• ended 
December 31. 2009. 2010 and 2011. respeclivcly. 

Deferred Fi nancing Costs 

The Company :.unortizes Jel"errcd financing c·osts u~ing the effective-intereq method and rec()rd-; ~uch 
amortitation ""interest e\pense. Amoniz:uion of debt discount and annual commim1ent fee::. for unu-;eu portion!> 
of"' ailable borrowings arc <1lso recorded as mtaest expense. DirecL and incremental co\t'> related to the issuam:e 
of debt are capitaliLed as uefem:d financing costs and arc reported in other asseb on the Company's consolidatcu 
balam:e sheet\. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipmenc. induding lea-.ehold impmvcmenh mtd asset'> acquired thrnugh capital lease-.. are 
recorded at co~t. net ot accumulatl'd deprt:cintion and amonjzation. Depreciation and amorti1.ation of property 
and equipment are determined u~ing the <;traight-line rnethud ov..:r Lhe e-.timated u~eful lives o l° the as~cls. as 
follow<:: 

Crnnput<::r hardware 
Equipm('nl 
Furniture and fixtures 
Lea,ehold improvement!. 

3 - 5 years 
5 years 
5 - 7 years 
I .C!'-\Cr of related li.!ase term or useful lite 

i\murlintitm C\pensc of asset:. an1uircd through capital l<::a:-.e" is inclmkd in depreciation and amortinnion 
t'\pense in the con-.olidated statement:-. of 111xra1ion-.. Replacements and major impro,ements arc capitali1cJ: 
maintenance and repair' are charged to expen~e a~ incurred. Impairments of long-liveJ ac..~ets arc determmed in 
accordance with Lhe Property. Plant and Equipment Topic of Lhe FASB ASC. In Lhe fourth quarter of 20 I 0. the 
Company recl1r<lcd an impamncnL charge ol )7 .9 million related to propert) and equipment. induJing capitaliLc<l 
tl'dmology, tJ),e<l b} it~ ComcrgeJ :-Vks.;agrng a ..... ~et group 1-.ee .. Impairment of Long-Li,ed A!>~eL, .. belowl. 

The Compnny capitalit.'.es ~oft ware developmenL and :1cqui~iti1n1 co~L'> 111 accordani.:e with the r111::u1giblei. -
rio1><l'' ill ~and Uthcr. lntcmal-l'<.c Software Topi<: or the FASB ASC. ''"htch require-. tht: capitali1.1tion of ct">t~ 
incun-cJ in connccuon \\ilh developing or oht:uning s11rt1-Varc for internal u~c. Co~ti. incurred Lo develop the 
applic:1tion are capicali1ed. whi le co\l~ incurred for planning the project anJ for post-implernentminn training and 
maintenance .ue e\pen~ed a-. incurred. The capitnlized coc.,ts of purcha:-.ed technology and -..oft ware devek1pmt:111 
are amonized u,ing the -,tra1ght-line method l>\cr the e'>llmated u-.elul life ol three to fi,e years. During the years 
cm.led December 31. 20 I 0 and 2011, thc Company capi1ali1ctl costs related to internal u:.e ~oft ware of 
')28.8 million anJ S28.6 million, rc.,pcctively. Amorti1ation expt.•n<;e related lll rnternal U!.C -.oftware for the years 
ended December 31. 2CXN. 2010 and 2011 w:i~ :-.12.4 million. S.15.2 million and $17.3 million. re.,pectively .• 111d 
j, included in <lepreciat1011 and amortiLation expense in the con~ohdated stat~ments l)f llperations. 

66 



NEUSTAR. INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Goodwill repre'\ents rhe exce"" of the purchalle price over 1he fair \'alue of a\set-; acquired. ac, well as other 
1den11fiable intangible assets. In accordance with the I ntangible~ - Goo(h•.ill and Other Topi..: of the FASB ASC. 
goodv. ill and indefinite-lived intangible asset~ arc not amo1tiz..:d, but are reviewed for imp<lirim:nt at least 
annually and upon 1he occurrence of events or changes in cin.:um~Lances that wou ld n::duce the fair value or !\Uch 
as,ets below their carrying amount. For purpo'>es l)f the Company's annual impairment test c.:omple1ed on 
0..:tober I. 2009. the Company idemilied and a!\:o.igned goodwill 10 two reponing units. Clearinghouse and Next 
Generation /'.·1e:-.:-.aging C>JG~1). For purpose:. of the Company·., annual impairmem k!>t completed on October I. 
2010. the Company iuentificd and as~igned goodwill 10 three reporting units. Carrier Services. Internet 
lnl'rastructure Services and Regi~try Services. For purposes of the Company' s annual impairment test completed 
l•n Ocwber I. 2011, the Company identified and al.signed goodwi ll 10 two reporting units. Carrier Services and 
Enterprise Service .... The Company"<; third reporting unit. Informal ion Service:-.. w~L'I establi~hcd a\ a result of the 
acqu1s1t1on l1f Ti\RGL,Sinfo on ovem~r 8. 2011. and wac, nut induded in the Company"<. annual impairment 
te<.t completed on October I, 20 I I. 

Goodwill is te'iled for impairment at the rcponing unit level using a two-st..:p approach. Th..: lirst step is LO 
c<1mpare the fair \~ilue of a reporting unit's net a ... ,ei:-., including as<.igned goodwill. to the b<10!-. value of its 11e1 
:l'>'>ets. including a-.s1gned goodwill. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using both an income and ;\ 
m;lrl-.et apprl1ach. To a\:-ist in the process of determining if a goodwill impairment exi!.ts, the Company performs 
11111.:rnal va.l u:.ukrn analyses and Cl)l1siders olhcr market information that is publidy available, and the Company 
may obtain valuations l'rom external advisors. Ii' the fair value of the reporting unit is greater than iL~ net book 
value, the :t'l'i1gned goodwill i<. not considered impaired. JJ 1hc fair value is less than the reporting unn·s net bollk 
\alue. the Company performs a .;econd step to measure the amount of' the impairment. if any. Tho:: o;ec.:ond <;tep is 
to compare the boo!-. va.lue of 1he reporting unit'~ ,\~signed goodwill to the implied fair value of the reponing 
unll·~ goodwill. U'>lllg a theorc1ic.:al purcha~e pric.:e allocation. Ir 1he CJJTying value of golidwill exceeds the 
implied fair value, an impairmellt has occurred and the Company is required Lo record a write-down or lhe 
c.::mying value and charge 1he impairment as an nperating expen'\e in the period the derermination i .... made. There 
''en.: no goouwill impairment chilrge~ recogni1ed I.luring the )ear ... ended December 31. ~009. 2010 and :w 11. 

Sl'gmcnt Rcportin~ 

Oper:uing segments are components or an enterprise about which discrete financia l informalilm is available 
1ha1 i" e"aluat..:d regularly b)' the chief operating deci~ion maker <CODM) in de.:idinu hO\\ to allocate rcwurce' 
and in as~e .. :-.ing ~rfonnance. \\of Dec.:ember JI. 2011. the Company':-. COD\1 e'aluate-. perlurmanc.:e ~llld 

all.x:ate-, resource'> ha .... ed on mul!iple factors. including :-.egment c.:ontribu1ion for the folhnving serv1t·e 
.:ategnries: Ctrrier Services. Entt:rprise Service!> :ind Information Services. The Company·, operating segment~ 
ar.:: 1he 'am~· as i t~ rl!porlablc :-eg111cms. 
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Identifiable Intangible Assets 

Identifiable intangible assets are amo11ized over their respective estimated useful lives u~ing a method of 
amortitation that reflects the pattern in \>.hid1 the economic benefit'> or the intangible asset.-, are consumed or 
otherwise used und are periodically reviewed for impairment. There were no impairment charge ... recognitcd 
during the }cars endc<l December 31. 2009 and 20 1 I. In the founh 4uar1cr of 2010. the Company recorded an 
intangible as);et impairment charge of $0.6 million re lati!d to ils Converged tvkssaging a~sct group (see 
"Impairment of Long-Lived As~ets" below}. 

rhe Company's identifiable intangible a~:-.et<.. are amorti.1.ed as follows: 

Acquired tcchnologie-. 
Customer li~ts and relationships 
Trade names am.I trademark~ 

Y <.'ar$ ,\ lethod 

3 - 5 Straight-line 
3- 10 Various 

3 Straight-line 

AmortiLation e\pcn<;e related Lo identifiable intangible assets is included in depreciation and .1morti1.:ition 
expense in the consolidated statements of operations. 

Jn1p~1irmcnt of Long-Lived Assels 

In m.:cordance ''ith Property. Plant and Equipment Topic of the F.\SB ASC. the Company re,iews long­
lived as.;ets and certain idt!ntitiahle intangible assets for impairment whenever evt!nts t1r changes in 
circums111 11ce" ind ii: ate the carrying amount of' :rn asset may not be recoverable. The Compnny mea,;ures 
recoverability or a'>"'!ll> to be held and used by comparing the carrying amount or the a~sets to ruture 
undi<>count.!<l net cash lfows expected to be g.cnerated by the asseLs. Reco' erability measuremcnt and estimating. 
un<liscoun11::d ca'>h llow<.. is performed at the lowest possible level for v.-hich there are i<lentiliable cash !lows. If 
the carrying amount or the assets c~ceeds the future undiscoumed cash tlows expected IO be generated by those 
a!>sets. <..uch asset:. fail the recoverability te'>t and an impairment charge would be recogni1ed. measured a~ the 
amount by '' hich the 1.:arrying amount of the asset~ exl'eeds the f'air ';ilue. A!>~eb tu be dhpo.,ed of are recorded 
at the lower of the t'arrying amount or lair value less c1> ... l$ w :-.el I. 

In the fi rst quarter or 2010. the Company realigned its organizational structure. and its NG:vt busines') wa<; 

included with other TP-rdated -.en ice!> in the Comp;my "· Carrier Sen ice:. operaung segment. The :-.en ic.:es, 
echnolo~} and customer base of the NG:Vl bu ... ine<;1; was renamed Coll\ erged J\.lessag111g Sen ices \\hilc the 'ales 
and m:irketing luncuons were transi tioned to the broader Carrier Services operating segment. In the fourth 
yuaner of 2010. the Company decided to ex it the Con"erge<l .Vle<.,sagi ng Service"> business. The Company 
hdien:s that iL-; dcc.:ision lo e\tl this busine'>s \\as an mdicator l>f impairment for long-Ii\ ed a:-.sets in lls 
Ctlll\Crged \les ... aging Sen·it'es ;!<;\Cl group .. \:-. a re:-.ulc. in the fourth quarter or 2010. the Comp;iny performed a 
reco' erahility test and determined that the future undiscounteJ cash llows of the a-;sec group w;1s less than the 
carrying V<due. The ('t1111pany rt!corded an ~8.5 million drnrge ror impairment or l(lllg-lived a~<.,C(S. the large-,! 
c(1mponcnt of\\ hich \\as capitali1cd technology. In detem1ining fair\ aluc. the Company utilized e'limatc' lwm 
c~temal ach i'ors and 'aluation models tliat invulve<l as.;umption!> about replacement cost. ob..,olc:.c.:ence factors. 
future ca!->h tlo\v .... <ll\cnunr rate' and. as appropriate. re\'icw 11f market comparables. During the second <.JUartc1 <'t 
201 f , tl1e Company c.:ca).ed operations of its Converged Me~saging Servic.:es business and all cwrcsplHldi ng pnor 
period re-.ults ol' this bu~ines). pr.:s\!nted in the Company'<> consolidated staterncllls of operations h~l\e b.:en 
1edas<..11icd to rellec.:t the uperati<lfls of the Converged '.\fr"saging Sen. ices bu'>iness as discontinued operation~ 
(<.,ee Note 3). 

68 



NEUSTAR. INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEi\ IENTS 

Revenue Recognition 

The Comp:my pro,·ides e!l!lemial technology and directory services to custome~ pur;uant to various private 
l'ommercial and go,·emmem contracts. The Company"s revenue recognition policies are in aCClllUance with the 
Revenue Recognition Topic of the FASB ASC. 

Significant Contracts 

'" pan of its carrier :.eni<:e<;, the Company provides number portability admini:-.tration center )>cf\ ice-. 
(NPAC Sen ii.:ei-). \\ hich include wireline and wireless number portability. implementation of the al10catio11 of 
pooled blocks of telephone numhers and network manugernem services in the Uni ted States pursua111 to ~even 
Cl'tllracts with NAPM. an industry group that represents all telecommunications i-ervice provideri- in the United 
St.1tes. The:.'. agg1cgatc fc:cs for tran:.actions processed under the)>e contracts arc determined by an annual fi."(ed-fee 
pndng model under whil:h the annual fixed fee CBa'>e Fee) wa' -.e1 at 5340.0 million. $362.I million <tnd S385.<i 
m1lli11n in 2009. 20 IO and 2011. respectively. and is subject Lo an annual price escalator of 6.5'} in 'ubsequenl 
yenr;,;. These contrncts also provide Cor fixed crediLs to customer~ of $40.0 million in 2009, 525.0 million in 20 10 
and S5 .0 mi ll ion in 20 l 1. whid1 ~ire applied to reduce Lhe Base Fee for the applicable year. Customers under 
these contract)> may curn additional credit~ or up t11 $15.0 million annually in each of 2009. 20I0and2011 if tl1e 
cu.,tomers reach .,pecilic k\·els of aggregare telephone number inventories and adopt and implement certain IP 
lields and functionality. ln the event that the volume of transactions in a g1,·en year is above or below the 
contractually \.')>tablishcd volumi.: range for thal year, Lhe Base Fee may be adjusted up or down, respectively. 
'~ ith any such adjusLmcnt being applieJ against invoices in the following y1.:ar. To the extent any available 
addith)nal credit'> e'<pire unused at the end of a year. they will he recogni1ed in re,·enue at th:u time. The 
Company determines Lhe fi:-.ed and determinable fee under these contracts on an annual basis at the beginning of 
each ~car .md recogniLeS thi'> fee in iLs C:UTier Sen·ices operating segment on a ~traight-Jine ba'>is O\·er t\\1.!ht' 
month:-.. 

For 2009. the Company conduded that the ri.>..cd and detenninable fee equaled S235.0 million. which 
repr..:st'nted Lhc Ba~I.! Fee of ')J40.0 million reduced by the $40.0 million rix..:d credit and S 15.0 million of 
available additional credit'>. Dunng 2CXJ9, the Company·-; earner cu~tomer\ aJopted and implemented the 
requisite IP tit'lds and functionality, and a.' a re:.ult earned S7 .5 million of the additional credib l<ir each of 2009. 
2010 and 20 11. llowever. the cu..,tomer~ did not reach the levL'ls or aggregate telephone number inventories 
rcquire<l tu earn additional cretliLs an<l as a re~u l t. Lhc Company rccogniLed 57.5 million of additional ren:nul' in 
the fourth quarter or '.W09. 

For :20 I 0. the Company concluded thal the thed :md determinable Ice equaled $322.1 million. whu:h 
rcpre<;ented the Ba~e foe or 5362. I million, r..:duced by the S25.0 million li\ed credit and S 15.0 million or 
additional credits. F11r 20 l I, the Company concluded that the rixcd :ind determi nable kc .::qua led S365.6 million. 
\\hil.:h represent\ the Base Fee of ">385.6 milli(111. reJuce<l hy the '.'>.5.0 million lixed credit and S 15.0 million of 
additional credits. During 2010 an<l :2011. the Company detem1ined that its earner cu~tome1., ha\.e eame<l all ol 
the additional l.re<lits llf S 15.0 n>tllion auributabk to the adoption and implementation of the requi-,itc IP liclds 
:111J functionality and the achievement of specific lc\ds of aggregate wleph<)ne number invent11nc<,. 

The tota l amount of rewnue derived under the Company"~ contracts with NAPM, cornpri~ed of NPAC 
Sen ice;._ conn.:cL1on .,.;n·ice fees related to the Company":. NPAC Service' .ind system enhancements. \\;h 

.tppr(l\imatd) 'iJ06. I. million. ~3J7. I million. and S374A million for the year~ ended December 31. 2009. 2010 
and 2011 . re ... pcctivel~. 

Fees undt.•r the Company·., wntracts with NAPM ~u·e billed to tckcomrminications ~l'rvicc providers hased 
on their allocahle .;hare of the total tran!'>acti<'ll d1arges. Thi<; :ill(lcable 'hare is based on each respective 
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telecommunication~ 1,crvice proviJer" s share of the aggregate end-user ~ervices revenues of all U.S. 
telecommunications service providers, as determined hy the Federal Communications Commission. The 
Company abo bills an RRC fee equal Lo a percentage of monthly billings Lo its cuswmers. which is a\'ailable to 
the Comp:tny if any customer under the contract:. LO prO\ ide NPAC M.!r\ ices faib to pay its allocablo:: :.hare or 
total trJn~<11.:tions charge<;. 

Carrier Services 

Under it;, .;even contracts with ~AP:VI. the Comp:rny provides NPAC Services. ,\;, discus,cJ abo\e under 
the heading .. Revenue Recognition - Significant Ctmtraw.:· the Company determines Lhe fixed and 
determinable fee on an annual basis and recogni1e;, such fee 1111 a straight-line basis over twelve months. 

The Company provides NPJ\C Service~ in Canada under its long-term contr:1ct with thi.: Canadian L~P 
Com.onium Im:. The Company recognizes revenue on a per-transaction fee b:L~is as the services are performed. 

The Company generate;; revenue from its telephone number administration services under two go,ernment 
comracb: Nonh American ~umbering Plan Admini~trator 1NA>iPA> and ational Pooling A<lmim,trator (~P.\). 
Cn<ler its NA>IPA c1rntract. the Company cams a lixed annual fee and rccogni1.c:-. thi~ fee a~ rc\enue on a 
straight-line hasis as 'ervices are provided. Under its NPA conrract. the Company earns a fr-:e<l lee associated 
with administration of the pooling sy5tem. The Company recognizes revenue for this contract on a s1raigl11-line 
basis over thc:: term of the contract. In the event the Company e-.timate., lt1,ses on thc:.e li:-.ed pncc contrm.:b. the 
Compan) ret.:ogni1.e:. the:.e lo~ses in the period in whicb a lo:.s becomes apparent. 

The Company generates revenue from connection fees and sy,tem enhancements provided under it:> 
contract~ '' ith NAPYI. The Company rccogni1cs connection fee reH:nui.: as the ~en ice is perfomm.I. S}'tem 
c1thancemen1-. are provi<lcd under contracts 111 \\h1ch the Company ii. rt!1mbursed for costs incurred plus a li:-.ed 
fee. aml r.::vcnue i~ recngni1..ed based on costs incurred plus a pro rata amount of the f'ec. 

ThL' Company prO\ ide'> ho-.1cd Order :\1:magement St!rvice,, consi!>ting or cuswmcr <>cl-up .md 
implementation follcm cd by tram.action proce!>~ing. under contracti. v.11h term~ ranging from <'lie to three ) car~. 
Cuswmer set-up and implementation is not con,idered n separate del iverable; ,1ccor<lingly, the f'ees for thc~e 
:-.erviccs are deferred and recogni1.ed :is revenue on a straight-line basis O\CI' the 1enn or the contract. 
Per-tran~actiun fee~ are rccogni11!d a:. the 1ran,actions are processed. 

ThL' Company generate~ re' enue from it~ licensed Order Management Sen ices under contral·t~ with term~ 
ranging from three llllHllhs to two years. The Company generates revenue under these contrach for '-Oftware 
liccn~e:-.. irnplemen1at1~rn and Cl"lomi'latiun services ,111J p1.ist-1.:onlracl '-Upport services CPCSJ. Cn<ler thc~e 

contr:tcl'-. re' enu~ is recognib!d \\hen perstt<L'>i\C endencc of ~m arrangement exi!>h. delivery ha'> occurred. the 
fee i~ li'<ed or determmable. collectability is probable and. it' applicable. \~hen vendor· ~pecific (>hjective e\'idcnce 
(VSOEJ of fair value exists lo allocate the arrangement fee lO the undelivered elemc1m of a mu ltiple elerrn:lll 
a1Tangemen1. Revenue i~ allocated to delivered clements. or an arrangement u'.>ing the residual method. Um.ler the 
n.:si<lual method. rc\enue is alluc<1tctl to the umklh·ered clements u~ing VSOE of fair value \\ ith the rem:11111ng 
.:ontract ree allocated 10 the tleli\ered element~ and recogni1,ed as revenue when all other revenue recognit1<111 
criteria have been met. For o.;oftware contracts that include cu.stomi1.ation servkc~ that are eso.;ential to the 
functionality c)f th<: delivered software. the ~oflware liceusc and impkmentation and cu.sromi1a1ion revenue i~ 

recogni1ed un<l.:r the Clllllract method of acc(lunting using the percentage-of-completion method. The Compan} 
estimate'> the percentage-of-completion for .:aeh contract b:h.:d on the ratio of direct labor hours rncurred tn total 
estimated direct labor hours requi red under ~uch contr:tl'l and recog11i1es an amount of revenue equal to the 
perc.:nrnge-of-comple1ion multiplied by the contract amount allocate<l ttl the software li<.:en">e and irnplernent:uion 
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and CU!>tom11ation ~ervice:. fors. The contract amount allocated to these delivered element!> is determined under 
the residual method approach. The Company determined the VSOE of PCS under 1he bell-sh~1pe curve approach 
and determined thnt a sub~tantial majority of its nctual PCS renewal5 are \'-ithin a 1111n-ow rnnge or the median 
pricing. For amrngements with bunuled PCS where there is no -;tall:d contracwal PCS rate or where t11e rate i<> 
less th:in the e!.tablishe<l rnnge of VSOE. the Comrn1ny utiliLes the low end or the r:rnge for V~OE as the fair 
value 1.11 PCS. PCS revenue is recognized on a !-traight-line basis over the service term ot t11c contract. 

E11terpri<>e Sen1ices 

The (\1111pany generates revenue from the managemem of internal am! external ONS services. ·nie 
Company's revenue from tht:!.e services consists or cuscomer set-up fees. monthly recurring fees and 
per-1rnnsaction fees for transactions in excess or pre-established monthl) minimum!> unJet c1rntrnl'l:-. \>ilh term~ 
ranging from one 10 three year<.. Cu,.,tomer set-up fi.:t:' arc not considert:tl a ,.,cparate deli\'crablc and arc deferred 
an<l recognt1.ed on a ~traight-line ba"i' O>er the term or the contract. lJnder the Ctm1pan) ·:. contract<; to pro\'ide 
DNS ser\ices. cu,tomer!> have contractually establi:-hed monthly tran~action \'Olumes for which they are charge<l 
a recurring mont11ly fee. Transacuons proce!.!-.ecl 111 t:xcess of the pre-establi-;hed monthly ,·olume are billed al a 
contractual p..:r-transat:tion rate. Each month, the Company recognize~ the recurring monthly rec anti usage in 
exce:-.:-. of the established monthly volume on a per-trnnsaction basi~ as servil·es arc providetl. 

The Company generme~ re' enue related 10 ii' Internet Jomain name registry ser,·ices under contracts with 
term~ gcnaall) between 1)ne ;md ten )ears. The Company rccogniLe~ rc,c1rnt: on a -;trnight-linc basi-. o'er the 
term of the related customer contract!>. 

The Company generates rc,•enue from its U.S. Common Sh0rt Co<le <.ervices under short-term contracts 
ranging from three LO twelve months, and the Company rcrngnizes rt:vcnuc on a Mr:1igh1-linc ba~is uver the term 
of the related t:U'>tom..:r contract<;. 

luformatfon Services 

The Company generate' revenue t'rom a broad portfolio of real-time information an<l analytic~ :.ervi1.:cs. The 
Comp<1ny rccogni,es revenue when perl'ua-.i' e cvi<lt!nce of an agrccmenr exists. the terms are fixed or 
dctenninable. !-.t:rvit-es arc perf'ormed. and collection is rea::.onably :is~urcd. The Company's rnntracts provide f'or 
a guarantcctl monthly minimum rec -..upplemenle<l by recs for transaction:- above spccifiL•d minimum amounts. 
The minimum fee i'i recogn11ed monthly. and the tram.action foco; in cxce!>~ of the monthly minimum!- are 
recog1111e<l as the -;ervice<. are [><!rformed. The Company also rece1>e~ annual technolog} lees from certain 
cu ... tomer ... tn e\c.:hange tor acce~ ... to tntellecwal property. "t:indard technical 'upport. emergenc) 2~hour ~upport. 
and '!'Lem upgrade:- on .1 \\hen-and-if-availnblc ba:.i .... Scrvicc~ arc not con:-.idl!r~~<l a ... eparatt: dcli\erable. A:. a 
re:-.ult. 1ed111ology tee<; arl! dcfe1Ted and rccognt1ed nn a c;traight-linc ba:.i:- over the '<!rvice period. \\ hich i!'.> 
usuall y tweh·e months. 

Revenue deri,·ed from the online deli\'ery llf data for direct marl-.etilll! purposel. i,; renmlc<l upon Jeli,er\ nr 
' uch data to th..: customer. Revenue a .... :-.odatc<l with cngagemenl!. requiring pcnodic update\ of <l:ita 0' er the 
couro;c of the sen ice pentxl, \\here C<l'>h i:-. recel\ed or collectible in advance. are recorded ,1!> deferred re\enucs. 
and rccogni1ed on a qra1gln-hne b.i'>i!> 1wer the ... ervicc period. which i-. usually twelve mnmhs. 

Acl·ountiugJi1r Multiple t:lement Arrangements Entered Iulo or Materially .11-todified After Ja11u(lry 1. 201 I 

In September 2009. me FASH ratified Accounting Standard Cpdate I ASU) 2009-13. Revenue Recognition 
Topic 605 - \'htlliple-Deli\erable Revenue Arrangements IASC 2009-11). Cncler this guidance. when ,·enclor-
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-.pecific objective eviJence or thin.I party evidence for JeliYer:.ible~ in a multiple-element am111gcment cannol be 
Jetermined, the C1,mpany is required to develop a best estim<\te of rhe selling price for separate deliverables and 
,\!locate a1T:.111gement consideration using lhe relative selling price method. The Company :idopted ASU 2009-13 
on :t prospective ba'>is for arrangcments entered into or materially modified on or after January I, 201 1. 

During 2009. 20 I 0 and 20 I I , certain ol' the Company'" arrungemem-; included cu.;tomer set-up, 
implememation and technology 'uppon serYice~. combined with ongoing tran<;action processing. These customer 
'>et-up. implementation and technology support 'en ices \\ere not considered a .. eparate deli,·ernble that prO\ ide-; 
q;mJ-alone value tu the customer and such fees were tlefeITcd and recognized as rc\enue on a :.trnight-lim.: ba.,i:-. 
1Jver the term L>f the contract. Ac1.:ordingly, the adoption of ASU 2009-13 did nol have a material effect on the 
Company 's re\'enue recognized in 2011. Assuming the Company's adoption of /\SU 2009- 13 on a prospective 
basis for arrnngemt:nll. entered into or material ly modified on or after January I, 2009. reve11ue recoguizi:<l by the 
Comp•m; fur the )'l'ar-. ended December 31. 2009 and 20 I 0 would not have been materially difkrent. 

Service Le1•el Standards 

Some of th.: Company· s pri' ate conum:n:ial contract:> require the Company to meet wrvice level sl:tndard:-. 
and impo~e corre,ponding penahie. ... on the Company if the Comp:in:,. foib to meet those stanJard-.. The Company 
recordi. a pn)\ i!>IOll for the~e performance-related penalties in the period in which it become., aware that it ha!-. 
failed to meel required service le\ els. triggering the requirement to pay a penalty, which results in a 
corresponding n.:du1.:tion to revenue. 

Cost of ReYcnue and Deferred Costs 

Co::.t of revenue include-; all direct material'- CO!'.tS. Ji rcxt lahor cost:., anJ indirect co~ts related lo the 
gcneration or revenue such a-; indirect lab1Jr, outsourced scrvi1.:cs. J11<1leriab and supplies. payment proce~sing 
fees. and general facilities co~ i. The Company"; primary co~t or revenue i" pcr<;onnel co:.t' associated \\ ith 
".:nice implementation. product maintenance. cu~tomer deployment and cu-,wmer care. including ~alaries. ;.Lo<:l..­
ba\cd compen,ation and other personnel-related expen:.e. ln ,1dd1t1(HL cost of revenue indude~ 1.:0..,ts relating to 
de' doping modilications and enhancement<. of lhe Ct'mpany's exi-.ting technology :ind -.en i<.·e;,, as \'>Cit a., 
wyahies paiJ related lo U.S. Common Shon Code service:. and regi~try gatc!way \ervice:-.. CtN of revenue also 
includes cu~t;, relating lo the Company" s information 1echnology and sy•aem<; department. including network 
co ... t~. data ccntcr maintenan1.:c.:. databa:.e management. data pruces<;ing cosb and general faci litie;, co~b. 

Defen-ed co-.h repre~cnt direct labor related to proh!'>:-.tonal '>ernce~ incmTed for the ... etup and 
implementation lll comracts. The ... e costs nre recognizeu in cost of revenue on a :-.Lraight-line ba ... i~ over the 
conLracl tt·rm. Dcl'c.:rred cost~ a):-.1\ include royaltic<; paid rc laled to the Company"; U.S. C1lm111on Short Ctldc 
sen ices. \\ hich arc rc.:1.:ogni1eu in cost of revenue on a <;traight-line basis l\ \'<.'r the contract lcnn. Deferred Cll:.l'> 
arc classified,\, -;uch on the cnn'c'Jidated balance \heels. 

Research and De,·elopment 

The Company expenses it~ research and development .:(hl~ <b lhey arc incurred. Re~earch an<.J dc\·elopmcnt 
expl'n~e consi<.t~ primarily of perwnnel cn~l~. induding salanc!-., -;tock-ba:.eJ compen!>atiun <llld other personncl­
rdated e\pem;e. eon!-ulting rec-;. and lhe co,t\ of facilitie'>. computer an<l <.uppon -.erv1ce., u-,cd in \l.!f\ ice and 
lcchnology de\dopment. 
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Ad"er tising 

The Cl)mpany expen~es advertising cO\ts as they are incurred. Ad\ertising expense was approximately 
S5.3 million. S6.7 million anu '!i6.6 million for the years cndeu December 31, 2009, ::WI 0 anu 20 I l. respectivdy. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company accounh for itc; stock-based compensation plans under the recognition and measurement 
provi!>il'ns of the Compensation - Stoc.:k Compensation Topic of the FASS ASC. The Company estimate<: the 
value of -.tocl-.-bascd awanb on the date of grant w,1ng the Bla.:k-Scholes option-pricing model. For stm:k-based 
awarus subject to gratled vesting, the Company has uti lized Lhe .. .,traight-line" 1111:thod fo r allocating 
compen~ation cosl by period. 

The Company preselll\ henetit\ or ta:- deductions in excess of the compen~ation cost recogni1ed (.:xcess tax 
benefits) "" a financing cai.h inflow with a corresponding operating cm.h outflow. For the years ended 
December 31. '.!009. '.!OIO and '.!011. the Company included S0.6 million. S.1.6 million and 54.5 million. 
r.:~pt!t:l t \ely. of ex<.:ess lax bt:nelit:-. a~ a fin:rncing ca:.h in lfow with a corrc~ponding operating cash ou11low. 

Bask and Diluted Net Income per Common Share 

In accordance with lhe fatmings Per Share Topic of the FASB ASC, unvested share-bn-.ed payment awards 
that n1nt:1i11 non-forfeitable nglm to dividends or di,idend equivalents(\\ hether paid or unpaid) are participating 
-;ccuriuc:- that 'hould be indudcJ in lhe computation of earning:. per '>hare under the t\\O-cht-;-; method. The 
Compan} ':-. re~1ricteJ ~w..:k award:-. are con:-.idercd to be participating ~ecuriti e:-. be..:au ... c 1hey con1~1 in 

non-forfci tahle rights to ca:.h dividend~. if declared and paid. In lieu of presenting ellrnings per share pur),uant to 
the lwo-cla'\s method. 1he Company has included slrnres ~) f unvested restri<.:letl i.tock awartl~ in 1he compulillion of 
ba<..ic ncl income per common ... hare a'> the resulting t!Hrnings per :-.hare wou ld be Lhe same under bmh methods. 

Basi..: net income per common 'hare i:-. ..:omputed b) di,i<ling nt.:t income b~ che \\e1ghted-average number 
t)t common ..,h~u·e" and pan1c1pat1ng <;ecuricie" llUhtan<l111g during the period. Um·e•;red re ... uicted '>tock unit' and 
perforrnanct:: vested restricted \lock units (PVRSU) are excluded from the computation ol ha ... ic net income per 
rnrnrnon :-.hare becau1'e th1: underlying shares have nN yet been earned by lhe ~todJ1older :ind are nnt 
participating securities. Shares underlying qock options are all>t> exc:ludcd het:ause Lhcy are not con~idcred 
outi;1and1ng '>hares. Diluted net income per common \hare assumei. dilution and i-. t•nmputed ha!>ed on the 
w.:ightetl-average number ol common shares t)Ulstanding after Ctlll'iidcraiion or the dilutive effect of \tock 
option.,. unn•:-.tcd re~tnctcd ~toc.:k units and PVRSG. The clT.!ct of diluti\C -.e..:uriti.:<.. ii. rnmpull·d u..,ing the 
treasury 'tock method ,md ,l\erage market price., during the period. Dilutive :.ecuritit:., '~ith pcrfom1ance 
condition.; a1e excludetl from the .;11mputatinn until the performai11;c condition~ are met. 

Income Taxes 

The Company account~ r~w rncome taxes in .1ccorJance with the Income Taxes Topic nt' the FASS ASC. 
Deferred tax as<>cts ..1nd liabtl11ic.., ~ire detennined ba~ed on temporary differences be1wccn 1he tina11ci:1l reporting 
ba,es and the tax bac;.::. tlf a'><..e1 ... and liabilities. DcfelTed ta'\ as-;et:-. .ire al\o recognized for ta\ net operating los-. 
c.1rr)forward-;. These deferred rnx as~er<; and liabilities are measured U\ing the enacted tax rate' and law:; that will 
be in effect when such amount.; are e;>..pectcu to be reversed or utili1cd. Valuation allcnvanc.:cs are pro,ided w 
n.:ducc :.uch deferred ta.\ as~et:. lo amou nts more likely than not t<) be ul timately realized. 

The income cax prnvi:.1nn includes U.S. federal. 'itate. loc:1l :md foreign rncome taxes and 1:- based on pre-Ht\ 
income or lo''· In determi111ng 1he annual etfective income tax rate. the Company analy1es 'arious fact0r~. 
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incluJing the Company'~ annual earning-; anJ taxing juri:-.diction:> in which the t'amings will be generated. the 
impact ot' state and local income rnxes and the abi liry of the Company lo use tux credits and net operating loss 
ca1Tyforwards. 

The Company as:-.e..,:-es unccnain tax positions in accordance with income t.;1\ m:counting 'tandan.ls. Under 
these -,1andards, inC(ll11C tax. benelits should be recognized when, ba:;cd 1111 che technical merits of a tax position, 
the Company believes that if a <li ... pute arose with the ta:-.ing authority and were taken to a court ol' la~l reson. it i' 
more liJ...ely than not (i.e .. a probability of greater than 50 percent) that the tax po,i1ion would be '\ustained "' 
filed. ff ;.1 po<,ilion is determined 10 be more likely th:m not or being 1;usiaincd. the reporting enterprise ,hould 
recogni1.e the largest amoum of lax bl.'nefit that i~ greater than 50 percent likely of being reali1.ed upon ultimate 
settlement with the taxing authority. The Company' s practice is to recog11i1.e intert!~l and penahie" related to 
income H\\ mauer:. in income t:1.-. c\pense. 

Fon.•ign Currency 

.-\ssets and liabilitie:. of con~olidated foreign 'iubsidiarie-.. whose functional cu1Tcncy is the local currenC). 
are translated to U.S. dollars al li-;cal year-end e>.change rates. Revenue and expense item:. .m: translated 10 
C.S. dollars :11 the a\'erage rates of exchange prevailing during the liscal year. The adjustment resulting from 
translating the financial statements or such f'oreign subsidiaries to U.S. dollars is reflected us a lort•ign currem;y 
trnn:-.lation adjustment and reported a~ a component of accumulated other comprehenshe loss m the consolidated 
"tah.:ment:-. of stocJ...hol<lcrs· cquit) . 

Transactions denominated in currencit!s other than the functional currency are recorded based on exchange 
rates al the lime such transactions arise. Subsequent change" in exchange rates result in tr;msaction gain'> or 
lo\<;es. which are rdlc.:c1ed \1.ithin imere"I and 1.llher expense in the con:.ohdated :-.tatcmellt:-. of operations. 

Comprehensive Income 

C1.imprchensivc income is comprised of n..:l earnings and other comprchensi'e im:ome ( los:-.). \\hi ch includes 
cenain changes in equity that :ire excluded from income. The Compa11} indude~ unrc~tli1.cd lwlding gains .md 
losse~ on availahle-for-~ale ~ecuritie;;. if any. and foreign currency tran~lation adjustments in c>lhcr 
comprehensive income ( los"J in th..: consolidated ~ 1 aterne111~ of stockholders· equity. Cnmprehcn<>i ve income wa<; 
appro,imatcly SIOl.6 million. ':il06.5 mi llit)n and Sl60.2 mi llion for the )ears ended December 31. 2009. 2010 
and 20 I I. respecli\'ely. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In June 2011. the h\SB i ... -.ued Auditing Standard:. L'pdate <ASUl 2011-05 ( \SU 2011-05). Prc'ientalion of 
Comprd1en:-.1ve lrn:omc. to impro'e the comparability, t'tl!lsi-;tency. and transparency of financial repo11mg and 
increase the promincrm~ of itemi. reportetl in l)\her comprehensive income tOCI J. The :rn1cndmems to this 
... tandard require that all 11011-ov. ner change~ m swckholders· equity be presented either in a ~ingle continuou:> 
-.1atemcnt of comprehenc;i,·e inclime or in l\\O -;eparate but con~..:nlli\'e <;tatcm..:nts. Cmlt:r ..:uhcr melhod. 
adju~unem:-. must he d1'pbycc.I for nems that are redas.,rlied from OCI to net income. in both net income and 
OCI. The \tandard doe-. not change the current option for presenting components ol OCI grn~» or nel of the effect 
\lf income laxes. prnvidt'd that such tnx effecl~ are presented in the !>latement in which ocr i ... presente<l or 
tli:.dosctl in the note.., to the:: l'inancial statements. Additionally. the -.1antlard docs not aifct:t the calculation or 
reporting or earning' per share. In December 2011. the FASB is~ued ASU 2011 - 12. Comprchcm .. i\e Lncome 
<Topic 220) - Deferral of the Effective Date tor A111endme1111; to the Presemation ol Reda~sifications tlf ltemi; 
Oul of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in ASU 20 11-05 (ASU 20 11-12). which defers the effective 
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Jate of only tl10:-.e changes in ASU 20 11-05 that relate to the pre:-.entation of redas:-.1fication adju:-.tments. Fur 
public emities, the amendments are effective !'or tiscal years. and interim periods within those years, beginn ing 
after December 15. :!0 11 and are to be applied retrospectively. with early adoption permitted. The Company does 
expect the adoption of thi~ standard to have a material impact on its con:-.olidated financial :-.tatement:-.. 

In September 20 11. the FASS issued ASU 2011-08, Tec;ting G1)()dwill for Impairment. to si mplify how 
emitie!- te:-.t gooJwi ll for impairmenl. The amendments in the update permit au entity to lirst a~~css qualitative 
factor:-. to determine whether it is more likely than not (that i\. a likelihood of more than 50 percent) chat the fair 
\ alue of a rcponing unit is !cs~ than its carrying amount. If this b the ca..,c . ..:ompanic:-. need to perform a more 
J..:tailed two-<;tcp goodwill impairment test which is useJ to idemify potential goodwill impairments am.I to 
measure the amount of goodwi ll impairment losse:,, to be recognized. if any. The amendments are effective for 
annual and interim gootlwill impairment le"l'- pe1fom1ed for fisc:l! ye:lr\ beginning after December 15. 2011. 
with early adoption ix:m1itted. The Compan) adopted thi!. update for its annual gooJwill impaim1ent tc~t 

performed a<; of October 1, 2011. The adoption of this ~tundard did not ha\e a matcri<tl impact on the Company·, 
<.:onsol idated results of' operations. 

3. .\CQl'ISITIONS Al'.1) DISCONTINuED OPERATIONS 

The application of the acquh. ition meth0d of accounting for business combination:-. requires 111a11<1ge111ent to 
make ~1gnificant estimates and a~surnptions in the determination of the fai r value llf the as5cts acquired and 
liabilitil'" a1,<;umed in <)rder ro properly allocate purchase price consideration. These assumption~ am.I e\timatt·s 
indude a market participant·:-. C\pected use of the asset and the appropriate discount rates from a market 
pun1cipunt perspective. The Company's e:;timatcs are ba~ed on hi:-.torical <!xperience and information nht:1i11cd 
from the management of Lhe acquired company and are determined with asi>istnncc rrom an independent thi rd­
pany apprai-;al lirrn. The Company'~ signiticant a~~umptions and e-.timateo; include the ca.,h tlows that an 
ac4uircd a,.,et i-; e .~pccted to generate in the fuwre. the weighted-average cost of capital, long-term projected 
revenue and growth rme;;, and the e!>timated roy:.t lry rate in the application of rhe reliel lrom royalty method. 

Browser.Hob LLC. kquisition 

On July 7. ~OIO, the Company acquired Brnwser'.\lob 1.1.C '8rnw~erMob) for ca~h con~idcration or S2.2 
million. The acqui~ition or Brow~erMob. a pro,,ider of vn-dcmand load testing and wcb<;ite monitoring service!>. 
expanded the Company':-. lntc111ct lnfrai.u-ueture Senic.:Cl-. The acqubition wa:-. accounted for um.l..:r the 
,1cqu1o;it1<1n method ol accounting in ~1ccordJnce with the Bu-.ine~~ Combination' Topic of the FASB ASC and 
the re..,ult-. 1>f operatilln' ot' Brow-;erMob ha\C heen included within the Enterpri~c Sen 11.:e' 'cgmenr tn the 
C\)mpany's rnnsoliclated 'itateim:nt of operallOJlS :-.ince the time or aequisition. or the lotal purchase price. the 
Company recorded ~I. I million of goodwill :.ind $1.0 million of definite-lived intangible a~o;eis. Dctinitc-li\cd 
imangiblc a ... ,<!!!-. c.:om.i,,t of cu:-.tnmer relation'>hip:-. and aequirec.I technolog}. The C<.m1pany j, .1mon11ing 
cu\tomer relaiion<.h1ps .ind :lcquired techn()IOg.) on a ~tra1ght-line has1:- over an <"Stim,1ted u~etul life of 3 year-; 
and 5 year~. respecti\dy. 

Quorn, J uc. Acquisition 

On October 27. 2010. the Company acquired Quova. Inc. (Quova) f'or cash consideration nr S2 I .7 million. 
which price wa~ "uhject LO certain purcha~e price adjus1ments. Quova expanded the C>mpuny's Jmcrnet 
lnfra~lructllre Sen in:'> b) pro\ iding intem.:1 geography data 'ervicl!s that enable <.mline busi1w..,~c~ to detect and 
pre\'ent fraud. ensure regulatory compliance. manage Jigit.al content righL~ dbtribuuon and locali1c ads and '~ch 
content. The acquisition was accounted for under the acquisi tion method 0f accounting in accordance with Lhe 
Busine:-s Combinations Topic of' the FASB ASC and the re~ults of uper::uions of Quova have been inc luded 
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within the Enterpri~e Service~ ~egmcnt in the Company'c; con:.oliuated slatement of operacions ,jnce the date of 
acquisi tion. Of the total purchase price. the Company recordeJ SS. I mi llion of goodwill and $ 15.0 milliM nf 
definite-l ived intangible assets. Definite-lived intangible :l\Sets consi~L of cusLomer relacion~hips. acltuir<!d 
h.:chnology and traJe name and trademark~. The Company i~ amoni~ing cu-..wmer relation:-hip-.. on a <;lfaight-line 
basis over an estimaled u:.eful life or 7 year'. ;\cquired techn1>logy and trade name:-. :md trademarks are being 
amon i7e<l on a straight-line basis over an e:-timated useful life of 3 }ear~ . 

£1'0l11i11g System Inc. Number Solutions Acq11isitio11 

On July I. 2011, 1he Ctimpany ai:quire<l the asset-. and certain liabilities of the Numbering Solution~ 
business of Evolving Syscems, 1111:. for cash con~iueration ol $39.0 million. The acquisition of Evol\ ing System~· 
Numbering Solution~ hu~iness e~pande<l tht: Comp::my's Order :Vl:lnagement Servicec; portfolio and furthered the 
Company"' long-tam initiathe to 'implify operator:-.' Operations Suppon Sr.re1m Jrchitectures by mitiga11ng 
co<;t anu complexity. while making the evolution Lo next-generation ne1works more eflident, manageable. and 
flexib le LO meer the increasingly C\llllplex needs of end-users. 

The acqubition wa~ aCCl)Unted for unJer the acqui:-ition method of accounting in accordance \\ ith the 
Busines' Combination~ Topic: of the FASB ,\SC and the re:-.ults of operations have bl'en included within the 
Carrier Services si;:gment in the Company's con~oliJated slatement or operations since the date ol' acquisition. Of 
the total rurchase price. the Company recor<led $20.3 million or goodwill. S~ 1.7 million of <lefinite- li\ed 
intangible aw:ts. anJ S3.0 million of net liabilitks. The dl'linite-li,ed intangible J''et' con~ist of') I 8.9 million 
of CU).tomer rclation-..hip~ and S'.!.8 million of acquired technology. The Company is am\irt11ing cu:-.1n111cr 
relation:-.hips and acquired technology on a :-tr~1ight-line basis over an estimated usel'ul life nf 10 years an<l 5 
years. re-.pcctively. The lotal amount of g.oo<lwill that is e\pecteJ to be deductible ror tax rurposes i~ s 19.7 
million. During ~011. the Company recorded S0.6 million l'f acquisition co:-.ts in general and administrative 
expense relate<l to thb tran:.actjon. 

TARGUSinfo 11cquisitio11 

On :--lovember 8. 2011, the Compan) completed it" acqui<;ition ol TARGL:Slnfo. a leading. independent 
proYider of real-time. 1>n-<lemand information and analytic~ ser\'ices indud111g Caller ID. 

The acqui-;ition or TARGUSinfo .,ignilicamly extends the Company·' ponfolio of services 111 the real-time 
information and anal~ tic ... market and i:ombines TARGL"Sinfo·.., leader-.h1p in Caller ID 3lld on line 1nfom1atio11 
'en· ice,, ... uch as l..:ad verifica11on Jnd scoring. \\1th the Company·" \trength-; in nelW1)rk infcwmation service-;. 
1r11.:ludi11g adtlress ill\entory management and net\\ork securny. These -;ervices are ddi,·..:red through a .;i;:cure. 
robu~t h.:chnology pl<lli"l)rm. anJ rl!ly on unique. cxtl'n:-.i'e and privacy-protected dat.1ba~c<.,. 

The .1cquisition wa<. aecoumed for under the acqu1-;i1ion method of aecnu1111ng in accordance \vith the 
Bu;:;ine~~ Combination~ Topic or the FASB t\SC :ind revenue of 521.2 mi llion and \)perating l'-.;pen~e or S 19.5 
million ha~ been induded within th.:: lnformauon Ser,ices .;egment in the Compan) '-; l·onsolidated statement of 
opcrauon., 'incc the date \)f an1ui ... ition. 

The l1>tal purcha~e price WH\ approximately S658.0 million, .:on:-.1strng or ca ... h con:-.idcrati<'ll or ~()57.3 
million and 11011-ca~h con:--ideration of S0.7 million attributnble [Q Lhe a<.~umption \II TARGUSinfo (1ption~. or 
1he t(ltal ca!.h con,ideraiiun. approximately S-11.5 million \\:t'i lkpo'>ited in an escw\v a1.:count. 1il \~hich ~0.t) 

million \\ill be availabll! to :-au~fy indemnification da1m:-. for hreache~ or the agreement and plan of mt:rger. .\n 
ad<liuonal 1;)3.0 mil hon and S0.5 million of the merger consideration payable to the \tOd.hol<ler~ ol TARGCSinfo 
was dt:posited into -;eparate escrow accounts and will be av~li lable to fund purchase price adju:-.Lments required 
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under the merger agreement and w reimburse certain co~ls and expenses pf the :-.tockhol<ler reprcsentati\t'. 
respectively. The funds in the indemnity escrow account will remain in escrow for a one-year period from the 
<late of acqui:.ition (unless claim'> are pending at such 1ime). af"ler which remaining proceeili. will be distributed to 
the TARGUSinfo "toc.:khol<lers. During. the y..:ar ended December 31. 2011. the Company recorded $10.5 million 
of acqubilion costs in general and administrative expense related to this acquisition. 

Under the acquisition method of accounting.. the tot;il estim:ued purchase price wa\ allocated to 

T.\RGUSinru·~ net tangible and intangible a~:-.ets acquired and liabilities ~L,:-.umed based on their estimated fair 
valuc11 a:;. of ~o\ember 8. 2011 . The alloc.:atiun of the purchase pncc is preliminary pending the linalit-alion of 
inrnme and non-income ba~e<l tax liabilities. The Company d1)es not expect the l'inalization or these items w 
materially impact the purcha).e price allocation. The following table summari1-c~ the preliminary purchase price 
;1lll1Cation based on the estimated !'air value of the acquir~d asset\ and assumeJ liabilities (i1t lhuu'>m1tb1: 

Ca .... h and cash equivalent!> 
Account:. rect'i' able 
Income tax receivable 
Other assets 
Account<; payable and accrue<l cxpen~e<; 
Deferred ta>. liability 
Deferred revenue 
Other liabilitic:-. 

Net tangible liabilities a.._ ... ume<l 
Customer relatil)n-;hips 
.\1:quire<l i<lentilie<l technolo~D 
Trade name~ and tra<lemarb 
Gocidwill 

Total purchase price allocmion 

) 1.601 
23.84..J. 
l4.263 
14.406 
(9.689) 

( 119.012) 
13.604) 
13.7271 

181,918) 
256.700 
46.500 

7.000 
429.700 

s 657.982 

The Company utilized a third-party valuauon in determining the fair \alue of the definite-liYed intangible 
a!>~Cl~. The income approach. \\ hich mcludes the application 0f the relief l°rnm wyalty 'aluation method or the 
di-.cmmted c:i-;h llow method, ''a<; the pri111;1ry tedrnique utiliLcd in valuing the idcmiliable intangible asset~. The 
relier Crom royalty valuation method estimate!> the benefit of owner,hip of the imangible as\el a<. the .. relict" 
from the ro~ahy e\pense that \\Ould need IO be incurred in ab-.ence of O\\ nership. The di'>counted ca'h tlo\\ 
method er-timate' 1he pre:-cnt \ .1lue 0r the intangible asset"' future economic benefit. ut1li11ng 1he estimated 
'1\ailable l'.il\h llow lhal the intangible a:;~..:t i1' c\pCctcd lO generate in the future. The c~impany .. ; "'"Lllllption:-. 
and estimate~ utili;ed in its valuations wen: ha:-c<l on hi:-.toric.:al e.\pericncc. information obtained from 
management ol T1\RGUSinfo. and were determined with a-.-;i<.tance lrom a thir<l-pa11y apprai-;al firm. 

The Compan-. allocated ':>110.2 million ol the iotal pur.:ha~e price to Jelinite-li\c<l intangible a~"..:h 
acquired. consist111g 11f cu..,tomcr relation:,h1ps. technology and trade name-. and trademarks. Customt•r 
relation..,hips repre~cnL agreemerw; with exi-.ting cu<>tomer:-.. The Company utili1e<l the discounted ca).h flflw 
rnetho<l to value the acquired cu,.tt>mer re lation~hips. Under thi!> method. the Compnny's ~ignificant assumptions 
.ind e~timate-. included expected future 1:a:..h llow<; aml the \\ cighted-<wcragc ..:0-.1 of capual. The ,·aim: of 
cu,tomer rela11on,hips will be amomzed on a :.traight-line ba:-.is o\er the e:-timated u~eful life of 8 years. 

Acquired tt·chnology 1"<.!presents tedmolngy that had renched technological foa!>ibility and for which 
development had been completed a:- of the dall! of' the acqui~ilion . Trade names and tradcmarb repn.:\cnt 
cstahfo.hcd T.\RGUSinfo trade name:-. :md tradcmark11 acquirl'd. The Company utili1e<l the relier from royally 
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';tluation mctho<l I<> value the Jc4uired technology and trudc name:,, and trademark~. lJnder 1lus method. the 
Company'<. <>ign ilicalll ai;sumption~ and estimates included an estimated market royally rate. estimated remaining 
u-;eful life or the int~ingible asset. e,.;timated future revenue of the intangible a!'se1. and an es1imatc.!d rate of return 
utilized in the delcm1ination of a discounted prc.!scm value. The value of developed technology .md trade names 
and trade1m1rks will he amortiLed on a :,,traight-lim: ba-;is O\Cr their e~timated u-;eful life of 5 year:,, and 3 )c.!at~. 
respectively. 

Goodwill represent.,, the exce;,,-.; of the TA RGUSinfo purchase prin! tl\ er the fair value of the net tangible 
liabilities a:-.,11med. The TARGUSinfo acljui1,ition ~ignificamly expanded th..: Company':-. pthition in 1h1.: 
information :.ervk:e' market. This acquisition provide' the Company with the Ppportunity Lo leverage it!> 
authoritative databa~es that are pmc.:es),ing trillion~ of trnn11actiom; in a new way and tn provide new ~olutions to 

its c11,1nmer-.; based nn real time :.uial) Lies deri,ed from the Company"-; existing adJre<.sing cap.1bilities. Thest: 
new <:apabilities, among mhcr facwr.-. were the rc.!asons for the establi),hmem of the purchase price. resulting in 
the recognition of a i,ignificant amount of goodwill. The goodwill balance ol $429.7 million is not e:-.pected LO be 
deductible ror tax. purposes. 

[n connection \\ ith this ac4ms11ion. the Company w.wmed uo' e<.te<l option'> with the cMirna1cd tmal fai r 
\alue of S5.7 million. Of the tot:1l $5.7 million, approl\imarcJy S5.0 million wil l be e\peni;ed f<lr po:,,l­
combinntion ~ervicc.::- and approximatdy S0.7 million ha~ been included in the purchase price. The Crnnp:.111y 
Jetermine<l the e:o.timatetl fair value of the assumed un\'ested option!- by utilizing the llull-Whitc l:.lttice model 
and Lhe following "''-t11npt1011s: an expected 'olatility range of 36.2-V'r to 36.5J<,:;.. a risk-free interest rate ol 
I .3SC:·C- w 2. I 5C<. a Jh idem! yield of en. and Ne us tar"; la!'lt rcponed ,ale price of ~hare!'I on the New York Stock 
Exchange on November 8. 20 I I of S~'.Hl7 per :-.hare. 

,\~ a re:-.uh of the ac4ui,11ion of TARGUSinfo. the Company recorded a net deterreJ lax liabilit) of 
;1ppm\it11atcly S 116.2 million in ib preliminary purchase price alhication primaril) related to the.! tlifferenc.:e in 
bt,ok ~uid ta\ hasii. ol identifiable intangible,. The Company also recorded a':) 14.3 nnllion income tax receiv<ible 
as:,umed from TARGCSinfo a~ a result o f the acquisition and accrued '> 1.2 million l'nr potential \ales tax •Ind 
in1ere:.t due on T.\RCiUSinfo sab for prior ~care; through 2010. 

Pro Forma Fi11a11cia/ /llformation for acquisitions of TARGUSi1~fo 

The fol lowing unaudited pro forma fin<111cia l infom1illion :.tnnmariLcS lhe Company':. rc~ul!~ of operation!> 
for the pcno<l indicated "' if ~eu),tar'~ acqut,itinn ol T.\RGL'.Sinfo had heen complc.!ted as or the beginning t>f 
the earlic),t period prc .. emed. The:.e rro forma :imounl' tunau<lited and Ill thOLJl,:.lJl(.b I do not purport 10 be 
indicative ol the result:-. that would have actually heen obtained if the acqui~ition occurred as of tlte beginning of 
lhe period-. pre~cntcd and :.hou lJ not be c<1n:,,lrucd a-. rcprc,emati"c <lf the luturc con-.olidmed rewlh of 
operation), nr financial condition of the combineJ entuy. The.! pro forma linancial information for all penlld' 
pre:,,e1ne<l al<.o incluJe~ the effect of the relatt:d linancing, amort1zatit1n e\pen!>e from acquired intangible as:-.et<., 
adju~1rnc111i. 10 intt'.re'L c>;.pen-;e and related tax el fects. 

Pro f'orma revenue 

Pro lorma income l'rom cominuing operation-, 

Pro forma net income from continuing operation:-
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Disco11tin11ed Operatia11s 

During the second 4uaner <if 20 l I , the Company cea~cd operations of its Converged Mes~aging Service!> 
busines'i. The re5ults of operations of the Converged :'v1essaging Ser\'ices business are rctlected in the Company'' 
consolidated statemt:ntl> of operations as .. cLo~s) in~·omc from discontinued opa:uions. net ~if ta.\··. All 
corresponding prior period operating resulL<; prc,emeJ in the Company's consolidated statements of operutions 
and the accompanying notes have been recbssilied to retlect rb.: operations of the ConvergeJ Mes~aging 
Service~ business~ discontinued operations. 

Sum111<1ries of the 1c:.ults of discontinued opaations for the years ended December 31, '..!009, 1010. and 2011 
are as follows (in Lhou:-.ands): 

Revenue from discontinued operations 

LllS' from discominued 11peration-; before tax 
Benelit for income taxe\ 

(Los~) income from <li,continued operations. net of tax 

20~) 20IO 2011 

s 13.132 

":>(23.00 I ) 
l8.63~) 

St 1-U69) 

s 5.946 s 45-1 

St3 l.374J 
( 13.555) 

"i( 17.819) 

s (8.17-l.) 
C-15.-123) 

s 37.249 

The amounts prc,ente<l a..; discontinued operations represent direct revenue and operating exp.:nse ot the 
Col1\ erged :\ 1es..,aging Sen ices hu,mess. \\.hich indude the pre-tax loss on the sale of certain as~ets .ind 
liahilit1cs of this bu-,ine ...... ors 1.9 million and ::in income tax bcndil of S-12. 7 million a1tributed to a <lc<llll:lion for 
the l os~ on wonhlcs~ :-Loci\ o r a Converged Mc:. .. aging Services busine .. s entity. recorded during the first quarter 
of 20 I I. The Company has <letermine<l direcr costs consi~tent \.\: ith the manner in which the Con\·erged 
:\lessagmg Service" busme5s \\,IS .,trucrured and managed during the re.;pecti\e periods. Jnd11-ect coo;ts 'uch a ... 
corporate overhead co'h that arc not dire..:tly allributable to the Col1\·erged Messagmg busine:.~ have not been 
allocated to the discontinued operation~. 

A-. ol December 31. 20 IO and 20 I I. the "''e" and liabilities of the Converged \.lc-.-;aging Services bu'>iness 
.ire included in their re,pecti\·e balance <iheet categorie'> 111 the Company's consolida1ed balance ,heets . .-\s of' 
December 31, 1010. these asst:h and liabi litk•s were ~5.8 million and S6.7 million. re:-.pccti,ely. ,\s of 
Dccemhcr 31. '..!O 11. thc:se as:-.cts and liabilities were S 1.3 million ;111d $2.2 mil lion. re:-.pcctively. A~ or 
December 31. ~O 11. the!>e <'l\!>Cts primarily included (':1.,h IO fund the residual liabilities of the Col1\ergcd 
\1es~:ig111g Sen·ice-; bu~incss. All '1gnilicant rc\ enue &enernting and cti'>t producing act!\ itie~ of the discontinued 
op.::ra11ons have ceased :is or J unc 30, 2011. 

-t INVESTMENTS 

Auction Rate Securities and Rights 

In :-.Jovcmber 2008, 1he Cornpnny accepted n seulement offer in the form of a rights offering (,\RS RighL'\l 
by the investment rirm that brol<.ered Lht: Company';, original purcha'>c:. of auction race sc:cuntics CARS). The 
,\RS Right\ provided the Compan} wi1h nght'> to .;ell it' ARS at par value to the 11l\e-.1ment liim during a t\~o 
year period heginn111g June 30. 20 I 0. Under the :\RS Rights. the invc'1menLo; were completdy liquidated nn 

July 1.2010. 

The Company elected to mea-;ure the ARS Rights at 1heir fair 'alue pursuant to the Financial Instrumentl> 
T0pic.: of the F.\SB ASC and 10 c.:las;;ify the a'sociated \RS as trading -;ecuntie,. During the years ended 
December ."\I. 2009 and 20 I 0. the Company recorded lo~ses of $2.5 mil lion and ':>6.9 million. respecti,·d}. 
related 10 Lhc change in C1' timatcd fai r value o l the ARS Rights. 
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Cnder the terms of the ARS Rights, if the invcl.tment Jinn was ~wcc~sful in selling any ARS prior Lo 
.lune 30. 2010. the investmcOL firm was obligared to pay the Company par value for the ARS :-.oh.I. During the 
)ear enJe<l December 31, 2009. the invel.tmenl linn ~old ARS with an original par value of $-1.0 million: the 
Company recei\ l!d these amounts in cash from the ill\ c:.lment firm and rccogniLcd rcafaed gains or'!) 1.2 millilln. 
During 2010. prior to the Company's exercise of the ARS Rights on June 30. 2010. the investment l"irm ~11IJ 

,\RS \\ ith an original par value tif S 16.5 million. and the C<impany received this ~1mount in c;t-;h from the 
investment firm an<l recogni1ed reali1.ed gains of S2. l million. 

During the year:. end~·J De<:embcr 31. 2009 and 2010. the Comp~my recorded gains ol' S2A million ~d '>4.9 
million. re1,pecti\ ely. relate<l to the change in c~timated fair value of the ARS. 

l're-ref1111ded M1111icipal Bonds 

As or December 31. 2010 and 2011. the Company held approximately $50.8 million and ~13. 1 mill ion, 
re<>pcctivcly. in prc-rd'undcd municipal bond~. secured by an c~cruw rund or U.S. Tr.:a<;ury :.ec.:uritie'>. These 
m\e~tmcnb are accounted for a~ <1v:iilablc-for-~ale -.ecuritie:-. pursuant to the l nve,tment~ - Debt and Equity 
Sc;,;urities Topic of the F,\SB ASC. The Company did not :.-ell any of these investments during 20 I 0. During the 
ye<1r ended Dec.:o::mber 31. 2011. the Company .. old approximately SI 16.1 million of available-for-o;ale so::curities 
and rec.:o~mLed net gains 1Jf S0.2 n11llion. The Comp<m) diJ not record any imp:urment charge-; relat.:d to the~e 
imestmt•nts during the }Car~ o::ndcd December 31, 20 I 0 and 201 1. The fo llowing tahle ~ummarizc.:s the 
Company'-; inve-.unent in the~e municipal bond~ :t~ of December 3 I. 20 I 0 :md 20 I I (in thous.and<;): 

Due.: within one year 
Due al.ler one year through three years 

Tot.ti 

Due within one year 
Due after one year through two) ears 

Total 

5. FA IR V.\LCE MEASCREMENTS 

\ 111orti1cd 
Co'>I 

~IJ.782 

36.968 

S.50.750 

. \ mor1i1.ed 
Coi.1 

~10.538 

2,500 

s 13.038 

l>ccm1ber 31, 20.IO 

c;ross Cnrt>nlized 

l;ains I .O'>'es 

'>23 s (3) 
61 (20) 

.;,s..i )123) 
-

Dcc:cmhcr .l l. :?O 11 

Gains Losses 

SIO ~ t3) 

6 

"i 16 s <3) 
- --

E\timakd 
F:ii r \'aluc 

) 13.802 
37 .009 

'>50,811 

E'timaled 
Fair Vahu• 

.., 10.5-15 
2.506 

513.051 

Fair "alue i' the pricl! that \\ould be received in the -.ale of ;m ~l~~et or paid to transfer a liabilil} m an 
11rderly tra11-;ac11on hetween market participants at the measuremem date. The Fair Value ?\lea,uremems and 
Disdo~ure Topic of FASB ASC cstabli!-he~ a frur ,·alue h1crarc:hy that pnorili7es th.: inputs to 'aluation 
tcc:hniques usc::u to measure fair \aluc and n:quires that as:'ets and liabiliLies canied al fair\ alue be cla~sitit:d .md 
di:-do~c.:d 111 onl! of the f<illowing thrl!e categoril!s: 

I .eve! I . Observable inputs. sud1 as quoted prkes iu active markets; 

Le\'d 2. Input<.. 1lther than quotl!d price-. in acti\ e markeL\, that :ire ohsen able either direc11\. 1.•r 
indirectly; and 

I.eve! t Unobservable inputs for which there is linle or no market data. \-,hich require the reporting 
•'ntity to develop il!> O\"n a ... wmptw1i.... 
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The Company C\><tluates a:.sct:-. and li<1bili1ie~ su~j ec:L to fair value measurements on a recurring and 
non-recurring basis to determine the appropriate level at which to classify them for each reporting period. This 
Jetermination require:. the Company LO make ~ignil'icantj udgmems. 

The Company Je1ennines the fai r value of it<; investments using thir<l-party pricing ~ources, whi1.:h primarily 
use a consensus price or weighte<l average price for the fair value asse:.smenl. The consensus price is determined 
by u::-ing matrix prices rrom a ,·aric.:ty of industry stam.lar<l pticing ~ervices. data providers. large financial 
institutions anJ other thirJ party sources am.I utiliLing tho\e multiple prices as inputs into a Ji-.tribution-curve­
bast:<l algorithm to determine the t"•limate<l market value . .\fatrix price:. arc based on quoted prices for securitic:. 
\\ith similar terms (i.e. coupon rate, maturity, cre<lit rating). The Company corrobonues c:onsensus prk·e~ 

provided by third party pricing :-ourc:es using reported trade activicy. benchmark yield curve~. binding brol-.cr/ 
<lealer quote<. or other relevant price in!'om1ation. 

The fair Y:tlue of tht: pre-refunded municipal bonds was incorrectly disc:losc<l ~L" a Level I fair value 
measuremelll in the previously issued 20 I 0 linancial statements. TI1e :W 10 disclosure below ha~ been corrected 
lo clas~ify the<;e investments. or approximately S50.3 million. a-; Le,·el 2 fair value measurement!. a-; fair YaJuc i-; 
based on ub<>crvable inputs other than quoted prices in active m•u·kets. The Company <loe:. nut believe that thi-, 
Jisclosurc error wa~ m~uerial to the previously i:.~ue<l 2010 c:onsolidatcd li1wncial <tt;nemenLs. TI1e following table 
'\ets i'orth, us of December 31, 20 I 0 and 20 I I. the Company's fi nancial and non-fi nancial as-;ets and liabilities 
that are measured al fair' alue on a recun-ing basi.;, by level within the fair value hierarchy (in thous.mds): 

:vluni<.:ipal bonds Cmaturities le~~ than one yenr) 
:\lunicipal bonJ:. (maturities one to three years} 
~ l<irl-ewble sec:uritic~ (I) 

~lun11.:1paJ bomt.. (maturities le-.s than one year) 
~1 uninpal bonds I maturities one to two yeur:-.l 
:vlarkctable .;;ecurit ies ( I J 

Lndl 

s -
-;; -
$3.68 1 

LcHI I 

s -
s -
54.008 

Deccmher 31. 20111 

LcH•l 2 Level 3 Total 

$13.80:?. S- "13.80:?. 
$37.009 S- 537.009 
::i S- s 3,68 1 

December ~I. 2011 

Level 2 Ll>.-el 3 l'olal 

SI0.545 $- SI0.545 
s 2.506 S- s 2.506 
s S-·- s .. J..1)08 

c I I Th.: :-.leuStar. 1111.:. Defem~<l Compen<>ation Plan (th.: PlanJ provide' <lirecwr-, ,111<l certain emplo)eC'> \\ ith the 
.1bilit) to defer a portion of thell' wmpensation. Thi: a:.~eL<; of the Plan are inve,ted in marketable securities 
held in :1 Rabbi Tru~t and reported at market value in Other nsst: ts. During the years ende<l Dec:ember .) I. 
2009 an<l 20 I 0. ther.:: were no -.ale:. <.>f securities l'rom the Rabbi Tru'>t. During the year ended Dccembt:r 31. 
2011. the Compan) recogni1c<l gains of !:>0.5 million ,utributed to the -.ale of ... ecuritie:. from the Rabbi Tru:.t. 
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6. GOODWILL AND INT ANG IBLE ASSETS 

Goodwill 

The Company·" goo<lwill by operating :.egment a.-, ot December 31. 2010 and 2011 is as follow'> Cin 
thou:.ands): 

lkccmbcr .H, Occ1•mbcr .H, December J l, 
2009 .\ c11uisition!! 2011) \c11ui~ition~ \dju•lmcllt• Wll 

Carrier Sen ice:. 
Gm!>:- p>P<lwill 5202,055 ::. - 5202,055 s 20,602 5(3\)2) :>222.355 
Accumulated impairments (93,602 > ( 93.60'.!) (93,()0'.!) 

'.'let goodwi ll I 08,453 108.453 20,602 t302) 128.753 

Enterpri~i: Sen·ices 
Gross goodwill 9.%.+ 6,234 16.198 16.198 
Accumulateu impairments 

~el gooJ,\ 111 9.964 6.23-+ 16.198 16.198 

lnforma1ion Sa\.it.:e~ 
Gro~f. goodwi ll .+29.700 429.700 
Accumu lateJ irnpai rml!nt<; 

Net gocxfa tll 429.700 429,700 

Total 
Gross goodwill 212.019 6.23-t 218.253 -+50.302 002) 668.253 
Accumula1ecl impairments (93.602) (93.602) (93.602) 

:-Jet go1.xl '" i II s 11 8.-117 '>6.23-l S l 2-L65 I S-+50.302 $'302> S574.651 
- - - --

During the third quaner or W I I. the Company completcu i1s acquisition of as ... e1..; an<l certain liabilitie1- or 
Lhe :-Jumbering SoluLion .. bu<;inc'' of E\·olving Sy·;iern~, Inc. and recordcu S20.3 nullion uf goodwill. net or 
,1<lju ... tmcnts. hee ~ute 3). fn adui11011. during the fourth quarter or 2011, the Company .icquirc<l TARGCSinto 
and recorckd S429.7 million of goodwi ll in the Company"~ Information Sen ices opernting segment 11-ee >Joie .'\). 

The Company"..; 20 10 and 20 11 annual goodwi ll i111pairrnen1 :ma l y~is, which was performed for each lll it-; 
reporting unit:-. a:. uf Octoher I in ead1 re<>pcl.!ti\e ye.ir. <lid not resuh in an impaim1ent ch:u-ge. 

The J..ey a .. :-umpt1011!> used in the Company".., 20 11 annual good\\ ill imp~urmen1 tc..;t to <letcrmine the fai r 
value of iL!. reporting unit~ included: (al ca!>h fh)w projections. which include growth and allocaunn assumptiom. 
fur foreca-.ted revenue an<l e.\pcn~es: !bl a rernlual gro\l:th rme of 3.(Vi to 5J)1.i-: (l'l a u1scount rati: of 14.5<:1· to 
16.0'<. "hit.:h was ha~e<l upon each rcspectiw reporting unu·s we1ghted-,ncrage co ... t of capital a<lju ... ted fClr the 
risk- as,oc1•1tcd with the operation..; •ll the time Clr the a~se;.;.ment: (dJ ~electmn or comparable eomp<tnies u;.e<l in 
the market apprnad1; and (e) a!.-;ump1ions i11 weighting !he results of 1he income approach •llld the mar"et 
;1pproach valuation techniques. 

,\" of the <late of the Com pan>· s 2011 annual 1mpa11mem te:.1. the c~timated foir value:. for each ot the 
Company"~ reporting units suhstan1ially exceeded each ol i1s reporting unit~· carrying \aluc. The Company 
believes that the a-;,u111p1ions a11u estimates u~ed to determ ine the e~ti111:1teJ fair \tliues of ead1 of its reporting 
unit~ are rea~on:ibk: howcvt:r. these e~timatc!> •u·e inherently subj..:ct1\e. and th<.:r<.: are a number or fat:tllf">. 
including factor ... ouh1Je of the Company'!> control that c\lul<l cau .. e actual rc..,ult~ to <lifft!r from the Comp:my», 
e~timatcs. Changes in estimates and a:-;~umptions could haYe a signilicant impth.:t on whether or not .in 
impainni.:m charge is recognized and also the magniwde of any such charge. 



NEUSTAR. lr-i"C. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Any changes ro the Company·~ key as~umption~ about its bu:.ine,ses and it~ pro~pcct:-.. or change'> in market 
conditions. could cause the fair Hllue 0f one of iL<; reponing unit~ to fall below its cart"}ing value. resulting in a 
potential impairment charge. In addition. changes in the Company"s organiLation~tl structure or how the 
Company"; management al locates rl·~ources and <L)Se~'>e!'> performance could re'iult in a change of its operating 
:-.egmcnts or reporting unic:-.. ret1uiring a realkication anti impaim1ent .malysis of gooJ,, ill. A go<idwill 
impairment charge could have a material effect on the Company" s consolidated financial s1atement-; bec:.tllo;e of 
the significance or goodwill to its consolidated balance sheet. As of December 3 1, 20 11 , the Company had 
Sl'.28.8 million. 516.2 million, am! S429.7 million. respecti\'ely. in goodwill for its Carrier Service'>. Enterpri'>e 
Senic<:~. am.I Information Services operating .,cgmenb. 

Intangible As<;et'> 

In the hrst quarter of 2010. the Company realigned ii... organi1ational ,tructure. and it-; NGM bu<>ine-;:- wa' 
included with other IP-relmed services in the Company's Carrier Services operating ::.egment. In the fourth 
quarter of 20 IO. the Company dccitkd to cxil a ponion of its IP Ser\'ices bu:-.incs~. :.pccifically its Converged 
\.fo:.i.agmg Services hu:.10c:-.s. The Company believe' that it'> deci:-.ion to c\il this bui.ine'' wa-, an indicator of 
impairment for long-lived assets in its Converged :Vle-.l.aging Services as,et group. ,\<. a re-;ult. in the fourth 
quarter or 2010. the Company performed a recoverabi lity test and determined that the l'uwre undiscoumed cash 
!lows or the C'onvergeJ Mc:-.saging Service:. a-;set group w~1s Jes~ than the carrying \>due. The Company recordeJ 
,m ~8 .5 million charge for impairment of long-liYed al.set<.. con'ib.ting of a 57 9 million charge to write dov.n the 
carrying value of the Converged Me~i.aging SerYices propeny and equipment (see NMc 7) and a ~0.6 million 
charge to write down the carrying value of' 1hc Converged >.-1essaging Services imangible a\<.et'\ related 10 
cu:-.tomcr Ji<;!!\ and rclatinn:-.hips. The valua11on technique utiliLed by the Company in its fair \alue e:-.timate~ 
included the 1.bcounted ca<.h no~ method. Dunng the :-.econd 4uancr of 20 I I. the Company cea:-.ed operauons of 
ih Converged Messaging Services business and all co1Tesponding prior period re,ultq presented in the 
Company·s con<.olidated \tatement'> or operation-; ha,·e been recla.'>~itied to discontinued operation .. bee Nole J). 

Intangible a<:set<; consi'r \)f the following (111 thousands): 

ln!angiblc a-;..,et'>: 
cu,tomer li:-.t:-. and relationships 
\ccumula1ed amortin1uon 

Customer lbt-; and relation,hip<., net 

\cquired technology 
\ccumu latcd amniti1:uion 

,\..:quircJ tcchnology, net 

frat.It: name 
Accumulated amort1Lution 

Trade name. net 

ln1angible .1:-.sel'i. net 

Oetcmhcr 31, 

20 10 20 ll 

'> 49,88 I <:.,,\I 5.C)l.)8 
( 34,062) !32,615) 

15.819 2S2A83 

19554 58.859 
( 16.805) (9.-+93) 

2.7.+9 -+9.366 

630 7.630 
(22.f) (711 l 

406 6.919 

... 18.974 \338.768 

\\'d!!hll'd· 
AH·raec 

\morli1~1lio11 
Period 

(in )Car.ii 

7.9 

4 .8 

3.0 

In Ju ly 2010, the Company recorded !-il.O million of definite-lived intangible ao;,cts in connection with its 
,1cqu1:-.ition ol Browser~foh. con:-.i-.ting of S0.8 million relateJ lo acquired technology and S0.2 million rdatl·d to 
customer relationships (see Nole 3 ). 
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ln October 20 I 0. the Company recorded $15.0 million of dl!finite-lived intangible a~~cts in connl!ction with 
its acqubition of Quova. <:1)11.;isting of S 13.6 million related to customer relation~hips. !i> 1.0 million related to 
.1cquired technology :lnd S0.4 million related to trade names (see :--lote 3). 

[n July 2011. the Company recorded S21.7 million of cJelinite-lived intangible as'iets. con'ii,ting or $ 18.9 
million of customer relation.;hips and 52.8 million of acquired technology related to its acqui..;ition of :.t->~ets and 
certain liabilities or the Numbering Solutions busines:, or Evolving Systems. Inc. (~ee Note 3). 

ln Nt~vember 2011. the Company recorded 531 O.'.! million of delinite-liH:d intangible asset~ in connection 
\vi1h its acquisition of TARGUSinro. consisting of $256.7 million related to customer relationship~. S46.5 million 
related t~i acquired lechnok>gy and $7.0 million related to tradt: names and trademarks (see Note 3). 

Amonization ex pens!:' rdated 10 intangible asset!> for the years ended December 31. 2009. 20 l 0 and 2011 or 
approxirm1tely 55.9 million. $4.8 million and S 12. l million, rc~pc1.:ti\\!ly. b indmll.!d in depreciation and 
amortiLation expcn:-.e. Amortization cxpen:-.e related to imang1hlc <ts..,et:-. for the y1.:ars ended December 31. 2012. 
2013. 20 1-1-, 2015. 1016 and thereafter is expected to be approximately S:'i0 .. 3 mi llion. :q8.9 million, '5..J.7.9 
million. 545.9 million. 544.1 million and SIOl.7 million. respectively. Intangible a\~et::. as or December 31.1011 
\\ill be fully amor111.ed dunng the year .:nded December 31. 2021. 

7. PROPERTY AND EQLTP\lEl'iT 

Property anu equipmcn1 con:-.ists of rhc following (in thousands): 

Computer h~irdware 
Equipment 
Fumiwrc and lixtur..:s 
Lc~1:-ehold improvement:. 
C1111'truction m-pmgre"" 
Capitalit.ed ~0lhvare 

Acrnmulated dcprcc1ation and amoni1.ation 

Prtipeny and equipment. net 

l)ec~mber 31. 

.?OIO 2011 

5 86.990 <:; 91.918 
1.800 2.688 
-l.485 6.764 

..,.., "'""'"" --·--'-' 23.357 
17.7'H 18.292 
81.076 101.973 

214.315 2+1.992 
( I ..tO.O 191 t 1-1--1-.890) 

'> 14.2% <:; 100.102 

The Company entered into ct1pital lea~e nbligatmns ol -...1.6 million and '>1.8 million fl)r the year!- ended 
December 31. 2010 and 20 I l. re~pccti vely. primarily for computer hanh' are. 

Depreciation and amrnti1.atin11 expense n:l:ued to property and l!quipment for Lhe years ended December 31, 
2009. 2010 and 2011 w:i.~ \2-1-.0 million. ';28.1 million and '.)34.l million. respecti,ely. 

In the fourth quarter of 20 10, the C01npany re1.x1rded :1 S7.9 million impairment charge to \Hite down lhe 
CalTying \alue or property nnd equ1pme111 of the Converged ;\ks!>agrng Sen ice;. as<.et group (\Ce Note 6). The 
C1.1merged '.\1es:-agmg property .md equipment impairment t·harge or $7.9 million indude:. .1 ~5.3 million 
imp:1irmcnt charge rel:.ltl!tl to intcnrnl ly devdoped tc.:dmology and a S 1.3 million impainn..:m charge rdated lo 
capicalizcd software. The \ aluatit111 technique:-. utilii'cd by the Company in it'- fair value cslimateo; includctl the 
rcplacemem cost method. 
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8. ACCRUED EXPENSES 

Accrued e:\pense:- consist of the following (in thousamJ-;): 

,\ccrued compensarion 
RRC re~erve 
Accrued intcrc~t 
Other 

Total 

9. CREDIT FACILITIES 

2010 2011 

$35.675 S.52.028 
2.58 1 2.-1-~I 

546 4.<H8 
19.006 20.217 

$57.808 $79.334 

On :--Ill\ ember 8. 2011. the Company cnh.:red into a credit facilit) that provide~ for: 1 I) a S600 million ~cnior 
~ecurcd h::nn loan facili ty (fcrm Fal·ility ): (2.J a SI 00 million ~enior -;ecurcd revolving credit l'al·ility (Revolving 
Facility :md tngerher with the Term Facility. the 2011 Facilitie'>). of which (aJ S'.10 million is available for the 
issuance ol ll't1ers of credit and Cb) ~25 rrnllion is available as a l>Winglinc subfncility: :tnd (3) inncmental tcm1 
loan foci I it ii.!<; in an aggregatl! arnounL of up to $400 million. Thi! Rcvol\ ing Facility mature:-. on No\embcr 8. 
2016. and the Term Facility matures on No, ember 8, 2018. The entire S600 million Tc:rm Facility wm. bomnved 
on November 8. 2011 , and u<-ed lO f'und a ponion of the ;11.:quisition of TARGUSinl'o and lo pay costs. lees and 
expenses ineurred 111 t:onncction with the acquisition. The Company ha' nm bo1Towc:<l under 1he Re' oh ing 
Fac1lll}. 

The 2011 Facilitic:s contain cu ... wmary rc:prescnt:uion~ and warrantie~. anirrnalive and negati\C co,enanlS. 
and evcncs ot default. If :rn cvem of defaull occur; and so l1rng as such evenl of <ldault is ..:ontinuing. the amounts 
outstanding may accrue imerest at an incrca1.e<l rate and payment~ or ~uch tiu11;can<ling amounts cou l<l bl! 
accelerated. or other rc:me<lie\ undertaken pursuant lo the 2011 h1ciliue!- The Company's quanl.'rly financial 
CO\ cnants include a maximum conS(\lidat..;d l"ixe<l charge e1>\erage ratio :rn<l a minimum consolid:ucd leverage 
ratio. ,\s of Decemhcr .3 I. 2011 and t'or the period from the effective date of the 2011 focili1ies to December 31. 
2011 , the Company wa.-;; in complianee with these cm·enants. 

The Company'-.. obligations pur-.uanl lo the 2011 Facilitie') are guarameed b} ccnmn of the Company·~ 
domc-..tic sulhidian~·-... or the guarantorc;. and ... ecurcd. \\ith certain ~·xception:.. by: (i) (al ,t lir ... 1 priority securily 
imcrc:-.t in :111 equity imerc,ts ol the Company ', direct and indirect domc:-.lic ~ub~idiarics: tb> 65C:i of the 
oui-.1,inding \ oting equity imere ... 1-. and I ()Of'f of the non-\'oting equity rntere-..ts of :'-lcuStar :-.JG.\tl Sen ices 
Linii1ecl, an indirect "1bsidiary of the Company, and flr:-1-tier foreign ~ub,id i aries that are cc1n1rolled foreign 
corporation~: and (cl 65% ~1f the oulstantling rnting cquil)' rntcre'>h of' any dom<!stic sub,idiary t\f the Company. 
the 'ole :u.~eh t'f \\htch conw-t of :-.tuck of controlled foreign 1.:orporauon~: liiJ all pn.:sem and future tangible and 
inwngible assets of' the Company iinJ the guaramor~: ;ind (iii) all proceeds and product'> of the property and 
.l~'>Ct' Je~cnbed in 111 .ind tiil above. 

Principal payml'ms under the Term F:1ci lit} of S 1.5 million are due on the la.\l day nr the quarter <;t:ll'ling on 
Decl.!mber 31. 2011 and em.ling on Scptemtxr 30. 2018. The r.::maimng Tc:rm Facility principal balance of'::i558.0 
1mlh1lll is due in lull on ~O\ ember 8, 2018. '>ubjcct to early rnan<lalory prerayments as i'unher di~cus~ed below. 
The loans outstanding un<kr the cn:<lit facility be:ll' intcre~l. al the Compan~ ·, op111111. either: 1i) at the b.1se rate. 
\\-hich is ddined :h Lhe highest of (a) the federal tun<ls rate plus 0.5Wi-. lbJ the imerest rate published by the Wall 
Slrei..'l Journal n ... th..: ··U.S. Prime Rate·· and (cJ the adjui,,te<l LIBOR rale for a onc-momh intt:rcst period 
beginning on ~uch Jay plus 1.00':1: provided that the ba'>e rate for loan~ under the Term Facility j, deemed LO l~ 
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not lei\~ than 2.25':C per annum or (ii) at the LIBOR rate plus. in each ca~e. an applicable margin. The applicable 
margin is Ci) in respect of the Tenn Facility. 2.75<7< per annum for borrowings base<l on the base rate and 
3.75% per annum for bo1TO\\ings based on the UBOR rme. anti (i i) in respect of the Revolving Facility. 
2.50% per annum fo r bomiwings based on the ba~e r~tle and 3.50% per annum boITowings ba,cd on the LIBOR 
rate. 111e a<.:cruc<l interest under the Term Faci lity b payable quarterly beginning on February 8. 201 2. As of 
December 3 1. 2011. the imereq rate on the Term Facility was 5% per year. The accrued intere:-.t under the 
Revoh ing Facilit~ is due on the last day or the quarter ~tarting on December 31. 2011. 

The Company paid SI 0.0 million of loan origina1ion fees related 10 it:-. 20 l I Facilitit:~ :rnd recorded SI CJ.4 
million in defcrr.:tl financing costs. Total amortil.ation expense of the loan origination fee:. and deferred financing 
co:-.ts was apprnximarely S0.6 million for the ye~tr ended December 3 1, 2ll 11 and is reported as interest expense 
in the c1m-;olidated statement'> 1)f operations. :\:. 11f Decembe1 31. 20 I I . the balance of unamorrized loan 
01igim1tion lees and deferre<l linancing costs w;1<. :)28.8 million. 

\-, ot December 3 I. 2011. the remaining principal p:.iymcnt!\ un<lcr the Tt>rm Facilit) are a~ follows (in 
thou~ands): 

2012 
20 13 
201-1 
2015 
2016 
Thereafter 

Total prim;ipal payments 
Leso;: un:1mortiLed original is,ue <liscoum 

Present value of principal payments 
Less: current portion 

Long-t.:rm 1101..: payable 

$ 6,000 
IJ.000 
6.000 
6.000 
6.000 

568.500 

598.500 
(8.8351 

589,(165 
<4.856) 

S58-l.80Q 

The Company may voluntarily prepay the lunns at any time. The 20 11 Facilitie:-- provide l'or mandatory 
prepayments with the net ..:a ... h proceeds of certai n debt is:.uances. Cl1uity issuances. in,urance receipt:.. 
di\pn:--itionc., ,md e'(Ct'"'> ca:-.h flow~. :'.'vlandator~ prl!paymcnts auributabk lO cxces:-. cash tlow) \\!ill be based on rhc 
Compan}°.., leverage ratio :111d \\ill he detennmcd at the end of each fi,..:al ) ear. beginning \\ nh the year emlc:<l 
December 31. ~O 12. A le\ erage ratio of l.5x 11r higher will trigger m;mdatory prepa) menh ot ~5c< or 5or.; ol 
e'<CC''- cash !low. In the e\cnt .ictual results nr ch.mge~ in e!'timatc'> tri;?ger the mandatory prepayment. ~uch 
pr..:paym..:111 amount wi ll be r..:l·Ja,:-.iried from lnt1g-1crm note payabk to currcm note payable 111 1he Company\ 
accompanying con~ll l idilted halan1.:e !>he.::i:-.. 

\~ or December .")I. 201 I. the Compan) ·" out:-.tamling borrmdn~' un<ler the T t::rm Facility were )589 7 
milli1111 and accrued intere ... 1 under the 2011 F;icditie' \\a.; ~.5 million. As of December JI. 2011. the 
Compan} ·..,a mi lab le born.ming ... under 1he Re\ oh mg Facility wt!re SI 00 million. 

2007 C redit Fa<'ilily 

On February 6. 2007. the Company entered into a 1.-re<lit agreement which provided fur a revolving cr4"dit 
facilitv in an aggregate pr111c1pal amount of up to ::,100 million (the 2007 Credit Facility). Bom1wings under the 
2007 Cr4"dit 1-acility bure interc!>t. at the Company's option. at either H l:.un1<lolbr rate plu'\ a <.prea<l ranging from 
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